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INTRODUCTION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K is document that U.S public companies file with the Securities and Exchange Commission on an

annual basis Part II of the Form 10-K contains the business information and financial statements that many companies include in the

financial sections of their annual reports The other sections of this Form 10-K include further information about our business that

we believe will be of interest to investors We hope investors will find it useful to have all of this information in single document

The SEC allows us to report information in the Form 10-K by incorporating by reference from another part of the Form 10-K or

from the proxy statement You will see that information is incorporated by reference in various parts of our Form 10-K The proxy

statement will be available on our website after it is filed with the SEC in April 2013

Unless the context otherwise requires we us our the Company or Brown Shoe Company refers to Brown Shoe Company Inc

and its subsidiaries

Information in this Form 10-K is current as of April 2013 unless otherwise specified

CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In this report and from time to time throughout the year we share our expectations for our companys future performance These

forward-looking statements include statements about our business plans the potential development regulatory approval and public

acceptance of our products our expected financial performance including sales performance and the anticipated effect of our

strategic actions the anticipated benefits of acquisitions the outcome of contingencies such as litigation domestic or international

economic political and market conditions and other factors that could affect our future results of operations or financial position

including without limitation statements under the captions Business Legal Proceedings and Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Any statements we make that are not matters of current reportage or

historical fact should be considered forward-looking Such statements often include words such as believe expect anticipate

intend plan estimate will and similar expressions By their nature these types of statements are uncertain and are not

guarantees of our future performance

Our forward-looking statements represent our estimates and expectations at the time that we make them However circumstances

change constantly often unpredictably and investors should not place undue reliance on these statements Many events beyond our

control will determine whether our expectations will be realized We disclaim any current intention or obligation to revise or update

any forward-looking statements or the factors that may affect their realization whether in light of new information future events

or otherwise and investors should not rely on us to do so In the interests of our investors and in accordance with the safe harbor

provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Part Item 1A Risk Factors below explain some of the important

reasons that actual results may be materially different from those that we anticipate
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Brown Shoe Company Inc founded in 1878 and incorporated in 1913 is global footwear retailer and wholesaler Current

activities include the operation of retail shoe stores and e-commerce websites as well as the design sourcing and marketing

of footwear for women and men Our mission is to inspire people to feel good and live better.feet first We are global

footwear company with annual net sales of $2.6 billion that puts consumers and their needs first by targeting family healthy

living and contemporary fashion platforms Our business is seasonal in nature due to consumer spending patterns with

higher back-to-school and Christmas and Easter holiday season sales Traditionally the third fiscal quarter accounts for

substantial portion of our earnings for the year

Our accounting period is based upon traditional retail calendar which ends on the Saturday nearest January 31 Periodically

this results in fiscal year that includes 53 weeks Our 2012 fiscal year included 53 weeks while both our 2011 and 2010 fiscal

years had only 52 weeks The difference in the number of weeks included in our fiscal years can affect annual comparisons

During 2012 categories of our consolidated net sales were approximately 62% womens footwear 24% mens footwear

10% childrens footwear and 4% accessories This composition has remained relatively constant over the past few years

Approximately 67% of 2012 footwear sales represented retail sales including sales through our e-commerce websites

compared to 66% in 2011 and 70% in 2010 and the remaining 33% 34% and 30% in the respective years represented

wholesale sales See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our business

segments and financial information by geographic area

We had approximately 14100 full-time and part-time employees as of February 2013 In the United States there are no

employees subject to union contracts In Canada we employ approximately 20 warehousing employees under union

contract which expires in October 2013

RETAIL OPERATIONS

Our retail operations at February 2013 included 1277 retail shoe stores in the United States Canada China and Guam
The number of our retail footwear stores at the end of each of the last three fiscal years was as follows

2012 2011 2010

Famous Footwear 1055 1089 1110

Specialty Retail 222 234 259

Total 1277 1323 1369

During 2012 Famous Footwear opened 55 stores and closed 89 stores During 2012 Specialty Retail opened 29 stores and

closed 41 stores

With many companies operating retail shoe stores and shoe departments we compete in highly fragmented market

Competitors include local regional and national shoe store chains department stores discount stores mass merchandisers

numerous independent retail operators of various sizes and internet retailers Quality of products and services store

location trend-right merchandise selection and availability of brands pricing advertising and consumer service are all

factors that impact retail competition

Famous Footwear

Our family platform includes Famous Footwear which is one of Americas leading family branded footwear retailers based

on 1055 stores at the end of 2012 net sales of $1.5 billion in 2012 and published information on our direct competitors Our

target consumers are women who buy brand-name fashionable shoes at value for themselves and their families In addition

to our retail footwear stores we operate Famous.com Our omni-channel strategy provides our customer numerous shopping

experiences access to wider range of products and variety of delivery options

Famous Footwear stores feature wide selection of brand-name athletic casual and dress shoes for the entire family

Brands carried include among others Nike Skechers New Balance Converse adidas DC LifeStride Reebok Sperry Asics

Puma Dr Scholls Shoes Vans BOC by Born Sof Sole Fergalicious and Bearpaw We work closely with our vendors to

provide our consumers with fresh product and in some cases product exclusively designed for and available only in our

stores Famous Footwears average retail price is approximately $39 for footwear with retail price points typically ranging

from $22 for shoes up to $120 for boots

Famous Footwear sells various Brown Shoe Company owned and licensed products Such products are sold to Famous

Footwear by our Wholesale Operations segment at profit and represent approximately 14% of Famous Footwear net sales
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Famous Footwear stores are located in strip shopping centers as well as outlet and regional malls in all 50 states and Guam

The breakdown by venue is as follows at the end of each of the last three fiscal years

2012 2011 2010

Strip centers 726 744 762

Outlet malls 167 169 174

Regional malls 162 176 174

Total 1055 1089 1110

Stores open at the end of 2012 and 2011 averaged approximately 6800 and 6900 square feet respectively Total square

footage at the end of 2012 decreased 3.7% to 7.2 million square feet compared to 7.5 million at the end of 2011 We expect

to open approximately 55 new stores and close approximately 60 stores in 2013 New stores typically experience an initial

start-up period characterized by lower sales and operating earnings than what is generally achieved by more mature stores

or the division as whole While the duration of this start-up period may vary by type of store economic environment and

geographic location new stores typically reach normal level of profitability within approximately four years

Sales per square foot were $199 in 2012 which was up from $186 in 2011 Same-store sales increased 4.5% during 2012 on

52-week basis Same-store sales changes are calculated by comparing the sales in stores that have been open at least

13 months Relocated stores are treated as new stores and closed stores are excluded from the calculation Sales change

from new and closed stores net reflects the change in net sales due to stores that have been opened or closed during the

period and are thereby excluded from the same-store sales calculation E-commerce sales for those e-commerce websites

that function as an extension of retail chain are included in the same-store sales calculation

Famous Footwear relies on merchandise allocation systems and processes that use allocation criteria consumer

segmentation and inventory data in an effort to ensure stores are adequately stocked with products and to differentiate the

needs of each store based on location consumer segmentation and other factors Famous Footwears distribution systems

allow for merchandise to be delivered to each store weekly or on more frequent basis as needed Famous Footwear also

utilizes regional third-party pooled distribUtion sites across the country Famous Footwears in-store point-of-sale systems

provide detailed sales transaction data to our corporate office for daily update and analysis in the perpetual inventory

and merchandise allocation systems Certain of these systems also are used for training employees and communication

between the stores and corporate office

Famous Footwears marketing programs include national television print digital marketing and social networking in-

store advertisements and radio all of which are designed to further develop and reinforce the Famous Footwear concept

and strengthen our connection with consumers We believe the success of our campaigns is attributable to highlighting

key categories and tailoring the timing of such messaging to adapt to seasonal shopping patterns In 2012 we spent

approximately $55.9 million to advertise and market Famous Footwear to our target consumer portion of which was

recovered from suppliers Famous Footwear has robust loyalty program Rewards which informs and rewards frequent

consumers with product previews earned incentives based upon purchase continuity and other periodic promotional

offers In 2012 approximately 66% of our Famous Footwear net sales were generated by our Rewards members During the

year we expanded our efforts to connect with and engage our customers to build strong brand preference for Famous

Footwear through our loyalty program In 2013 we will continue to seek new and expand existing channels for consumers

to connect with Famous Footwear beyond email Facebook Twitter YouTube and proprietary mobile applications to drive

our fans from the digital world into profitable and loyal consumers in our omni-channel selling environments

Specialty Retail

Our Specialty Retail segment composed of 222 stores as of February 2013 includes the following retail concepts Shoes.com

and our other e-commerce businesses with the exception of Famous.com which is included in the Famous Footwear segment

Naturalizer

Naturalizer retail stores are showcase for our Naturalizer brand of womens shoes These stores are designed and

merchandised to appeal to the Naturalizer consumer who is style and comfort conscious and seeks quality and value in her

footwear selections The Naturalizer stores offer selection of womens footwear styles including casual dress sandals and

boots primarily under the Naturalizer brand Retail price points typically range from $69 for shoes to $199 for boots The

majority of products sold in our retail stores are purchased from our Wholesale Operations segment at customary gross

profit rate

At the end of 2012 we operated 100 Naturalizer stores in the United States including store in Guam and 90 Naturalizer

stores in Canada Of the total 190 stores approximately 55% are located in regional malls with few stores having street

locations and average approximately 1200 square feet in size The other 45% of stores are located in outlet malls and
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average approximately 2400 square feet in size Total square footage at the end of 2012 was 332000 compared to

335000 in 2011 In 2012 we closed 20 stores in the United States and Canada primarily In regional malls and we opened

13 stores primarily in outlet malls We expect to open 10 stores and close 25 stores in 2013

At the end of 2012 through our majority-owned subsidiary BH Footwear Company Limited BH Footwear we also

operated 26 stores in several of Chinas largest cities We expect to open five stores in China in 2013 In addition our joint

venture partner Hongguo International Holdings Limited Hongguo operated 79 stores at the end of 2012 and expects

to add approximately 22 stores in 2013 Naturalizer footwear is distributed through these stores operated by BH Footwear

and Hongguo See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information about 8H Footwear

Marketing programs for our Naturalizer stores have complemented our Naturalizer brand advertising by building on the

brands consumer recognition and value proposition and reinforcing the brands focus on effortless style comfort and

quality Naturalizer utilizes database-marketing program which targets frequent consumers through catalogs and other

mailings that display the brands product offerings Consumers can purchase the products in these catalogs from our

stores online at Naturalizer.com and Naturalizer.ca or by phone

E-Commerce/Dire ct-To-Consumer

We own and operate Shoes.com Inc pure-play internet retailing company Shoes.com offers diverse selection of

footwear and accessories for women men and children including footwear purchased from third-party suppliers and

Brown Shoe Company

In connection with our omni-channel approach to reach consumers we also operate Famous.com included in our Famous

Footwear segment Naturalizer.com Naturalizer.ca and DrSchollsShoes.com which offer substantially the same product

selection to consumers as sold in their respective retail stores except Famous.com which offers an expanded assortment as

result of the vendor drop ship program Additional websites such as ViaSpiga.com LifeStride.com and Ryka.com function

as retail outlets for the online consumer and serve as additional brand-building vehicles for us

References to our website addresses do not constitute incorporation by reference of the information contained on the

websites and the information contained on the websites is not part of this report

Other Store Concepts

At the end of 2012 our Specialty Retail segment also included total of six retail stores operated under the Dr Scholls

Shoes and Sam Edelman names During 2013 we plan on opening one Sam Edelman store

WHOLESALE OPERATIONS

Our Wholesale Operations segment designs sources and markets branded footwear for women and men at variety of price

points Certain of our branded footwear products are developed pursuant to licensing agreements We also receive royalty

revenues for licensing owned brands to third-parties Our footwear is distributed to over 3000 retailers including national

chains department stores independent retailers mass merchandisers online retailers and catalogs throughout the United

States and Canada as well as approximately 60 other countries including sales to our retail segments The most significant

wholesale customers include many of the nations largest retailers national chains such as DSW TJX Corporation including

Ti Maxx and Marshalls Kohls and Ross Stores department stores such as Macys Nordstrom Bon-Ton Belk and Dillards

and mass merchandisers such as Wal-Mart and Target and online retailers such as Zappos.com Amazon.com Piperlime.com

and Famous.com We also sell product to variety of international retail customers and distributors The loss of any one or

more of our significant customers could have material negative impact on our Wholesale Operations and the Company

The vast majority of our wholesale customers also sell shoes purchased from competing footwear suppliers Those

competing footwear suppliers own and license brands many of which are well-known and marketed aggressively Many

retailers who are our wholesale customers are increasing the amount of private brand-name footwear that they source

directly from factories or through agents The wholesale footwear business has low barriers to entry which further intensifies

competition In addition some competitors have successfully branded their trademarks as lifestyle brands resulting in

greater competitive advantage to those companies

In 2012 our Wholesale Operations segment sold approximately 56 million pairs of shoes We sell footwear to wholesale

customers on both landed and first-cost basis Landed sales are those in which we obtain title to the footwear from

our overseas suppliers and maintain title until the footwear clears United States customs and is shipped to our wholesale

customers Landed sales generally carry higher profit rate than first-cost sales as result of the brand equity associated

with the product along with the additional customs warehousing and logistics services provided to customers and the risks

associated with inventory ownership First-cost sales are those in which we obtain title to footwear from our overseas suppliers

and typically relinquish title to customers at designated overseas port Many of these customers then import this product

into the United States To allow for the prompt shipment on reorders we carry inventories of certain high-volume styles
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Marketing

We continue to build on the recognition of our wholesale brands to create differentiation and consumer loyalty Marketing

teams are responsible for the development and implementation of marketing programs for each brand both for us and

for our retail partners In 2012 we spent approximately $21.5 million in advertising and marketing support including

public relations tradeshows consumer media advertising production cooperative advertising advertising agencies and

digital advertising with our wholesale customers The marketing teams are also responsible for driving the development

of branding and content for our brand websites We continually focus on enhancing the effectiveness of these marketing

efforts through market research product development and marketing communications that collectively address the

ever-changing lives and needs of our consumers In 2012 the marketing teams were instrumental in the development and

execution of new product launches including target consumer identification branding positioning and marketing to both

the consumer and trade audiences We intend to continue the growth of our social media presence as we believe increasing

our focus on social media will help drive us into the next generation of marketing allowing us to connect even more

intimately with consumers

Portfolio of Brands

Wholesale Operations offers retailers portfolio of leading brands from our healthy living and contemporary fashion

platforms The following is listing of our principal brands and licensed products

Healthy Living

Naturalizer Introduced in 1927 Naturalizer has become global family of comfort lifestyle footwear brands meeting the

needs of women across the marketplace with uncompromising comfort fit and style Our flagship Naturalizer brand is sold

primarily at Naturalizer retail stores national chains department stores online retailers catalog retailers and independent

retailers The brand is distributed in 60 countries around the world Suggested retail price points range from $69 for shoes to

$199 for boots Naturalizer held the No market share position in the moderate zone within the womens fashion footwear

category across NPD tracked point-of-sale channels at the end of 2012 according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking

Service Natural Soul by Naturalizer provides women with uncompromising value and is sold primarily in national chains our

Naturalizer outlet stores and Famous Footwear retail stores The brand held the No market share position in the moderate

zone within the womens fashion footwear category across NPD tracked point-of-sale channels at the end of 2012 according

to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service Suggested retail price points range from $69 for shoes to $109 for boots

Dr Scholls Shoes Dr Scholls Shoes is an authentic brand of innovative footwear designed with uncomplicated playful style

for healthier life Dr Scholls Shoes delivers proprietary comfort technology across all distribution tiers Dr Scholls Shoes

crafts unique styles that offer men and women the freedom to live active lives of discovery and play with ease inspires them

with designs that express their youthful spirit and champions an optimistic lifestyle of relaxed confidence and spontaneity

This footwear reaches consumers at wide range of distribution channels mass merchandisers national chains on-line and

catalogs specialty and independent retailers and department stores and our Famous Footwear retail stores Suggested price

points range from $25 to $150 Dr Scholls Shoes held the No market share position in the comfort zone within the womens
fashion footwear category across NPD tracked point-of-sale channels defined as department stores national chains athletic

specialty/sporting goods and shoe chains at the end of 2012 according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service We have

long-term license agreement with MSD Consumer Care Inc formerly Schering-Plough Healthcare Products Inc to sell

Dr Scholls Shoes which is renewable through 2026 for the United States and Canada and 2014 for Latin America

LifeStride For more than 70 years LifeStride has created quality footwear for women who value style and comfort Offering

work-to-weekend styles LifeStride is both versatile and comfortable for all-day wear LifeStrides rich history and attention

to comfort create delight at first sight with trend-right styling feminine details and great value With the introduction of

SoftSystem comfort technology LifeStride offers comfortable work-to-weekend footwear that dresses up or down at

the right value The brand is sold in department stores national chains on-line and our Famous Footwear retail stores

Suggested retail price points range from $50 to $100 LifeStride ranked No in market share position in the moderate zone

within the womens fashion footwear category across NPD tracked point-of-sale channels at the end of 2012 according to

The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service

Avia Avia is sports enthusiast and fitness brand offering shoes for serious and recreational athletes The brand is primarily

distributed through national chains mass merchandisers and our Famous Footwear retail stores at retail price points from

$50 to $110 The brand held the No 15 market share position in the athletic zone within the womens footwear category

across NPD tracked point-of-sale channels at the end of 2012 according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service

Ryka Ryka is womens performance lifestyle brand focused on fitness Ryka is managed designed and solely dedicated

to creating womens performance footwear The brand is distributed through department stores specialty retailers and our

Famous Footwear retail stores at retail price points from $45 to $85

Nevados Nevados is focused on satisfying the needs of men and women outdoor enthusiasts The brand is primarily

distributed through national chains and mass merchandisers at retail price points from $35 to $90
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Contemporary Fashion

Sam Edelman Sam captures the imagination of women with on trend styling and unique materials In 2012 the brand

opened its flagship store in New York City The brand is sold primarily through department stores and independent retailers

at suggested retail price points starting at $65 for sandals $90 for flats $100 for heels and $200 for boots Sam Edelman

held the No market share position in the bridge/designer zone within the womens fashion footwear category across NPD

tracked point-of-sale channels at the end of 2012 according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service Sam Edelman was

named brand of the year by Footwear News

Franco Sarto The Franco Sarto brand has loyal career-focused consumer who is passionate about the brands mod.ern

Italian-inspired style fit and quality The brand is sold in major national chains department stores and independent retailers

at suggested retail price points from $79 for shoes to $225 for boots Franco Sarto ranked No in market share position in

the better zone within the womens fashion footwear category across NPD tracked point-of-sale channels at the end of 2012

according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service We have license agreement with Fashion Shoe Licensing LLC to sell

Franco Sarto footwear that expires in 2019

Via Spiga Via Spiga provides chic sophisticated footwear for the cosmopolitan woman who wants to make fashion

statement every day The brand is primarily sold in the bridge/designer zone in premier department stores and upscale

boutiques This brand sells at suggested retail price points from $50 for shoes to $398 for boots The brand held the

No market share position in the bridge/designer zone within the womens fashion footwear category across NPD tracked

point-of-sale channels at the end of 2012 according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service

Fergie and Fergalicious by Fergie We have created two namesake footwear lines in collaboration with entertainment

superstar Fergie Stacy Ferguson to fully capture the multifaceted aspects of Fergies life as an award-winning singer

songwriter and actress Fergie footwear portrays the artists confident individual style in line of sophisticated sexy

footwear with glam rock influence The brand launched in spring of 2009 and is currently being sold at better department

stores boutiques independent retailers and online at retail price points of $60 for shoes to $200 for boots Fergalicious

by Fergie shoes have fun funky attitude inspired by her pop rock persona Fergalicious by Fergie also launched in spring

2009 and is available at Famous Footwear Famous.com and other national chains at retail price points of $40 for shoes to

$100 for boots Fergalicious held the No market share position in the moderate zone within the womens fashion footwear

category across NPD tracked point-of-sale channels at the end of 2012 according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service

We have license agreement with Krystal Ball Productions to sell Fergie/Fergalicious footwear that expires in 2014

Carlos by Carlos Santana The Carlos by Carlos Santana collection of womens footwear is sold at major department stores

national chains and our Famous Footwear stores Marketed under license agreement with legendary musician Carlos

Santana this brand targets trend-conscious consumers with hot fashionable shoes inspired by the passion and energy of

Santanas music Suggested retail price points range from $89 for shoes to $225 for boots Carlos by Carlos Santana holds

the No 16 market share position in the better zone within the womens fashion footwear category across NPD tracked point-

of-sale channels at the end of 2012 according to NPD Group We have license from Santana Tesoro LLC to sell Carlos by

Carlos Santana footwear that expires in 2014 with extension options through 2020

Vera Wang The Vera Wang shoe collection interprets Veras strong edgy attitude and offers the consumer unique product

for her contemporary fashion-savvy lifestyle The brand is sold in the designer section in premier department stores at retail

prices ranging from $150 for shoes to $550 for boots We have license agreement with Vera Wang Licensing LLC to sell

Vera Wang footwear that expires in 2013 with an extension option through 2016

Vince The Vince shoe collection launched in the fall of 2012 at premier department stores and upscale boutiques Vince

delivers contemporary casual footwear that sophisticated modern woman wears effortlessly serving as functional luxury

basic for all her lifestyle needs Suggested price points range from $150 for shoes and $595 for boots We have license

agreement with Kellwood Company to sell Vince footwear that expires in 2015 with an extension option through 2020

Products sold under license agreements accounted for Wholesale Operations net sales of approximately 47% in 2012

37% in 2011 and 44% in 2010 Brown Shoe Company also receives royalty revenues for licensing owned brands including

brands listed above to third-parties

Portfolio Realignment

During 2012 we substantially completed our portfolio realignment initiatives that began in 2011 These portfolio realignment

initiatives included selling The Basketball Marketing Company Inc TBMC markets and sells footwear bearing the AND

brand name which was acquired with American Sporting Goods Corporation ASG exiting certain womens specialty

and private label brands exiting the childrens wholesale business closing two U.S distribution centers closing or relocating

numerous underperforming or poorly aligned retail stores closing facilities in China and other infrastructure changes
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During 2012 we terminated our Etienne Aigner license agreement former license agreement due to dispute with the

licensor In conjunction with the termination the Company recognized an impairment charge of $5.8 million to reduce the

remaining unamortized value of the licensed trademark intangible asset to zero The termination of the Etienne Aigner

license agreement is also considered part .of our portfolio realignment initiatives

Brown Shoe Company Sourcing and Product Development Operations

Brown Shoe Company sourcing and product development operations source and develop footwear for our Wholesale

Operations and Specialty Retail segments and also portion of the footwear sold by our Famous Footwear segment

We have sourcing and product development offices in China Hong Kong Italy Macau St Louis Los Angeles and New York

Sourcing Operations

In 2012 the sourcing operations sourced approximately 52 million pairs of shoes through global network of third-party

independent footwear manufacturers Of the approximate 52 million pairs sourced in 2012 our owned and operated

factories in central China produced approximately six million pairs for our Avia Ryka Dr Scholls Shoes and Naturalizer

brands This structure enables us to source footwear at various price levels from key shoe manufacturing regions of the

world The majority of our footwear sourced is provided by approximately 55 manufacturers operating approximately

80 manufacturing facilities

In certain countries we utilize agents to facilitate and manage the development production and shipment of product

We attribute our ability to achieve consistent quality competitive prices and on-time delivery to the breadth of these

established relationships While we do not have any significant contractual commitments with our suppliers we do enter

into sourcing agreements with certain independent sourcing agents

Prior to production we monitor the quality of all of our footwear components and also inspect the prototypes of each

footwear style We have leading lab testing facilities in our Dongguan Putian and JiangXi China offices which provide high

quality footwear for our customers We also perform random in-line quality control checks during production and before

any footwear leaves the manufacturing facility

In 2012 approximately 97% of the footwear we sourced was from manufacturing facilities in China The following table

provides an overview of our foreign sourcing in 2012

Country Millions of Pairs

China 50.6

All other 1.8

Total 52.4

Product Development Operations

In our Dongguan Putian and JiangXi China offices we operate total of four sample-making facilities with unique and

diverse capabilities By operating these facilities we have greater control over our product development in terms of

accuracy execution and time to market

We maintain design teams for our brands in St Louis Los Angeles New York and China as well as other select fashion

locations including Italy These teams which include independent designers are responsible for the creation and

development of new product styles Our designers monitor trends in apparel and footwear fashion and work closely with

retailers to identify consumer footwear preferences Our design teams create collections of footwear and work closely with

our product development and sourcing offices to convert our designs into new footwear styles

Our long range plans include expanding into new markets outside China developing more progressive processes to improve

factory capacity and material planning and continuing to understand ways to drive excellence in product value and execution

in rapidly changing manufacturing landscape

Backlog

At February 2013 our Wholesale Operations segment had backlog of unfilled orders of approximately $302.0 million

compared to $296.8 million on January 28 2012 Most orders are for delivery within the next 90 to 120 days and although

orders are subject to cancellation we have not experienced significant cancellations in the past The backlog at any

particular time is affected by number of factors including seasonality the continuing trend among customers to reduce

the lead time on their orders and capacity shifts in China Accordingly comparison of backlog from period to period is not

necessarily meaningful and may not be indicative of eventual actual shipments or the growth rate of sales from one period

to the next
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our Internet address is www.brownshoe.com Our Internet address is included in this annual report on Form 10-K as an

inactive textual reference only The information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this annual

report on Form 10-K and should not be considered part of this report We file annual quarterly and current reports proxy

statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC We make available free of charge

our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those

reports filed or furnished as required by Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 through our internet

website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with or furnish it to the SEC You may

access these SEC filings via the hyperlink to third-party SEC filings website that we provide on our website

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is list of the names and ages of the executive officers of the Company and of the offices held by each person

There is no family relationship between any of the named persons The terms of the following executive officers will expire in

May 2013 or upon their respective successors being chosen and qualified

Current PositionName Age

Diane Sullivan 57 President and Chief Executive Officer

Richard Ausick 59 Division PresidEnt Retail

Daniel Friedman 52 Division President Global Supply Chain

Russell Hammer 56 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Douglas Koch 61 Senior Vice President and Chief Talent and Strategy Officer

John Mazurk 59 Division President Healthy Living Brands

Michael Oberlander 44 Senior Vice PrØsident General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

John Schmidt 52 Division President Contemporary Fashion Brands

Mark Schmitt 49 Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer

The period of service of each officer in the positions listed and other business experience are set forth below

Diane Sullivan President and Chief Executive Officer since May 2011 President and Chief Operating Officer from March

2006 to May 2011 President from January 2004 to March 2006

RichardM Ausick Division President Retail since January 2011 Division President Famous Footwear from January 2010

to January 2011 Division President Brown Shoe Wholesale from July 2006 to January 2010 Senior Vice President and Chief

Merchandising Officer of Famous Footwear from January 2002 to July 2006

Daniel Friedman Division President Global Supply Chain since January 2010 Senior Vice President Product Development

and Sourcing from July 2006 to January 2010 Managing Director at Camuto Group Inc from 2002 to July 2006

Russell Hammer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since June 2012 Chief Financial Officer of Orbitz from

January 2011 to June 2012 Chief Financial Officer of Crocs from January 2008 to December 2010

Douglas Koch Senior Vice President and Chief Talent and Strategy Officer since January 2011 Senior Vice President and

Chief Talent Officer from May 2005 to January 2011 Senior Vice President Human Resources from March 2002 to May 2005

John Mazurk Division President Healthy Living Brands since May 2012 Senior Vice President Consumer and Retail

Business Development from January 2010 to May 2012 Senior Vice President and General Manager Naturalizer from 2008

to 2010 Senior Vice President Specialty Retail from 2004 to 2008 and Senior Vice President Stores for Famous Footwear

from 2002 to 2004

Michael Oberlander Senior Vice President General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since March 2006 Vice President

General Counsel and Corporate Secretary from July 2001 to March 2006 Vice President and General Counsel from

September 2000 to July 2001

John Schmidt Division President Contemporary Fashion Brands since January 2011 Senior Vice President Better and

Image Brands from January 2010 to January 2011 Senior Vice President and General Manager Better and Image Brands

from March 2008 until January 2010 Various positions including Vice President President Group President of Wholesale

Footwear for Nine West Group from September 1998 to February 2008

MarkA Schmitt Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer since January 2012 Senior Director of Management

Information Systems for Express Scripts from 2010 through 2011 Various management information systems positions

including Group Director with Anheuser-Busch lnBev from 1996 to 2009
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Economic conditions have adversely impacted and may continue to adversely impact consumer demand for our products

Over the last several years worldwide economic conditions deteriorated in many countries and regions including the

United States Despite some positive trends throughout 2012 business conditions may remain uncertain for the foreseeable

future due in part to cautious consumer spending Consumer confidence and spending are strongly influenced by general

economic conditions including U.S fiscal policy changing tax and regulatory envronment interest rates inflation

consumer debt levels the availability of consumer credit the liquidity of consumers assets health care costs currency

exchange rates taxation gasoline prices real estate values foreclosure rates unemployment trends and the economic

consequences of military action or terrorist activities Negative economic conditions generally decrease disposable income

and consequently consumer purchases of discretionary items like our products Negative trends in economic conditions

also drive up the cost of our products which may require us to increase the price of our products These increases in our

product costs and possibly prices may not be offset by comparable increases in consumer disposable income As result

our customers may choose to purchase fewer of our products or purchase the lower-priced products of our competitors

and our business results of operations financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected

If we are unable to anticipate and respond to consumer preferences and fashion trends and successfully apply new

technology we may not be able to maintain or increase our net sales and earnings

The footwear industry is subject to rapidly changing consumer demands and fashion trends Our products must appeal

to broad range of consumers whose preferences cannot be predicted with certainty and are subject to rapid change

Accordingly the success of both our wholesale and retail operations depends largely on our ability to anticipate

understand and react to changing consumer demands and preferences Our performance athletic and outdoor footwear

brands are subject to additional challenges related to rapid changes in footwear technology the availability of high quality

endorsers and the possibility of negative expert opinions on the unique technologies and designs of our performance

footwear brands If we fail to successfully anticipate and respond to changes in consumer demand and fashion trends

develop new products and designs and implement effective responsive merchandising and marketing strategies and

programs we could experience lower sales excess inventories and lower gross margins any of which could have an adverse

effect on our results of operations and financial condition

We operate in highly competitive industry

Competition is intense in the footwear industry Certain of our competitors are larger and have greater financial marketing

and technological resources than we do others are able to offer footwear on lateral basis alongside their apparel products

and others have successfully branded their trademarks as lifestyle brands resulting in greater competitive advantages to

those competitors Low barriers to entry into this industry further intensify competition by allowing new companies to

easily enter the markets in which we compete In addition retailers aggressively compete on the basis of price which puts

competitive pressure on us to keep our prices low Some of our suppliers further compound these competitive pressures by

allowing consumers to purchase their products directly through supplier maintained Internet sites and retail stores

We believe that our ability to compete successfully in the footwear industry depends on number of factors including

style price performance quality location and service as well as the strength of our brand-names We remain competitive

by increasing awareness of our brands improving the efficiency of our supply chain and enhancing the style comfort

fashion and perceived value of our products However our competitors may implement more effective marketing

campaigns adopt more aggressive pricing policies make more attractive offers to potential employees distribution

partners and manufacturers or respond more quickly to changes in consumer preferences than us As result we may

not be able to compete successfully in the future and increased competition may result in price reductions reduced

gross margins loss of market share .and an inability to generate cash flows that are sufficient to maintain or expand the

development and marketing of our products which could adversely impact our financial results

Our operating results depend on preparing accurate sales forecasts and properly managing our inventory levels

Using sales forecasts we place orders with manufacturers for some of our products prior to the time we receive all of our

customers orders to minimize purchasing costs the time necessary to fill customer orders and the risk of non-delivery

We also maintain an inventory of certain products that we anticipate will be in greater demand However the global

economic slowdown and rapidly changing consumer preferences can make it difficult for us and our customers to

accurately forecast product trends in order to match production with demand If we fail to accurately assess consumer

fashion tastes and the impact of economic factors on consumer spending or to effectively differentiate our retail and

wholesale offerings our inventory levels may exceed customer demand resulting in inventory write-downs higher carrying

costs lower gross margins or the sale of excess inventory at discounted prices which could significantly impair our financial

results Conversely if we underestimate consumer demand for our products or if our manufacturers fail to supply the

quality products that we require in timely manner we may experience inventory shortages Inventory shortages may

delay shipments to customers and possibly require us to offer discounts or costly expedited shipping negatively mpact

retailer and distributor relationships adversely impact our sales results and diminish brand awareness and loyalty
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We rely on foreign sources of production which subjects our business to risks associated with international trade

We rely on foreign sourcing for our footwear products primarily through third-party manufacturing facilities located in

China At times we are the exclusive customer of these third-party manufacturing facilities As is common in the industry

we do not have any long-term contracts with our third-party foreign manufacturers Foreign sourcing is subject to

numerous risks including trade relations disease outbreaks work stoppages transportation delays political instability

foreign currency fluctuations variable economic conditions expropriation nationalization natural disasters terrorist acts

and military conflict and changes in governmental regulations including the US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and climate

change legislation At the same time potential changes in Chinese manufacturing preferences including but not limited

to the following pose additional risk and uncertainty

Manufacturing capacity in China may shift from footwear to other industries with manufacturing margins that are

perceived to be higher

Growth in domestic footwear consumption in China could lead to significant decrease in factory space available

for the manufacture of footwear to be exported

Currently many footwear manufacturers in China are facing labor shortages as migrant workers seek better wages

and working conditions in other industries and vocations

As result of these risks there can be no assurance that we will not experience reductions in the available production

capacity increases in our manufacturing costs late deliveries or terminations of our supplier relationships Furthermore

these risks are compounded by the lack of diversification in the geographic location of our foreign sourcing and

manufacturing With almost all of our supply originating in China substantial portion of our supply could be at risk in

the event of any negative development related to China

Although we believe we could find alternative manufacturing sources for the products that we currently source from

China through other third-party manufacturing facilities in China or other countries we may not be able to locate

alternative manufacturers on terms as favorable as our current terms including pricing payment terms manufacturing

capacity quality standards and lead times for delivery In addition there is substantial competition in the footwear

industry for quality footwear manufacturers Accordingly our future results will partly depend on our ability to maintain

positive working relationships with and offer competitive terms to our foreign manufacturers If supply issues cause us

to be unable to provide products consistent with our standards or manufacture our footwear in cost and time efficient

manner our customers may cancel orders refuse to accept deliveries or demand reductions in purchase prices any of

which could have material adverse effect on our business and results of operations

Customer concentration and other trends in customer behavior may lead to reduction in orloss of sales

Our wholesale customers include national chains department stores independent retailers mass merchandisers online

retailers and catalogs Several of our customers operate multiple department store divisions Furthermore we often

sell multiple types of licensed branded and private-label footwear to these same national chains department stores

independent retailers mass merchandisers online retailers and catalogs While we believe purchasing decisions in many

cases are made independently by the buyers and merchandisers of each of the customers decision by significant

customer to decrease the amount of footwear products purchased from us could have material adverse effect on our

business financial condition or results of operations

In addition with the growing trend toward retail trade consolidation we and our wholesale customers increasingly

depend upon reduced number of key retailers whose bargaining strength is growing This consolidation may result in the

following adverse consequences

Our wholesale customers may seek more favorable terms for their purchases of our products which could limit our

ability to raise prices recoup cost increases or achieve our profit goals

The number of stores that carry our products could decline thereby exposing us to greater concentration of accounts

receivable risk and negatively impacting oUr brand visibility

We also face the following risks with respect to our customers

Our customers could develop in-house brands or utilize higher mix of private label footwear products which would

negatively impact our sales

As we sell our products to customers and extend credit based on an evaluation of each customers financial condition

the financial difficulties of customer could cause us to stop doing business with that customer reduce our business

with that customer or be unable to collect from that customer

If any of our major wholesale customers eperiences significant downturn in its business or fails to remain committed

to our products or brands then these customers may reduce or discontinue purchases from us

Retailers are directly sourcing more of their products directly from manufacturers overseas and reducing their reliance

on wholesalers which could have material adverse effect on our business and results of operations
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We are reliant upon our information technology systems and any major disruption of these systems could adversely impact

our reputation and our ability to effectively operate our business

Our computer network and systems are essential to all aspects of our operations including design pricing production

forecasting ordering manufacturing transportation sales and distribution Our ability to manage and maintain our

inventory and to deliver products in timely manner depends on these systems If any of these systems fails to operate as

expected we experience problems with transitioning to upgraded or replacement systems breach in security occurs or

natural disaster interrupts system functions we may experience delays in product fulfillment and reduced efficiency in our

operations or be required to expend significant capital to correct the problem which may have an adverse effect on our

results of operations and financial condition

disruption in the effective functioning of our distribution centers could adversely affect our ability to deliver inventory

on timely basis

We currently utilize several distribution centers which are leased or third-party managed These distribution centers serve

as the source of replenishment of inventory for our footwear stores operated by our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail

segments and serve our Wholesale Operations segment We may be unable to successfully manage negotiate or renew our

third-party distribution center agreements or we may experience complications with respect to our distribution centers

such as substantial damage to or destruction of such facilities due to natural disasters or ineffective information technology

systems In such an event our other distribution centers may not be able to support the resulting additional distribution

demands and we may be unable to locate alternative persons or entities capable of fulfilling our distribution needs resulting

in an adverse effect on our ability to deliver inventory on timely basis While we maintain business interruption insurance

it may not adequately protect us from adverse effects caused by significant disruptions in our distribution centers

Foreign currency fluctuations may result in higher costs and decreased gross profits

Although we purchase most of our products from foreign manufacturers in United States dollars and otherwise engage

in foreign currency hedging transactions we cannot ensure that we will not experience cost variations with respect to

exchange rate changes For example although we purchase footwear made in China using United States dollars Chinese

manufacturers have been increasing their United States dollar prices to compensate for the appreciation of the Chinese

currency against the United States dollar Currency exchange rate fluctuations may also adversely impact third parties who

manufacture the Companys products by making their purchases of raw materials or other production costs more expensive

and more difficult to finance resulting in higher prices and lower margins for the Company its distributors and licensees

Additional duties quotas tariffs and other trade restrictions may be imposed on our foreign sourced products

adversely affecting our sales and profitability

Our foreign sourced products are subject to duties collected by customs authorities when imported to the United States

or other countries We cannot predict whether additional customs duties quotas tariffs anti-dumping duties safeguard

measures cargo restrictions or other trade restrictions may be imposed on the importation of our products in the future

Such additional charges may result in increases in the cost of our products and may adversely affect our sales and profitability

Our business sales and brand value could be harmed by violations of labor trade or other laws

We focus on doing business with those suppliers who share our commitment to responsible business practices and

the principles set forth in our Production Code of Conduct the PCOC By requiring our suppliers to comply with the

PCOC we encourage our suppliers to promote best practices and work towards continual improvement throughout their

production operations The PCOC sets forth standards for working conditions and other matters including compliance

with applicable labor practices workplace environment and compliance with laws Although we promote ethical business

practices we do not control our suppliers or their labor practices failure by any of our suppliers to adhere to these

standards or laws could cause us to incur additional costs for our products could cause negative publicity and harm our

business and reputation We also require our suppliers to meet our standards for product safety including compliance with

applicable laws and standards with respect to safety issues including lead content in paint failure by any of our suppliers

to adhere to product safety standards could lead to product recall which could result in critical media coverage harm our

business and reputation and cause us to incur additional costs

In addition if we or our suppliers or foreign manufacturers violate United States or foreign trade laws or regulations we may

be subject to additional duties significant monetary penalties the seizure and forfeiture of the products we are attempting

to import or the loss of our import privileges Possible violations of United States or foreign laws or regulations could include

inadequate record keeping of our imported products misstatements or errors as to the origin classification marketing or

valuation of our imported products fraudulent visas or labor violations The effects of these factors could render our conduct

of business in particular country undesirable or impractical and have negative impact on our operating results

We face additional risks relating to operating manufacturing facilities in China

We operate manufacturing facilities in China These manufacturing facilities are subject to many of the same risks as our

third-party foreign sourcing arrangements described above but we may be more directly impacted by any negative
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developments in China with respect to our manufacturing facilities Our operations in China and consequently our ability

to deliver products on time and on terms satisfactory to us may be subject to risks such as the following

inflation or changes in political and economic conditions

unstable regulatory environments

changes in import and export duties

not maintaining appropriate capacity

domestic and foreign customs and tariffs

potentially adverse tax consequences

trade restrictions

possible expropriation and nationalization

restrictions on the transfer of funds into or out of China

natural disasters

labor unrest and/or shortages and

logistical and communications challenges

In addition we lease the land on which these Chinese manufacturing facilities are located from the Chinese government

through land use rights agreements Although we believe that we have positive relationship with the Chinese government

if the Chinese government decided to terminate our land use rights agreements our ability to fulfill our customers orders

may be negatively impacted These risks may have an adverse effect on our Chinese manufacturing operations and our

overall business and results of operations

We may fail to protect the integrity and security of consumer and associate information

We routinely possess sensitive consumer and associate information as well as provide certain customer and employee data

to third-parties for analysis benefit distribution or compliance purposes We have taken reasonable and appropriate steps

to protect that information However hackers and data thieves operate sophisticated large scale attacks that could result in

breach of our security In addition we are required to comply with increasingly complex regulations designed to protect

our business and personal data Any breach of our network security third-partys network security or failure to comply

with applicable regulations may result in the loss of valuable business data and/or our consumers or associates personal

information increased costs associated with implementing additional protections and processes disruption of

our business and loss of sales negative media attention damage to our consumer and associate relationships and

reputation and fines or lawsuits

Our success depends on our ability to retain senior management and recruit and retain other key associates

Our success depends on our ability to attract retain and motivate qualified management administrative product

development and sales personnel to support existing operations and future growth In addition our ability to successfully

integrate acquired businesses often depends on our ability to retain incumbent personnel many of whom possess

valuable institutional knowledge and operating experience Competition for qualified personnel in the footwear industry

is intense and we compete for these individuals with other companies that in many cases have superior financial and

other resources The loss of the services of any member of our senior management the inability to attract and retain other

qualified personnel or the inability to effectively transition senior management positions could adversely affect the sales

design and production of our products as well as the implementation of our strategic initiatives

Our reputation and competitive position are dependent on our ability to license well-recognized brands license our own

brands under successful licensing arrangements and protect our intellectual property rights

Licenses Company as Licensee

Although we own many of our wholesale brands we also rely on our ability to attract retain and maintain good

relationships with licensors that have strong well-recognized brands and trademarks Our license agreements are generally

for an initial term of two to four years subject to renewal and there can be no assurance that we will be able to renew

these licenses Even our longer-term or renewable licenses are typically dependent upon our ability to market and sell

the licensed products at specified levels and the failure to meet such levels may result in the termination or non-renewal

of such licenses Furthermore many of our license agreements require minimum royalty payments and if we are unable

to generate sufficient sales and profitability to cover these minimum royalty requirements we may be required to make

additional payments to the licensors that could have material adverse effect on our business and results of operations

In addition because certain of our license agreements are non-exclusive new or existing competitors may obtain licenses

with overlapping product or geographic terms resulting in increased competition for particular market

Licenses Company as Licensor

We have entered into numerous license agreements with respect to the brands and trademarks that we own While we have

significant control over our licensees products and advertising we generally cannot control their operational and financial

issues If our licensees are not able to meet annual sales and royalty goals obtain financing manage their supply chain
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control quality and maintain positive relationships with their customers our business results of operations and financial

position may be adversely affected While we would likely have the ability to terminate an underperforming license it may

be difficult and costly to locate an acceptable substitute distributor or licensee and we may experience disruption in our

sales and brand visibility Inaddition although many of our license agreements prohibit the licensees from entering into

licensing arrangements with certain of our competitors they are generally not prohibited from offering under other brands

the types of products covered by their license agreements with us

Trademarks

We believe that our trademarks and trade names are important to our success and competitive position because our

distinctive marks create market for our products and distinguish our products from other products We cannot however

guarantee that we will be able to secure protection for our intellectual property in the future or that such protection will

be adequate for future operations Furthermore we face the risk of ineffective protection of intellectual property rights

in jurisdictions where we source and distribute our products some of which do not protect intellectual property rights to

the same extent as the United States If we are unsuccessful in challenging partys products on the basis of infringement

of our intellectual property rights continued sales of these products could adversely affect our sales devalue our brands

and result in shift in consumer preference away from our products We may face significant expenses and liability in

connection with the protection of our intellectual property rights and if we are unable to successfully protect our rights or

resolve intellectual property conflicts with others our business or financial condition could be adversely affected

Our retail business depends on our ability to secure affordable and desirable leased locations without creating

competitive concentration of stores

Our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail segments operate leased retail footwear stores Accordingly the success of our

retail business depends in part on our ability to secure affordable long-term leases in desirable locations and to secure

renewals of such leases No assurance can be given that we will be able to successfully negotiate lease renewals for existing

stores or obtain acceptable terms for new stores in desirable locations In addition opening new Famous Footwear stores

in our existing markets may result in reduced net sales in existing stores as our stores become more concentrated in the

markets we serve As result the number of consumers and financial performance of individual stores may decline and the

average sales per square foot at our stores may be reduced

If we are unable to maintain working relationships with our major branded suppliers our business results of operations

financial condition and cash flows may be adversely impacted

Our Famous Footwear segment purchases substantial portion of its footwear products from major branded suppliers

As is common in the industry we do not have any long-term contracts with our suppliers In addition the success of our

financial performance is dependent on the ability of Famous Footwear to obtain products from our suppliers on timely

basis and on acceptable terms While we believe our relationships with our current suppliers are good the loss of any of

our major suppliers or product developed exclusively for Famous Footwear could have material adverse effect on our

business financial condition and results of operations In addition negative trends in global economic conditions may

adversely impact our suppliers If these third-parties do not perform their obligations or are unable to provide us with the

materials and services we need at prices and terms that are acceptable to us our ability to meet our consumers demand

could be adversely affected

Our quarterly sales and earnings may fluctuate and securities analysts may not accurately estimate our financial results

which may result in volatility in or decline in our stock price

Our quarterly sales and earnings can vary due to number of factors many of which are beyond our control including

the following

Our Famous Footwear retail business is seasonally weighted to the back-to-school season which falls in our third

fiscal quarter As result the success of our back-to-school offering which is affected by our ability to anticipate

consumer demand and fashion trends could have disproportionate impact on our full year results

In our wholesale business sales of footwear are dependent on orders from our major customers and they may

change delivery schedules change the mix of products they order or cancel orders without penalty

Our wholesale customers set the delivery schedule for shipments of our products which could cause shifts of sales

between quarters

Our estimated annual tax rate is based on projections of our domestic and international operating results for the year

which we review and revise as necessary each quarter

Our earnings are also sensitive to number of factors that are beyond our control including manufacturing and

transportation costs changes in product sales mix geographic sales trends consumer sentiment and currency

exchange rate fluctuations

As result of these specific and other general factors our operating results will vary from quarter to quarter and the

results for any particular quarter may not be indicative of results for the full year Any shortfall in sales or earnings from the

levels expected by investors or securities analysts could cause decrease in the trading price of our common stock
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In addition various securities analysts follow our financial results and issue reports on us These reports include information

about our historical financial results as well as the analysts estimates of our future performance The analysts estimates

are based upon their own opinions and are often different from our estimates or expectations If our operating results are

below the estimates or expectations of public market analysts and investors our stock price could decline

Changes in tax laws policies and treaties could result in higher taxes lower profitability and increased volatility in our

financial results

Our financial results are significantly impacted by our effective tax rates for both domestic and international operations

Our effective income tax rate could be adversely affected by factors such as changes in the mix of earnings in countries

with differing statutory tax rates changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities changes in permitted

deductions changes in tax laws interpretations policies and treaties the outcome of income tax audits in various

jurisdictions and any repatriation of earnings from our international operations The occurrence of such events may result in

higher taxes lower profitability and increased volatility in our financial results

Transitional challenges with acquisitions and/or joint ventures could result in unexpected expenditures of time and resources

Periodically we pursue acquisitions of other companies or businesses and/or joint ventures Although we review the

records of acquisition candidates the review may not reveal all existing or potential problems As result we may not

accurately assess the value of the business and may accordingly ultimately assume unknown adverse operating conditions

and/or unanticipated liabilities In addition the business may not perform as well as expected We face the risk that

the returns on acquisitions and/or joint ventures will not support the expenditures or indebtedness incurred to acquire

or launch such businesses We also face the risk that we will not be able to integrate acquisitions and/or joint ventures

into our existing operations effectively without substantial expense delay or other operational or financial problems

Integration may be hindered by among other things differing procedures including internal controls business practices

and technology systems We may need to allocate more management resources to integration than we planned which may

adversely affect our ability to pursue other profitable activities

Our business results of operations financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected by the failure of financial

institutions to fulfill their commitments under our Credit Agreement

Our Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement the Credit Agreement which matures on January 2016 is

provided by syndicate of financial institutions with each institution agreeing severally and not jointly to make revolving

credit loans to us in an aggregate amount of up to $530.0 million in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement

In addition the Credit Agreement provides forup to an additional $150.0 million of optional availability pursuant to

provision commonly referred to as an accordion feature If one or more of the financial institutions participating in the

senior secured revolving credit facility were to default on its obligation to fund its commitment the portion of the facility

provided by such defaulting financial institution might not be available to us

If we are unable to maintain our credit rating our ability to access capital and interest rates may be negatively impacted

The credit rating agencies periodically review our capital structure and the quality and stability of our earnings Any

negative ratings actions could constrain the capital available to our company or our industry and could limit our access to

long-term funding or cause such access to be available at higher borrowing cost for our operations We are dependent

upon our ability to access capital at rates and on terms we determine to be attractive If our ability to access capital

becomes constrained our interest expense will likely increase which could adversely affect our financial condition and

results of operations

We may be unable to gain the expected efficiencies from our key strategic initiatives

In 2011 we conducted review of our portfolio to identify and take action around businesses that either do not fit our

target consumer platforms family healthy living and contemporary fashion or that are underperforming As result of

this review we announced that we would be exiting certain unprofitable portions of our business closing certain stores

and making other infrastructure changes We continue to take actions to respond to this review in an effort to focus on our

target consumer platforms maximize operating efficiency and shareholder value and reduce costs Achievement of our

strategic goals depends in part on our ability to identify develop and execute initiatives appropriately and effectively There

can be no assurance that we will gain the expected efficiencies from our strategic initiatives within targeted timeframe or

within targeted costs

Our ability to grow in the future depends upon among other things the continued success of our efforts to maintain our

brand image and expand our footwear offerings and retail and wholesale distribution channels As our business grows

we may need to improve and enhance our overall financial and managerial controls reporting systems and procedures to

effectively manage our growth We may be unable to successfully implement our current growth strategy or other growth

strategies or effectively manage our growth any of which would negatively impact our business results of operations and

financial condition
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We are subject to periodic litigation and other regulatory proceedings which could result in the unexpected expenditure of

time and resources

We are defendant from time to time in lawsuits and regulatory actions including environmental matters relating to our

business and to our past operations Due to the inherent uncertainties of litigation and regulatory proceedings we cannot

accurately predict the ultimate outcome of any such proceedings An unfavorable outcome could have material adverse

impact on our business financial condition and results of operations In addition regardless of the outcome of any litigation

or regulatory proceedings such proceedings are expensive and will require that we devote substantial resources and

executive time to defend thereby diverting managements attention and resources that are needed to successfully run our

business See Item Legal Proceedings for further discussion of pending matters

Rising insurance costs could adversely affect our results of operations financial condition and cash flows

We self-insure significant portion of our expected losses under our workers compensation employment practices health

disability cyber risk general liability automobile and property programs among others The liabilities associated with the

risks that are retained by us are estimated by considering our historical claims experience and data from actuarial sources

The estimated accruals for these liabilities could be affected if claims differ from the assumptions used and historical

trends Unanticipated changes in the estimates underlying our reserves for these losses such as claims experience

inflation and regulatory changes could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Comprehensive health care reform legislation provisions have become effective which among other things includes

guaranteed coverage requirements eliminates pre-existing condition exclusions and annual lifetime maximum limits

restricts the extent to which policies can be rescinded and imposes new and significant taxes on healthy insurers and

health care benefits Possible adverse effects of the health reform legislation include increased costs exposure to

expanded liability and requirements for us to revise ways in which we conduct business

We are subject to legislative or regulatory initiatives related to global warming/climate change concerns which could

negatively affect our business

There has been an increasingfocus and debate on global climate change including increased attention from regulatory

agencies and legislative bodies This increased focus may lead to new initiatives directed at regulating an unspecified array

of environmental matters Legislative regulatory or other efforts to globally combat climate change could have negative

implications including but not limited to future tax increases increased costs of transportation and utilities and other cost

increases imposed on foreign sources of production all of which could decrease our operating earnings We are unable to

predict the potential effects that any such future initiatives may have on our business

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

There are no unresolved written comments that were received from the SEC staff 180 days or more before the end of

our fiscal year relating to our periodic or current reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

ITEM PROPERTIES

We own our principal executive sales and administrative offices located in Clayton St Louis Missouri

Our retail footwear operations are conducted throughout the United States Canada China and Guam and involve the

operation of 1277 shoe stores including 90 in Canada and 26 in China All store locations are leased with approximately

56% of them having renewal options Famous Footwear operates leased 800000 square-foot distribution center including

mezzanine levels in Lebanon Tennessee and leased 380000 square-foot distribution center including mezzanine level

in Bakersfield California We also operate an owned 150000 square-foot distribution facility in Perth Ontario

Our Wholesale Operations segment utilizes leased office space in New York New York where we also maintain showrooms

for our wholesale brands and leased office space located in Irvine California Los Angeles Our Canada wholesale

division operates from an owned building in Perth Ontario and from leased office space in Laval Quebec We also lease

office space in China Hong Kong Macau and Italy four sample-making facilities in Dongguan Putian and JiangXi China

and we lease two manufacturing facilities in JiangXi China The footwear sold through our domestic Wholesale Operations

is processed through one of two main distribution centers third-party facility in Chino California and 320000 square

foot leased facility in Fontana California During 2012 we began to close our owned Sikeston Missouri distribution center

which has 720000 square feet including mezzanine levels

We own vacant manufacturing facility in Stirling Ontario an office building in Perth Ontario which is leased to third

party building in Denver Colorado which is leased to third-party and undeveloped land in Colorado and New York

See Item Legal Proceedings for further discussion of certain of these properties
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ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business In the opinion of management

the outcome of such ordinary course business proceedings and litigation currently pending will not have material adverse

effect on our results of operations or financial position

We are involved in environmental remediation and ongoing compliance activities at several sites We are remediating

under the oversight of Colorado authorities contamination at and beneath our owned facility in Colorado also known

as the Redfield site and groundwater and indoor air in residential neighborhoods adjacent to and near the property

which have been affected by solvents previously used at the site and surrounding facilities See Note 17 to the consolidated

financial statements for additional information related to the Redfield matter

Our prior operations included numerous manufacturing and other facilities for which we may have responsibility under

various environmental laws to address conditions that may be identified in the future

ITEM MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable

PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE under the trading symbol BWS As of February 2013

we had approximately 3250 shareholders of record The following table sets forth for each fiscal quarter during 2012 and 2011

the high and low sales prices per share of our common stock as reported on the NYSE and the dividends paid per share

2012 2011

Dividends Dividends

_______
Low High Paid Low High Paid

1st Quarter 8.49 $11.30 $0.07 $10.39 $15.77 $0.07

2nd Quarter 8.28 14.24 0.07 8.85 12.79 0.07

3rd Quarter 13.22 16.88 0.07 5.85 10.31 0.07

4th Quarter 14.76 19.64 0.07 7.51 9.72 0.07

Restrictions on the Payment of Dividends

Our Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement the Credit Agreement and our 7.125% senior notes due in 2019

the 2019 Senior Notes limit the amount of dividends that can be declared and paid However we do not believe this

limitation materially restricts the Board of Directors ability to declare or our ability to pay regular quarterly dividends to

our common stockholders

In addition to this limitation the declaration and payment of dividends and the amount of dividends will depend on our

results of operations financial conditions future prospects and other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table represents issuer purchases of equity securities

Fiscal Period

Total Number of Maximum Number

Total Number Shares Purchased of Shares that May

of Shares Average Price as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Purchased Paid per Share Announced Program Under the Program

October 28 2012 November 24 2012 658 $16.11 2500000

November 25 2012 December 29 2012 7456 18.54 2500000

December 30 2012 February 2013 533 17.54 2500000

Total 8647 $18.29 2500000

On August 25 201 the Board of Directors approved stock repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to 2.5 million shares of

our outstanding common stock We can utilize the repurchase program to repurchase shares on the open market or in private transactions

from time to time depending on market conditions The repurchase program does not have an expiration date under this plan no shares

were repurchased during 2012 therefore there were 2.5 million shares authorized to be purchased under the program as of February 2013

Repurchases of common stock are limited under our debt agreements

Reflects shares that were tendered by employees related to certain share-based awards These shares were tendered in satisfaction of the

exercise prce of stock options and/or to satisfy minimum tax withholding amounts for non-qualified stock options restricted stock and stock

performance awards Accordingly these share purchases are not considered part of our publicly announced stock repurchase program
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Stock Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the cumulative total return on our common stock with the cumulative total

return of the following indices the SP SmalICap 600 Stock Index and ii peer group of companies believed to be

engaged in similar businesses Our peer group consists of Genesco Inc Shoe Carnival Inc DSW Inc Skechers U.S.A Inc

Steven Madden Ltd and Wolverine World Wide Inc In October 2012 Collective Brands Inc formerly included in peer

group was acquired by Wolverine World Wide Inc The results of Collective Brands Inc are included within the graph

through the date of acquisition

Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest to each January 31 accordingly share prices are as of the last business day

in each fiscal year The graph assumes that the value of the investment in our common stock and each index was $100

at February 2008 The graph also assumes that all dividends were reinvested and that investments were held through

February 2013 These indices are included for comparative purposes only and do not necessarily reflect managements

opinion that such indices are an appropriate measure of the relative performance of the stock involved and are not

intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future performance of the common stock

$160
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$40

$0

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Among Brown Shoe Company Inc the SP SmaIlCap 600 Index and Peer Group

2/2/2013

Brown Shoe Company Inc SP SmalICap 600 Index /f Peer Group

$100 invested on 2/2/08 in stock or 1/31/08 in index including reinvestment of dividends

Indexes calculated on month-end basis

Copyright 2013 SP division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc All rights reserved

2/2/2008 1/31/2009 1/30/2010 1/29/2011 1/28/2012 2/2/2013

Brown Shoe Company Inc $100.00 $27.81 $76.33 80.90 63.61 $115.00

PeerGroup 100.00 63.27 87.92 115.11 123.75 142.87

SP SmalICap 600 Stock Index. 100.00 57.62 84.98 109.88 138.68 144.54

2/2/2008 1/31/2009 1/30/2010 1/29/2011 1/28/2012
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and

notes thereto and the other information contained elsewhere in this report

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

53 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks

$2598065 $2582824 $2504091 2241968 $2276362

cost of goods sold 1587706 1586184 1500537 1338829 1394126

Gross profit 1010359 996640 1003554 903139 882236

Selling and administrative expenses 918957 937419 922976 859693 851893

Restructuring and other special charges net 24018 23671 7914 11923 54278

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets141 5777 149150

Equity in net loss of nonconsolidated affiliate 216

Operating earnings loss 61607 35550 72664 31523 173301

Interest expense 23382 26141 19647 20195 17105

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 1003
Interest income 322 644 203 374 1800

Earnings loss before income taxes from continuing operations 38547 9050 53220 11702 188606

Income tax provision benefit 11343 326 16160 1259 53793

Net earnings loss from continuing operations 27204 8724 37060 10443 134813

Discontinued operations

Earnings from operations of subsidiary net of tax 1701

Gain on sale of subsidiary net of tax 13965

Net earnings from discontinued operations 15666

Net earnings loss 27204 24390 37060 10443 134813

Net loss earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests 287 199 173 943 1575

Net earnings loss attributable to Brown Shoe company Inc 27491 24589 37233 9500 133238

Operations
Return on net sales 1.1% 1.0% 1.5% 0.4% 5.9%

Return on beginning Brown Shoe company Inc shareholders equity 6.7% 5.9% 9.3% 2.4% 23.9%

Return on average invested capital11 5.5% 2.9% 7.5% 3.6% 17.2%

Dividends paid 12011 12076 12254 12009 11855

Purchases of property and equipment 55801 27857 30781 24880 60417

capitalized software 7928 10707 24046 25098 16327

Depreciation and amortization121 57344 61449 52517 53295 56510

Per Common Share

Basic earnings loss per common share

From continuing operations 0.64 0.20 0.85 0.22 3.21

From discontinued operations 0.37

Basic earnings loss per common share attributable to

Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.64 0.57 0.85 0.22 3.21

Diluted earnings loss per common share

From continuing operations 0.64 0.20 0.85 0.22 3.21

From discontinued operations 0.36

Diluted earnings loss per common share attributable to

Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.64 0.56 0.85 0.22 3.21

Dividends paid 0.28 0.28 0.28 0.28 0.28

Ending Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders equity 9.91 9.83 9.45 9.38 9.31

Financial Position

Receivables net 125683 154022 113937 84297 84252

Inventories net 533275 561797 524250 456682 466002

Working capital 303319 290558 296376 294186 279297

Property and equipment net 146089 131471 135632 141561 157451

Total assets 1171259 1227476 1148043 1040150 1026031

Average net assets131 490245 440774 483398 465057 496979

Borrowings under our revolving credit agreement 105000 201000 198000 94500 112500

Long-term debt 198823 198633 150000 150000 150000

Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders equity 425129 412669 415080 402171 394104

Average common shares outstanding basic 40659 41126 42156 41585 41525

Average common shares outstanding diluted 40794 41668 42487 41649 41525

All data presented reflects the fiscal year ended on the Saturday nearest to January 31 Certain prior-period amounts have been reclassified to conform to

current-period presentation These reclassifications did not affect net earnings loss attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc See Item Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for additional nformation related to the selected financial data above

Return on average invested capital is calculated by dividing operating earnings loss for the period adjusted for income taxes at the applicable

effective rate by the average of each month-end invested capital balance during the year Invested capital defined as Brown Shoe Company Inc

shareholders equity plus long-term debt and borrowings under the Credit Agreement

Depreciation and amortization includes depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of capita jized software intangibles and debt

issuance costs The amortization of debt issuance costs is reflected within interest expensein our consolidated statement of earnings and totaled

$2.6 million in 2012 $2.3 million in 2011 $2.2 million in 2010 $2.2 million in 2009 and $1.6 million in 2008

Average net assets are calculated as the average of each month-end net asset balance during the year Net assets are calculated as the sum of

working capital property and equipment net and capitalized software net

During 2012 we recognized non-cash impairment charge related to an intangible asset of $5.8 million During 2008 we recognized non-cash

impairment charges to goodwill and intangibles totaling $149.2 million

thousands except per share amounts

Operations

Net sales
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Business Overview

We are global footwear company with annual net sales of $2.6 billion that puts consumers and their needs first by

targeting family healthy living and contemporary fashion platforms Our mission is to inspire people to feel good and live

better.. feet first We offer the consumer powerful portfolio of footwear stores and global footwear brands As both

retailer and wholesaler we have perspective on the marketplace that enables us to serve consumers from different

vantage points We believe our diversified business model provides us with synergies by spanning consumer segments

categories and distribution channels combination of talent acquisition thoughtful planning and rigorous execution is

key to our success in optimizing our business and brand portfolio

Retail

In our retail business our focus is on meeting the needs of well-defined consumer by providing an assortment of trend-

right brand-name fashion and athletic footwear at great price coupled with engaging marketing programs and exclusive

products Our family platform includes Famous Footwear which is one of Americas leading family branded footwear retailers

with 1055 stores Our Specialty Retail segment operates 222 retail stores in the United States and Canada primarily under

the Naturalizer name including 26 stores in China Our Specialty Retail segment also includes Shoes.com and our other

e-commerce businesses with the exception of Famous.com which is included in our Famous Footwear segment

Wholesale

Our wholesale business is consumer focused and we believe our success is dependent upon our ability to strengthen

consumers preference for our brands by offering compelling style quality differentiated brand promises and innovative

marketing campaigns Our healthy living and contemporary fashion platforms are comprised of the Dr Scholls Shoes

Naturalizer Sam Edelman Franco Sarto LifeStride Avia Via Spiga Ryka Fergie Carlos Vera Wang Nevados and Vince

brands Through these brands we offer our customers diversified portfolio each designed and targeted to specific

consumer segment within the marketplace We are able to showcase many of our brands in our retail stores leveraging our

wholesale and retail platforms sharing consumer insights across our businesses and testing new and innovative products

Financial Highlights

2012 was year of solid performance We continue to successfully execute and deliver due in part to our portfolio

realignment initiatives In 2012 we hit several milestones at Famous Footwear by achieving record-breaking sales as well

as our highest annual operating profit both on 52-week basis We also strengthened our balance sheet by reducing

short-term borrowings by $96.0 million and reduced our selling and administrative expenses by $18.3 million We

continued to successfully execute and deliver under our portfolio realignment initiatives

The following is summary of the financial highlights for 2012

Consolidated net sales increased $15.3 million or 0.6% to $2598.1 million in 2012 compared to $2582.8 million last

year Net sales of our Famous Footwear segment increased $58.0 million while we experienced decreases at our

Wholesale Operations and Specialty Retail segments of $25.7 million and $17.1 million respectively

Consolidated operating earnings were $61.6 million in 2012 compared to $35.6 million last year

Consolidated net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc were $27.5 million or $0.64 per diluted share

in 2012 compared to $24.6 million or $0.56 per diluted share last year

Our accounting period is based upon traditional retail calendar which ends on the Saturday nearest January 31

Periodically this results in fiscal year that includes 53 weeks Our 2012 fiscal year included 53 weeks while both our

2011 and 2010 fiscal years had only 52 weeks The difference in the number of weeks included in our fiscal years can

affect annual comparisons The inclusion of the 53rd week resulted in an increase to net sales in our retail divisions of

$21.2 million with an immaterial impact on net earnings in 2012

The following items should be considered in evaluating the comparability of our results

Portfolio realignment Our portfolio realignment initiatives include selling The Basketball Marketing Company Inc

TBMC markets and sells footwear bearing the AND brand name which was acquired with American Sporting

Goods Corporation ASG exiting certain womens specialty and private label brands exiting the childrens wholesale

business closing two U.S distribution centers closing or relocating numerous underperforming or poorly aligned

retail stores closing facilities in China and other infrastructure changes The termination of the Etienne Aigner license

agreement is also considered part of the Companys portfolio realignment initiatives We incurred costs of $29.9 million

$19.3 million after-tax or $0.45 per diluted share related to our portfolio realignment initiatives during 2012 In 2011

we sold TBMC for gain of $20.6 million $14.0 million after-tax or $0.32 per diluted share Also in 2011 we incurred

costs related to portfolio realignment initiatives of $19.2 million $12.0 million after-tax or $0.28 per diluted share There

were no corresponding charges in 2010 See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information

Incentive plans Our selling and administrative expenses were higher by $17.6 million during 2012 compared to last

year due to higher anticipated payments under our cash and stock-based incentive plans Our selling and administrative

expenses were lower by $20.6 million during 2011 compared to 2010 due to lower anticipated payments under our cash

and stock-based incentive plans
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Organizational change During 2012 we incurred costs of $2.3 million $1.4 million after-tax or $0.03 per diluted share

related to an organizational change made at our corporate headquarters with no corresponding costs in 2011 or 2010

See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information related to this change
ASG acquisition and integration costs We incurred costs of $0.7 million $0.4 million after-tax or $0.01 per diluted

share during 2012 related to the integration of ASG In 2011 we incurred costs related to the acquisition and integration

of ASG of $6.5 million $4.5 million after-tax or $0.11 per diluted share and in 2010 we incurred costs related to the

acquisition of ASG of $1.1 million $0.7 million after-tax or $0.02 per diluted share All of these costs were recorded

within restructuring and other special charges net See Note and Note to the consolidated financial statements for

additional information

ERP stabilization During 2011 our results were negatively impacted during the stabilization of our new ERP system

implemented in 2010 due to increases in allowances and customer charge backs margin related to lost sales and

incremental stabilization costs We estimate that the impact of these items reduced earnings before income taxes by

$12.8 million $7.8 million after-tax or $0.18 per diluted share net of $3.3 million recovery from third-party service

provider in 2011

Acquisition related cost of goods sold adjustment During 2011 we incurred costs of $4.2 million $2.5 million after-tax

or $0.05 per diluted share associated with the impact to cost of goods sold of the inventory fair value adjustment in

connection with the acquisition of ASG with no corresponding costs during 2012 or 2010 See Note to the consolidated

financial statements for additional information related to these costs

Loss on early extinguishment of debt During 2011 we incurred expenses of $1.0 million $0.6 million after-tax or

$0.02 per diluted share to extinguish our senior notes prior to maturity in 2012 There were no corresponding charges
in 2012 or 2010

Information technology initiatives We incurred expenses of $6.8 million $4.6 million after-tax or $0.10 per diluted

share in 2010 related to the implementation of our ERP system that replaced select internally developed and certain

other third-party applications These expenses were included in restructuring and other special charges net

See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information

Our debt-to-capital ratio as defined in the Liquidity and Capita/Resources Working Capita/and Cash F/ow section decreased

to 41.6% as of February 2013 compared to 49.1% at January 28 2012 primarily due to our $96.0 million decrease in

borrowings under our revolving credit agreement Our current ratio as defined in the LiquidityandCapita/Resources

Working Capita/and Cash F/ow section was 1.65 to at February 2013 compared to 1.55 to at January 28 2012 Inventories

at February 2013 were $533.3 million down from $561.8 million at January 28 2012 primarily driven by tight inventory

management across our wholesale portfolio and the impact of Wholesale Operations brands we are exiting in conjunction

with our portfolio realignment initiatives

Outlook for 2013

Were pleased to have wrapped up strong 2012 However like many other peers we continue to monitor consumer

activity and reaction to changes in tax rates and other economic uncertainties We expect same-store sales at Famous
Footwear will grow in the low single digit percentage range in 2013 and that our Wholesale Operations net sales will

decrease in the low to mid single digit percentage range in 2013

Following are the consolidated results and theresults by segment for 2012 2011 and 2010

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

2012 2011 2010

%of %of %of
mi//ions Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales

Net sales 2598.1 100.0% $2582.8 100.0% 2504.1 100.0%

Cost of goods sold 1587.7 61.1% 1586.2 61.4% 1500.5 59.9%

Gross profit 1010.4 38.9% 996.6 38.6% 1003.6 40.1%

Selling and administrative expenses 919.0 35.4% 937.3 36.3% 923.0 36.9%

Restructuring and other special charges net 24.0 0.9% 23.7 0.9% 7.9 0.3%

Impairment of intangible assets 5.8 0.2%

Operating earnings 61.6 2.4% 35.6 1.4% 72.7 2.9%

Interest expense 23.4 0.9% 26.1 1.0% 19.7 0.8%
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 1.0 0.0%
Interest income 0.3 0.0% 0.6 0.0% 0.2 0.0%
Earnings before income taxes from continuing operations 38.5 1.5% 9.1 0.4% 53.2 2.1%

Income tax provision 11.3 0.4% 0.4 0.1% 16.1 0.6%
Net earnings from continuing operations 27.2 1.1% 8.7 0.3% 37.1 1.5%

Discontinued operations

Earnings from operations of subsidiary net of tax 1.7 0.1%

Gain on sale of subsidiary net of tax 14.0 0.5%

Net earnings from discontinued operations 15.7 0.6%
Net earnings 27.2 1.1% 24.4 0.9% 37.1 1.5%

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 0.3 0.0% 0.2 0.1% 0.1 O.O%
Net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe company Inc 27.5 1.1% 24.6 1.0% 37.2 1.5%
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Net Sales

Net sales increased $15.3 million or 0.6% to $2598.1 million in 2012 compared to $2582.8 million last year Famous

Footwear experienced an increase in net sales during 2012 as compared to last year partially offset by decreases in

Wholesale Operations and Specialty Retail net sales during 2012 Our Famous Footwear segment reported $58.0 million

increase in net sales reflecting 4.5% same-store sales increase on 52-week basis Our Wholesale Operations segment

reported $25.7 million or 3.0% decrease in net sales primarily attributable to brands that we are exiting in conjunction

with our portfolio realignment initiatives The net sales of our Specialty Retail segment decreased $17.1 million primarily

due to lower store count and lower net sales at Shoes.com partially offset by same-store sales increase of 0.6%

Net sales increased $78.7 million or 3.1% to $2.6 billion in 2011 compared to $2.5 billion in 2010 Wholesale Operations

experienced an increase in net sales during 2011 as compared to 2010 partially offset by decreases in Famous Footwear

and Specialty Retail net sales during 2011 Our Wholesale Operations segment reported $116.5 million or 15.4% increase

in net sales excluding $19.7 million of net sales attributable to TBMC that are reflected in net earnings from discontinued

operations primarily as result of the acquisition of ASG during 2011 which contributed $135.5 million in net sales Our

Famous Footwear segment reported $30.2 million decrease in net sales reflecting 1.2% same-store sales decrease and

lower store count The net sales of our Specialty Retail segment decreased $7.6 million primarily due to decrease in

store count partially offset by same-store sales increase of 1.7%

Same-store sales changes are calculated by comparing the sales in stores that have been open at least 13 months

Relocated stores are treated as new stores and closed stores are excluded from the calculation Sales change from new

and closed stores net reflects the change in net sales due to stores that have been opened or closed during the period

and are thereby excluded from the same-store sales calculation E-commerce sales for those e-commerce websites that

function as an extension of retail chain are included in the same-store sales calculation

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased $13.8 million or 1.4% to $1010.4 million in 2012 compared to $996.6 million last year resulting from

higher gross profit rates at our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail segments As percent of net sales our gross profit

rate increased to 38.9% in 2012 from 38.6% last year The increase in gross profit rate was primarily due to lower inventory

markdowns at our Famous Footwear segment Our Specialty Retail segment experienced higher gross profit rate driven

by an increased sales mix of higher-margin footwear Our Wholesale Operations gross profit rate decreased due to higher

inventory markdowns and customer allowances Retail and wholesale net sales were 67.5% and 32.5% respectively in 2012

compared to 66.3% and 33.7% in 2011 Gross profit rates in our retail businesses are higher than in wholesale

Gross profit decreased $7.0 million or 0.7% to $996.6 million in 2011 compared to $1.0 billion in 2010 resulting from lower

gross profit rate at our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail segments As percent of net sales our gross profit rate

decreased to 386% in 2011 from 40.1% in 2010 The decrease in gross profit rate was primarily due to Famous Footwears

lower toning footwear sales and increased promotional activity Our Specialty Retail segment experienced lower gross

profit rate due to lower sales of high-margin products such as toning footwear and boots in 2011 as compared to 2010

Our Wholesale Operations gross profit rate was flat as compared to 2010 While our Wholesale Operations segment

benefited from the acquisition of ASG in 2011 the segment also experienced higher product costs and inventory markdowns

in 2011 Gross profit rate at our Wholesale Operations segment was also negatively impacted by the stabilization of our

ERP system including higher customer allowances chargebacks and air freight charges estimated to be $11.9 million the

impact to cost of goods sold of the inventory fair value adjustment in connection with the acquisition of ASG $4.2 million

and other cost of goods sold adjustments associated with our portfolio realignment $1.6 million Retail and wholesale net

sales were 66.3% and 33.7% respectively in 2011 compared to 69.9% and 30.1% in 2010

We classify warehousing distribution sourcing and other inventory procurement costs in selling and administrative expenses

Accordingly our gross profit and selling and administrative expenses rates as percent of net sales may not be comparable

to other companies

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $18.3 million or 2.0% to $919.0 million in 2012 compared to $937.3 million

last year and increased $14.3 million or 1.6% in 2011 compared to $923.0 million in 2010

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $18.3 million in 2012 compared to last year primarily due to our portfolio

realignment actions partially offset by new store and other investments higher cash and stock-based incentive costs and

the impact of 53rd week in fiscal 2012 As percent of net sales selling and administrative expenses decreased to 35.4%

in 2012 from 36.3% last year

Selling and administrative expenses increased $14.3 million in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to the inclusion of ASGs

selling and administrative expenses $41.2 million and higher information systems related costs associated with our new

ERP platform We also experienced higher selling and merchandising costs partially offset by lower incentive plan costs

due to lower expected payouts under both cash and stock-based plans $20.6 million As percent of net sales selling

and administrative expenses decreased to 36.3% in 2011 from 36.9% in 2010
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Restructuring and Other Special Charges Net

Restructuring and other special charges net increased $0.3 million to $24.0 million during 2012 compared to $23.7 million

last year as result of the following items see Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information

related to these charges and recoveries

Portfolio realignment We incurred charges of $21.0 million in 2012 as compared to $17.2 million during 2011

related to our portfolio realignment initiatives

Organizational changes We incurred costs of $2.3 million 2012 related to corporate organizational changes

with no corresponding costs in 2011

Acquisition and integration related costs We incurred $0.7 million related to the integration of ASG in 2012 as

compared to $6.5 million during 2011 related to the acquisition and integration of ASG

As percent of net sales restructuring and other special charges net remained consistent at 0.9% from 2011 to 2012

reflecting the above named factors

Restructuring and other special charges net increased $15.8 million to $23.7 million during 2011 compared to $7.9 million

in 2010 as result of the following items

Portfolio realignment We incurred charges of $17.2 million during 2011 related to our portfolio realignment initiatives

with no corresponding charges in 2010

Acquisition and integration related costs We incurred $6.5 million of costs during 2011 related to the acquisition

and integration of ASG which we purchased on February 17 2011 with $1.1 million in corresponding charges in 2010

Information technology initiatives We incurred no charges during 2011 related to our ERP system with $6.8 million

in corresponding charges in 2010 Subsequent to going live on our ERP system in the fourth quarter of 2010 all

expenses related to our ERP system were reflected in selling and administrative expenses

As percent of net sales restructuring and other special charges net increased to 0.9% in 2011 from 0.3% in 2010

reflecting the above named factors

Impairment of Intangible Assets

During 2012 the Company terminated the Etienne Aigner license agreement due to dispute with the licensor In

conjunction with the termination the Company recognized an impairment charge of $5.8 million to reduce the remaining

unamortized value of the licensed trademark intangible asset to zero

Operating Earnings

Operating earnings increased $26.0 million or 73.3% to $61.6 million in 2012 compared to $35.6 million last year due

to lower selling and administrative expenses and higher gross profit partially offset by an intangible impairment charge

as discussed above

We reported operating earnings of $35.6 million in 2011 compared to $72.7 million in 2010 due to the increase in

restructuring and other special charges net and selling and administrative expenses and the decrease in gross profit

all partially offset by an increase in net sales as discussed above

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $2.7 million or 10.6% to $23.4 million in 2012 compared to $26.1 million last year and increased

$6.4 million or 33.1% in 2011 compared to $19.7 million in 2010 The decrease in interest expense in 2012 was primarily due

to lower average borrowings under our Credit Agreement as compared to 2011

The increase in interest expense in 2011 was primarily due to higher average borrowings under our Credit Agreement and the

increase in long-term debt in connection with the refinancing of our senior notes in early 2011 as result of the additional

capital needed in connection with our acquisition of ASG and the repurchase of 2.5 million shares of our common stock

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During 2011 we redeemed all of our senior notes due in 2012 We incurred certain debt extinguishment costs to retire

these notes prior to maturity totaling $1.0 million of which $0.6 million was non-cash charges related to unamortized debt

issuance costs and $0.4 million represented cash paid for tender premiums We did not incur such costs in 2012 or 2010

Income Tax Provision

Our consolidated effective tax rate on continuing operations was provision of 29.4% in 2012 compared to 3.6% in 2011

and 30.4% in 2010 Our consolidated effective tax rate is generally below the federal statutory rate of 35% because our

foreign earnings are subject to lower statutory tax rates
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In 2012 we recognized pretax earnings in both our domestic operations and foreign jurisdictions Our overall effective

tax rate was less than the domestic statutory rate due to the mix of earnings in lower rate international jurisdictions

Our foreign tax jurisdictions have lower tax rates than domestic These factors resulted in an overall effective tax

provision rate of 29.4% in 2012

In 2011 we incurred pretax loss in our domestic operations and pretax earnings in foreign jurisdictions Our domestic

effective tax rate was less than the statutory rate due to the impact of non-deductible permanent items applied to the

domestic loss and the impact of the earnings mix between domestic and international tax jurisdictions Our foreign tax

jurisdictions have lower tax rates than domestic These factors resulted in an overall effective tax provision rate of 3.6%

on continuing operations in 2011

In 2010 we experienced pretax earnings in both our domestic operations and foreign jurisdictions This mix of domestic

and foreign pretax earnings resulted in an overall effective tax provision rate of 30.4% in 2010

See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our tax rates

Net Earnings from Continuing Operations

We reported net earnings from continuing operations of $27.2 million in 2012 compared to $8.7 million in 2011 and

$37.1 million in 2010 as result of the factors described above

Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations

During 2011 we sold TBMC which markets and sells footwear bearing the AND brand-name The operations of TBMC
and the gain on sale of this subsidiary were reported as discontinued operations We reported net earnings from

discontinued operations net of tax totaling $15.7 million in 2011 of which $1.7 million related to the operating results

of TBMC net of tax and $14.0 million related to the gain on sale of the subsidiary net of tax

Net Earnings Attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc

We reported net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc of $27.5 million in 2012 compared to $24.6 million

last year and $37.2 million in 2010

Geographic Results

We have both domestic and foreign operations Domestic operations include the nationwide operation of our Famous

Footwear and Specialty Retail footwear stores the wholesale distribution of footwear to numerous retail customers

and the operation of our e-commerce websites Foreign operations primarily consist of wholesale operations in the

Far East and Canada retailing operations in Canada and China and the operation of our international e-commerce

websites In addition we license certain of our trademarks to third parties who distribute and/or operate retail locations

internationally The Far East operations include first-cost transactions where footwear is sold at foreign ports to

customers who then import the footwear into the United States and other countries The breakdown of domestic and

foreign net sales and earnings before income taxes was as follows

2012 2011 2010

Loss

Earnings Before Earnings Before Earnings Before

millions Net Sales Income Taxes Net Sales Income Taxes Net Sales Income Taxes

Domestic $2295.8 $10.5 $2259.9 $11.1 $2179.7 $23.8

Foreign 302.3 28.0 322.9 20.2 324.4 29.4

$2598.1 $38.5 $2582.8 9.1 $2504.1 $53.2

The pretax profitability on foreign sales is higher than on domestic sales because of lower cost structure and the inclusion in

domestic earnings of the unallocated corporate administrative and other costs

We recognized earnings before income taxes both domestically and in foreign jurisdictions in 2012 Our domestic earnings

reflected increases in net sales at our Famous Footwear segment decrease in selling and administrative expenses and an

increase in gross profit all partially offset by an intangible impairment charge

We incurred domestic loss before income taxes and had foreign earnings before income taxes in 2011 Our domestic loss

reflected decreases in net sales at our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail segments decrease in gross profit an increase

in selling and administrative expenses and an increase in restructuring and other special charges net

We had domestic and foreign earnings before income taxes in 2010 primarily as result of the strong sales results in both our

retail and wholesale businesses partially offset by higher selling and administrative expenses portion of which are variable

with higher sales volumes Our performance is primarily attributable to the record sales results and operating earnings gains

within our Famous Footwear segment and sales growth within our Wholesale Operations segment due to capitalization on

key footwear trends
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FAMOUS FOOTWEAR

2012 2011 2010

%of %of %of

mi//ions except sa/es per square foot Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales

Operating Results

Net sales $1514.3 100.0% $1456.3 100.0% $1486.5 100.0%

Cost of goods sold 848.2 56.0% 821.1 56.4% 817.5 55.0%

Gross profit 666.1 44.0% 635.2 43.6% 669.0 45.0%

Selling and administrative expenses 564.2 37.3% 569.9 39.1% 578.6 38.9%

Restructuring and other special charges net 7.8 0.5% 2.8 0.2%

Operating earnings 94.1 6.2% 62.5 4.3% 90.4 6.1%

Key Metrics

Same-store sales change on 52-week basis 4.5% 1.2% 10.5%

Same-store sales change on 52-week basis 62.2 17.3 138.0

Sales from 53rd week 18.1

Sales change from new and closed stores net on 52-week basis 22.3 12.9 15.1

Sales per square foot excluding e-commerce on 52-week basis 199 186 187

Square footage thousand sq ft 7205 7484 7677

Stores opened 55 49 32

Stores closed 89 70 51

Ending stores 1055 1089 1110

Net Sales

Net sales increased $58.0 million or 4.0% to $1514.3 million in 2012 comparedto $1456.3 million last year During 2012

same-store sales increased 4.5% or $62.2 million reflecting improved average retail prices Conversion rate and Customer

traffic partially offset by lower pairs per transaction The impact of the 53rd week in 2012 increased sales by $18.1 million

In addition we saw strong growth from boat shoes athletic shoes and boots As result of the same-store sales increase

sales per square foot excluding e-commerce increased 7.3% to $199 compared to $186 last year Net closed stores resulted

in $22.3 million decrease in net sales due to the relocation of certain stores and the closure of underperforming stores

In 2012 we expanded our efforts to connect with and engage our customers to build strong brand preference for Famous

Footwear through our loyalty program Rewards As result in 2012 approximately 66% of our net sales were to Rewards

members compared to 62% in 2011 and 61% in 2010

Net sales decreased $30.2 million or 2.0% to$1456.3 million in 2011 compared to $1486.5 million in 2010 During 2011

same-store sales decreased 1.2% or $17.3 million reflecting lower consumer traffic and pairs per transaction partially

offset by higher average retail prices and an improved consumer conversion rate The decrease in net sales was also due

to decline in sales of high-margin products such as toning footwear As result of the same-store sales decrease sales

per square foot excluding e-commerce decreased 0.5% to $186 compared to $187 in 2010 Net closed stores resulted in

$12.9 million decrease in net sales due to the relocation of certain stores and the closure of underperforming stores

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased $30.9 million or 4.9% to $666.1 million in 2012 compared to $635.2 million last year due to higher

net sales and gross profit rate As percent of net sales our gross profit rate increased to 44.0% in 2012 compared to

43.6% last year The increase in our gross profit rate was driven by lower inventory markdown requirements resulting

from better aged inventory position

Gross profit decreased $33.8 million or 5.1% to $635.2 million in 2011 compared to $669.0 million in 2010 due to lower

gross profit rate and net sales As percent of net sales our gross profit rate decreased to 436% in 2011 compared to

45.0% in 2010 The decrease in our gross profit rate was driven by lower sales of toning footwear and an increase in

promotional activity

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $5.7 million or 1.0% to $564.2 million during 2012 compared

to $569.9 million last year The decrease was primarily attributable to lower net facilities costs as our portfolio

realignment actions more than offset new store costs and lower marketing expenses partially offset by an

incremental week of expenses associated with the 53rd week and higher expected payouts under both our cash

and stock-based plans As percent of net sales selling and administrative expenses decreased to 37.3% in 2012

from 39.1% last year reflecting higher net sale and the closure of underperforming stores

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $8.7 million or 1.5% to $569.9 million during 2011 compared to

$578.6 million in 2010 The decrease was primarily attributable to lower variable payroll and facilities expenses

and decrease in expected payouts under both our cash and stock-based plans $3.8 million These decreases

were partially offset by higher marketing expenses As percent of net sales selling and administrative expenses

increased to 391% in 2011 from 38.9% in 2010 reflecting the lower net sales volume
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Restructuring and Other Special Charges Net

We incurred restructuring and other special charges net of $7.8 million during 2012 as result of our portfolio

realignment initiatives which included closing or relocating underperforming or poorly aligned stores and closing our

Sun Prairie Wisconsin distribution center

During 2011 we incurred restructuring and other special charges net of $2.8 million related to the closure of our

Sun Prairie Wisconsin distribution center with no corresponding charges in 2010

Operating Earnings

Operating earnings increased $31.6 million or 50.5% to $94.1 million for 2012 compared to $62.5 million last year The

increase is the result of higher net sales an increase in gross profit rate and decrease selling and administrative expenses

partially offset by higher restructuring and other special charges net as described above As percent of net sales

operating earnings increased to 6.2% in 2012 compared to 4.3% last year

Operating earnings decreased $27.9 million or 30.9% to $62.5 million for 2011 compared to $90.4 million for 2010

The decrease is the result of lower gross profit lower net sales and higher restructuring and other special charges

net partially offset by decrease in selling and administrative expenses as described above As percent of net sales

operating earnings decreased to 4.3% in 2011 compared to 6.1% in 2010

WHOLESALE OPERATIONS

2012 2011 2010

%of %of %of

mi/lions Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales

Operating Result

Netsales $845.2 100.0% $870.9 100.0% $754.4 100.0%

cost of goods sold 599.6 70.9% 614.6 70.6% 532.4 70.6%

Gross profit 245.6 29.1% 256.3 29.4% 222.0 29.4%

Selling and administrative expenses 212.9 25.2% 226.6 26.0% 189.1 25.0%

Restructuring and other special charges net 9.3 1.1% 13.0 1.5% 0.7 0.1%

Impairment of intangible assets 5.8 0.7%

Operating earnings 17.6 2.1% 16.7 1.9% 32.2 4.3%

Key Metric

Unfilled order position at year-end 302.0 296.8 243.8

Net Sales

Net sales decreased $25.7 million or 3.0% to $845.2 million in 2012 compared to $870.9 million last year The decrease

was primarily attributable to lower sales of our brands that we are exiting in conjunction with our portfolio realignment

initiatives and our Avia and Vera Wang brands partially offset by increases in our Franco Sarto Sam Edelman Fergie

and LifeStride brands Our unfilled order position increased $5.2 million or 1.8% to $302.0 million at the end of 2012

as compared to $296.8 million at the end of 2011 primarily due to increases in Sam Edelman Dr Scholls Shoes and

LifeStride divisions

Net sales increased $116.5 million or 15.4% to $870.9 million in 2011 compared to $754.4 million in 2010 The increase was

primarily attributable to the acquisition of ASG during early 2011 which contributed $135.5 million in net sales excluding

$19.7 million of net sales attributable to TBMC that are reflected in discontinued operations We also experienced an

increase in net sales in our Fergie Franco Sarto Sam Edelman LifeStride and Vera Wang divisions These increases were

offset by decline in net sales in our Dr Scholls Shoes and Carlos by Carlos Santana divisions

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased $10.7 million or 4.2% to $245.6 million in 2012 compared to $256.3 million last year reflecting

lower sales and lower gross profit rate due in part to higher inventory markdowns and customer allowance requirements

Our gross profit rate decreased to 29.1% in 2012 as compared to 29.4% in 2011 due to higher markdowns

Gross profit increased $34.3 million or 15.5% to $256.3 million in 2011 compared to $222.0 million in 2010 primarily due

to the acquisition of ASG Our gross profit rate was flat at 29.4% in 2011 as compared to 2010 While the segment did

experience higher profit rates from its newly acquired ASG business profit rates were negatively impacted by higher

product costs and inventory markdowns During 2011 we experienced operational challenges related to the stabilization

of our ERP system which we implemented in late 2010 We estimate that the gross profit impact of these items was

reduction of $11.9 million approximately 140 basis points in 2011 including higher customer allowances chargebacks

and air freight charges In addition we recognized incremental cost of goods sold of $4.2 million approximately

50 basis points for the inventory fair value adjustment related to our acquisition of ASG and $1.6 million approximately

20 basis points in costs related to the exit of certain womens specialty and private label brands
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Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $13.7 million or 6.0% to $212.9 million during 2012 compared to

$226.6 million last year due in part to our lower cost structure resulting from exiting certain brands under our portfolio

realignment initiatives partially offset by an increase in anticipated payments under our cash and stock-based incentive

plans $6.8 million and incremental expenses associated with the 53rd week As percent of net sales selling and

administrative expenses decreased to 25.2% in 2012 from 26.0% last year reflecting the above named factors

Selling and administrative expenses increased $37.5 million or 19.8% to $226.6 million during 2011 compared

to $189.1 million in 2010 due primarily to the acquisition of ASG which contributed $41.2 million in operating

expenses and an increase in marketing merchandising and selling expenses The increase was partially offset

by lower expected payouts under both our cash and stock-based plans $8.9 million As percent of net sales

selling and administrative expenses increased to 26.0% in 2011 from 25.0% in 2010 reflecting the higher selling and

administrative expenses from ASG and increased costs related to our ERP system

Restructuring and Other Special Charges Net

Restructuring and other special charges net decreased $3.7 million to $9.3 million with $13.0 million of corresponding

charges last year as result of the following items see Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional

information related to these charges and recoveries

Portfolio realignment We incurred charges of $8.6 million during 2012 related to our portfolio realignment initiatives

compared to $10.5 million in 2011

Acquisition and integration related costs We incurred charges of $0.7 million during 2012 related to the integration

of ASG as compared to $2.5 million of costs during 2011 related to the acquisition and integration of ASG

As percent of net sales restructuring and other special charges net decreased to 1.1% in 2012 from 1.5% last year

reflecting the above named factors

Restructuring and other special charges net increased $12.3 million to $13.0 million in 2011 with $0.7 million of

corresponding charges in 2010 as result of the following items see Note to the consolidated financial statements

for additional information related to these charges and recoveries

Portfolio realignment We incurred charges of $10.5 million during 2011 related to our portfolio realignment with

no corresponding charges in 2010

Acquisition and integration related costs We incurred $2.5 million of costs during 2011 related to the acquisition

and integration of ASG which we purchased on February 17 2011

Information technology initiatives We incurred no charges during 2011 related to our ERP system but incurred

$0.7 million in charges in 2010

As percent of net sales restructuring and other special charges net increased to 1.5% in 2011 from 0.1% in 2010

reflecting the above named factors

Impairment of Intangible Assets

During 2012 the Company terminated the Etienne Aigner license agreement due to dispute with the licensor

In conjunction with the termination the Company recognized an impairment charge of $5.8 million to reduce the

remaining unamortized value of the licensed trademark intangible asset to zero

Operating Earnings

Operating earnings increased $0.9 million or 5.0% to $17.6 million in 2012 compared to $16.7 million last year

The increase was primarily driven by lower selling and administrative expenses and restructuring and other special

charges net partially offset by lower net sales and corresponding gross profit and an intangible asset impairment

charge As percent of net sales operating earnings increased to 2.1% in 2012 compared to 1.9% last year

Operating earnings decreased $15.5 million or 48.1% to $16.7 million in 2011 compared to $32.2 million in 2010

The decrease was primarily driven by higher selling and administrative expenses and restructuring and other

special charges net partially offset by an increase in net sales As percent of net sales operating earnings

decreased to 19% in 2011 compared to 4.3% in 2010
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SPECIALTY RETAIL

2012 2011 2010

%of %of %Of

millions except sales per square foot Net Sales Net Sales Nof Sales

Operating Results

Net sales ................................. $238.5 100.0% $255.6 100.0% $263.2 100.0%

cLo goods sold 139.8 58.6% 150.5 58.9% 150.7 57.2%

Gross prolt 98.7 41.4% 105.1 41.1% 112.5 42.8%

Selling and administrative expenses 103.9 43.5% 112.1 43.9% 118.5 45.1%

Restructuring and other special charges net 3.7 1.6% 0.6 0.2%

Operating loss 8.9 3.7% 7.6 3.0% 6.0 2.3%

Key Metrics

Same-store sales change on 52-week basis 0.6% 1.7% 6.6%

Same-store sales change on 52-week basis 0.8 2.8 10.5

Sales from 53rd week 3.1

Sales change from new and closed stores net on 52-week basis 14.9 10.7 9.7

Impact of changes in Canadian exchange rate on sales 0.4 2.6 6.0

Sales change of e-commerce subsidiary on 52-week basis 5.7 2.3 9.8

Sales per square foot excluding e-commerce on 52-week basis 396 399 381

Square footage thousand sq ft 346 369 417

Stores opened 29 25 15

Stores closed 41 50 38

Ending stores 222 234 259

Net Sales

Net sales decreased $17.1 million or 6.7% to $238.5 million in 2012 compared to $255.6 million last year due to our lower

store count lower net sales at Shoes.com and lower Canadian dollar exchange rate partially offset by an increase in

same-store sales of 0.6% and the impact of the 53rd week On 52-week basis the net sales of Shoes.com decreased

$5.7 million or 7.5% to $69.9 million in 2012 compared to $75.6 million last year We opened 29 stores including

13 Naturalizer stores in China and closed 41 stores including 10 Naturalizer stores in China during 2012 resulting in

total of 222 stores including 26 Naturalizer stores in China at the end of 2012 compared to 234 stores including

23 Naturalizer stores in China at the end of last year Sales per square foot excluding e-commerce decreased 0.9% to

$396 compared to $399 last year due to lower net sales The 53rd week contributed $3.1 million in net sales

Net sales decreased $7.6 million or 2.9% to $255.6 million in 2011 compared to $263.2 million in 2010 due to our lower store

count decrease in sales of toning footwear and decrease in net sales at Shoes.com However same-store sales increased

1.7% and we experienced an increase in the Canadian dollar exchange rate The net sales of Shoes.com decreased $2.3 million

or 2.9% to $75.6 million in 2011 compared to $77.9 million in 2010 reflecting decrease in site visits We opened 25 new stores

including nine new Naturalizer stores in China and closed 50 stores including one Naturalizer store in China during 2011

resulting in total of 234 stores including 23 Naturalizer stores in China at the end of 2011 compared to 259 stores including

15 Naturalizer stores in China at the end of 2010 Sales per square foot excluding e-commerce increased 4.7% to $399

compared to $381 in 2010 due to the closure of underperforming stores as part of our portfolio realignment

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased $6.4 million or 6.1% to $98.7 million in 2012 compared to $105.1 million last year reflecting lower net

sales partially offset by an increase in gross profit rate As percent of net sales our gross profit rate increased to 41.4% in

2012 from 41.1% last year driven by better sales mix of higher-margin footwear

Gross profit decreased $7.4 million or 6.6% to $105.1 million in 2011 compared to $112.5 million in 2010 reflecting lower

net sales and decrease in our gross profit rate As percent of net sales our gross profit rate decreased to 41.1% in 2011

from 42.8% in 2010 due to lower sales of high-margin products such as toning footwear and boots partially offset by an

increased gross profit rate for Shoes.com

Our Naturalizer stores purchase the majority of their inventory from our Wholesale Operations segment In general we
have priced the inventory to recognize customary profit rate on these products in our Wholesale Operations segment

The Specialty Retail segment recognizes an additional profit rate based on the retail sale to the consumer

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $8.2 million or 7.4% to $103.9 million during 2012 compared to

$112.1 million last year primarily resulting from the lower store count partially offset by higher expected payouts

under both our cash and stock-based plans and the impact of the 53rd week As percent of net sales selling and

administrative expenses decreased to 43.5% in 2012 compared to 43.9% last year
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Selling and administrative expenses decreased $6.4 million or 5.4% to $112.1 million during 2011 compared to

$118.5 million in 2010 primarily resulting from the lower store count and lower expected payouts under both our

cash and stock-based plans partially offset by an increase in the Canadian dollar exchange rate As percent of

net sales selling and administrative expenses decreased to 43.9% in 2011 compared to 45.1% in 2010

Restructuring and Other Special Charges Net

We incurred restructuring and other special charges net of $3.7 million during 2012 compared to $0.6 million

last year as result of closing our Via Spiga F.X LaSalle and Brown Shoe Closet stores as part of our portfolio

realignment No restructuring and other special charges were incurred in 2010

Operating Loss

Our operating loss increased $1.3 million or 16.0% to $8.9 million for 2012 compared to $7.6 million for last year

primarily due to decrease in net sales and an increase in restructuring and other special charges net partially offset

by decrease in selling and administrative expenses as described above

Our operating loss increased $1.6 million or 27.8% to $7.6 million for 2011 compared to $6.0 million in 2010 primarily

due to decrease in net sales decline in gross profit rate and an increase in restructuring and other special charges

net partially offset by lower selling and administrative expenses as described above

OTHER

The Other segment includes unallocated corporate administrative and other costs and recoveries The segment reported

costs of $41.2 million $36.1 million and $44.0 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

There were several factors impacting the $5.1 million increase in costs from 2011 to 2012 as follows

Incentive compensation Our selling and administrative expenses were higher by $6.9 million during 2012

compared to last year due to higher anticipated payments under our cash and stock-based incentive plans

Director compensation Our expenses related to director compensation increased $3.2 million during 2012

compared to last year primarily reflecting the impact of the Companys higher share price on certain of the

variable share-based compensation plans

Technology professional services and consulting fees Our selling and administrative expenses were lower by

$2.0 million during 2012 compared to last year

Organizational changes We incurred costs of $2.3 million in 2012 related to corporate organizational changes

with no corresponding costs in 2011

Portfolio realignment costs We incurred costs of $0.9 million during 2012 related to our portfolio realignment

initiatives as compared to $3.3 million in 2011

Acquisition and integration costs We incurred costs of $4.0 million during 2011 related to the acquisition and

integration of ASG with no correspondin costs in 2012

ERP stabilization We incurred professiohal fees of $1.9 million during 2011 to assist with the stabilization of our

ERP platform

Insurance settlement and contingent liabilities During 2011 we resolved certain contingent liabilities related to

legal matters and reversed $1.8 million of the associated accrued liabilities to income In addition we reached

settlement agreement with one of our insurers whereby we recovered $0.8 million of prior expenses paid for

environmental remediation costs The legal contingencies and insurance settlement were recognized as income

There were several factors impacting the $7.9 million decrease in costs from 2010 to 2011 as follows

Incentive plans Our selling and administrative expenses were lower by $7.5 million in 2011 compared to 2010

due to lower anticipated payments under both our cash and stock-based incentive plans

Acquisition and integration costs We incurred costs of $4.0 million during 2011 related to the acquisition and

integration of ASG in February 2011 as compared to $1.1 million in 2010

Portfolio realignment We incurred $3.3 million in costs related to our portfolio realignment in 2011 with no

corresponding costs in 2010

ERP stabilization We incurred professional fees of $1.9 million during 2011 to assist with the stabilization of our

ERP platform

Insurance settlement and contingent liabilities During 2011 we resolved certain contingent liabilities related to

legal matters and reversed $1.8 million of the associated accrued liabilities to income In addition we reached

settlement agreement with one of our insurers whereby we recovered $0.8 million of prior expenses paid for

environmental remediation costs The legal contingencies and insurance settlement were recognizedas income

Information technology initiatives We incurred charges of $6.1 million during 2010 related to the integration of

our ERP system with no corresponding charges in 2011
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RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER SPECIAL CHARGES NET

During 2012 we recorded restructuring and other special charges net of $24.0 million including $21.0 million in

expenses related to our portfolio realignment $2.3 million related to an organizational change and $0.7 million related

to the integration of ASG See the Financial Highlights section above and Note and Note to the consolidated

financial statements for additional information related to these charges and the acquisition and integration of ASG

During 2011 we recorded restructuring and other special charges net of $23.7 million including $17.2 million in

expenses related to our portfolio realignment and $6.5 million in expenses related to the acquisition and integration

of ASG See the FinancIal Highlights section above and Note and Note to the consolidated financial statements for

additional information related to these charges and the acquisition of ASG

During 2010 we recorded restructuring and other special charges net of $7.9 million including $6.8 million in

expenses related to our information technology initiatives and $1.1 million in acquisition-related costs related to

our February 17 2011 acquisition of ASG See the Financial Highlights section above and Note and Note to the

consolidated financial statements for additional information related to these charges and the acquisition of ASG

IMPACT OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES

While we have felt the effects of inflation on our business and results of operations it has not had significant impact on

our business over the last three years Inflation can have long-term impact on our business because increasing costs of

materials and labor may impact our ability to maintain satisfactory profit rates For example our products are manufactured

in other countries and decline in the value of the U.S dollar and the impact of labor shortages in China may result in higher

manufacturing costs Similarly any potential significant shortage of quantities or increases in the cost of the materials that

are used in our manufacturing process such as leather and other materials or resources could have material negative

impact on our business and results of operations In addition inflation is often accompanied by higher interest rates which

could have negative impact on consumer spending in which case our net sales and profit rates could decrease Moreover

increases in inflation may not be matched by increases in income which also could have negative impact on consumer

spending If we incur increased costs that are unable to be recovered through price increases or if consumer spending

decreases generally our business results of operations financial condition and cash flows may be adversely affected In an

effort to mitigate the impact of these incremental costs on our operating results we expect to pass on some portion of cost

increases to our consumers and adjust our business model as appropriate to minimize the impact of higher costs Further

discussion of the potential impact of inflation and changing prices is included in Item 1A Risk Factors

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Borrowings

millions February 2013 January 28 2012 Decrease Increase

Borrowings under Credit Agreement $105.0 201.0 $96.0
Senior Notes 198.8 198.6 0.2

Total debt $3038 $399.6 $95.8

Total debt obligations decreased $95.8 million or 24.0% to $303.8 million at the end of 2012 compared to $399.6 million

at the end of last year due to decrease in borrowings under our revolving credit agreement Interest expense in 2012 was

$23.4 million compared to $26.1 million in 2011 and $19.7 million in 2010

Credit Agreement

On January 2011 Brown Shoe Company Inc and certain of its subsidiaries the Loan Parties entered into Third

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement which was further amended on February 17 2011 as so amended the

Credit Agreement The Credit Agreement matures on January 2016 and provides for revolving credit facility in

an aggregate amount of up to $530.0 million effective February 17 2011 subject to the calculated borrowing base

restrictions and provides for an increase at our option by up to $150.0 million from time to time during the term of

the Credit Agreement the general purpose accordion feature subject to satisfaction of certain conditions and the

willingness of existing or new lenders to assume the increase

On February 17 2011 ASG and TBMC the sole domestic subsidiary of ASG became borrowers under the Credit

Agreement In conjunction with the sale of TBMC on October 25 2011 TBMC ceased to be borrower under the Credit

Agreement See Note to the consolidated financial statements for further information on the acquisition of ASG and

the subsequent sale of TBMC

Borrowing availability under the Credit Agreement is limited to the lesser of the total commitments and the borrowing

base which is based on stated percentages of the sum of eligible accounts receivable and inventory as defined less

applicable reserves Under the Credit Agreement the Loan Parties obligations are secured by first-priority security

interest in all accounts receivable inventory and certain other collateral
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Interest on borrowings is at variable rates based on the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate LIBOR or the prime rate as

defined in the Credit Agreement plus spread The interest rate and fees for letters of credit vary based upon the level of

excess availability under the Credit Agreement There is an unused line fee payable on the unused portion under the facility

and letter of credit fee payable on the outstanding face amount under letters of credit

The Credit Agreement limits the Companys ability to incur additional indebtedness create liens make investments or

specified payments give guarantees pay dividends make capital expenditures and merge or acquire or sell assets In

addition certain additional covenants would be triggered if excess availability were to fall below specified levels including

fixed charge coverage ratio requirements Furthermore if excess availability falls below the greater of 15.0% of the lesser

of the borrowing base or the total commitments and ii $35.0 million for three consecutive business days or an

event of default occurs the lenders may assume dominion and control over the Companys cash cash dominion event
until such event of default is cured or waived or the excess availability exceeds such amount for 30 consecutive days

The Credit Agreement contains customary events of default including without limitation payment defaults breaches

of representations and warranties covenant defaults cross-defaults to other material indebtedness certain events of

bankruptcy and insolvency judgment defaults in excess of certain threshold the failure of any guaranty or security

document supporting the agreement to be in full force and effect and change of control event In addition if the excess

availability falls below the greater of 12.5% of the lesser of the borrowing base or the total commitments and

ii $35.0 million and the fixed charge coverage ratio is less than 1.0 to 1.0 we would be in default under the Credit

Agreement The Credit Agreement also contains certain other covenants and restrictions We were in compliance with all

covenants and restrictions under the Credit Agreement as of February 2013

At February 2013 we had $105.0 million in borrowings outstanding and $9.0 million in letters of credit outstanding under

the Credit Agreement Total additional borrowing availability was $380.6 million at February 2013

$200 Million Senior Notes Due 2019

On May 11 2011 we closed on an offering the Offering of $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% Senior

Notes due 2019 the 2019 Senior Notes We used portion of the net proceeds to call and redeem our outstanding 8.75%

senior notes due in 2012 the 2012 Senior Notes We used the remaining net proceeds for general corporate purposes

including repaying amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement

The 2019 Senior Notes are guaranteed on senior unsecured basis by each of our subsidiaries that is an obligor under

the Credit Agreement Interest on the 2019 Senior Notes is payable on May 15 and November 15 of each year beginning

on November 15 2011 The 2019 Senior Notes mature on May 15 2019 Prior to May 15 2014 we may redeem some or all

of the 2019 Senior Notes at redemption price equal to the sum of the principal amount of the 2019 Senior Notes to be

redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest plus make whole premium After May 15 2014 we may redeem all or

part of the 2019 Senior Notes at the redemption prices expressed as percentage of principal set forth below plus

accrued and unpaid interest if redeemed during the 12-month period beginning on May 15 of the years indicated below

Year Percentage

2014 105.344%

2015 103.563%

2016 101.781%

2017 and thereafter 100.000%

In addition prior to May 15 2014 we may redeem up to 35% of the 2019 Senior Notes with the proceeds from certain equity

offerings at redemption price of 107.125% of the principal amount of the 2019 Senior Notes to be redeemed plus accrued

and unpaid interest thereon if any to the redemption date

The 2019 Senior Notes also contain certain other covenants and restrictions that limit certain activities including among

other things levels of indebtedness payments of dividends the guarantee or pledge of assets certain investments

common stock repurchases mergers and acquisitions and sales of assets Proceeds from the sale of TBMC were reinvested

into our business as allowed by the 2019 Senior Notes As of February 2013 we were in compliance with all covenants

and restrictions relating to the 2019 Senior Notes

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During 2011 we completed cash tender offer for the 2012 Senior Notes and called for redemption and repaid the remaining

notes that were not tendered We incurred loss on the early extinguishment of the 2012 Senior Notes prior to maturity

totaling $1.0 million of which approximately $0.6 million was non-cash
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Working Capital and Cash Flow

February 2013 January 28 2012 Increase Decrease

Working capital $mf/Iions1 $303.3 $290.6 12.7

Debt-to-capital ratio2 41.6% 491% 7.5%
Current ratio 1.651 1.551

Working capital has been computed as total current assets less total current liabilities

Debt-to-capital has been computed by dividing total debt by total capitalization Total debt is defined as long-term debt

and borrowings under the Credit Agreement Total capitalization is defined as total debt and total equity

The current ratio has been computed by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities

Increase Decrease

in Cash and

2012 2011 Cash Equivalents

Net cash provided by operating activities 197.9 48.1 149.8

Net cash used for investing activities 68.7 136.7 68.0

Net cash used for provided by financing activities 108.8 9.9 118.7
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 0.1 0.2 0.3

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 20.5 78.9 99.4

Working capital at February 2013 was $303.3 million which was $12.7 million higher than at January 28 2012 Our

current ratio increased to 1.65 to at February 2013 from 1.55 to at January 28 2012 The increase in working capital

is primarily attributable to lower borrowings under our revolving credit agreement an increase in our cash balance and

higher prepaid expenses and other current assets partially offset by decrease in accounts receivables lower inventory

levels and higher accounts payable Our ratio of debt-to-capital decreased to 41.6% as of February 2013 compared to

49.1% at January 28 2012 reflecting our $96.0 million decrease in total debt obligations driven by our strong cash provided

by operating activities At February 2013 we had $68.2 million of cash and cash equivalents most of which represented

cash and cash equivalents of our foreign subsidiaries

Reasons for the major variances in cash provided used in the table above are as follow

Cash flow from operating activities was $149.8 million higher in 2012 as compared to 2011 reflecting several factors

decrease in accounts receivable in 2012 as compared to an increase in 2011 due to improved customer collections

An increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities in 2012 as compared to decrease in 2011 Accrued expenses

increased in 2012 primarily due to incentive accruals under our cash based incentive plans partially offset by

decrease in reserves related to our portfolio realignment initiatives In 2011 accrued expenses declined as result of

payments under our incentive plans

larger decrease in inventories during 2012 compared to smaller decrease in 2011 primarily due to our Wholesale

Operations segment with better inventory management and brands that we are exiting in conjunction with our

portfolio realignment initiatives and

larger increase in trade accounts payable in 2012 compared to smaller increase in 2011 due to the timing and

amount of purchases and payments to vendors

Cash used for investing activities was lower by $68.0 million reflecting the purchase of ASG and subsequent sale of TBMC
both of which occurred in 2011 In addition our purchases of property and equipment were $27.9 million higher in 2012

as compared to the prior year due to investments in new and remodeled retail stores In 2013 we expect purchases of

property and equipment and capitalized software of approximately $50 million to $55 million primarily related to new and

remodeled retail stores and information technology infrastructure

Cash used for financing activities was $118.7 million lower than last year primarily due to lower borrowings net of

repayments under our Credit Agreement in 2012 as compared to the prior year as well as $25.5 million of common stock

repurchases in 2011

We paid dividends of $0.28 per share in each of 2012 2011 and 2010 The 2012 dividends marked the 90th year of

consecutive quarterly dividends On March 14 2013 the Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.07 per share

payable April 2013 to shareholders of record on March 25 2013 marking the 361st consecutive quarterly dividend to be

paid by the Company The declaration and payment of any future dividend is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and

will depend on our results of operations financial condition business conditions and other factors deemed relevant by our

Board of Directors however we presently expect that dividends will continue to be paid
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
_____

Certain accounting issues require management estimates and judgments for the preparation of financial statements

Our most significant policies requiring the use of estimates and judgments are listed below

Revenue Recognition

Retail sales recognized at the point of sale are recorded net of returns and exclude sales tax Wholesale sales and

sales through our Internet sites are recorded net of returns allowances and discounts when the merchandise has been

shipped and title and risk of loss have passed to the customer Retail items sold through our Internet sites are made

pursuant to sales agreement that provides for transfer of both title and risk of loss upon our delivery to the carrier

Reserves for projected merchandise returns discounts and allowances are carried based on historical experience and

current expectations Revenue is recognized on license fees related to our owned brand-names where we are the

licensor when the related sales of the licensee are made

Gift Cards

We sell gift cards to our consumers in our retail stores and through our internet sites Our gift cards do not have

expiration dates or inactivity fees We recognize revenue from gift cards when the gift card is redeemed by the

consumer or ii the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by the consumer is remote gift card breakage

and we determine that we do not have legal obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift cards to the relevant

jurisdictions We determine our gift card breakage rate based upon historical redemption patterns We recognize gift

card breakage during the 24-month period following the sale of the gift card according to our historical redemption

pattern Gift card breakage income is included in net sales in the consolidated statements of earnings and the liability

established upon the sale of gift card is included in other accrued expenses within the consolidated balance sheets

We recognized $0.5 million $0.6 million and $0.6 million of gift card breakage in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Inventories

Inventories are our most significant asset representing approximately 46% of total assets at the end of 2012 We value

inventories at the lower of cost or market with 86% of consolidated inventories using the last-in first-out LIFO method

An actual valuation of inventory under the LIFO method can be made only at the end of each year based on the inventory

levels and costs at that time Accordingly interim LIFO calculations are based on managements estimates of expected

year-end inventory levels and costs and are subject to the final year-end LIFO inventory valuation

We apply judgment in valuing our inventories by assessing the net realizable value of our inventories based on current

selling prices At our Famous Footwear segment we recognize markdowns when it becomes evident that inventory

items will be sold at retail prices less than cost plus the cost to sell the product This policy causes gross profit rate at

Famous Footwear to be lower than the initial markup during periods when permanent price reductions are taken to clear

product At our other divisions we generally provide markdown reserves to reduce the carrying values of inventories to

level where upon sale of the product we will realize our normal gross profit rate We believe these policies reflect the

difference in operating models between Famous Footwear and our other segments Famous Footwear periodically runs

promotional events to drive sales to clear seasonal inventories The other segments rely on permanent price reductions to

clear slower-moving inventory

We physically count all merchandise inventory on hand at least annually and adjust the recorded balance to reflect the

results of the physical counts We record estimated shrinkage between physical inventory counts based on historical results

Inventory shrinkage is included as component of cost of goods sold

Income Taxes

We record deferred taxes for the effects of timing differences between financial and tax reporting These differences relate

principally to employee benefit plans accrued expenses bad debt reserves depreciation and amortization and inventory

We evaluate our foreign investment opportunities and plans as well as our foreign working capital needs to determine

the level of investment required and accordingly determine the level of foreign earnings that we consider indefinitely

reinvested Based upon that evaluation earnings of our foreign subsidiaries that are not otherwise subject to United States

taxation except for our Canadian subsidiary are considered to be indefinitely reinvested and accordingly deferred taxes

have not been provided If changes occur in future investment opportunities and plans those changes will be reflected

when known and may result in providing residual United States deferred taxes on unremitted foreign earnings

At February 2013 we have net operating loss carryforwards at certain of our subsidiaries We evaluate these

carryforwards for realization based upon their expiration dates and our expectations of future taxable income

As deemed appropriate valuation reserves are recorded to adjust the recorded value of these carryforwards to

the expected realizable value
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We are audited periodically by domestic and foreign tax authorities and tax assessments may arise several years after tax

returns have been filed Tax liabilities are recorded when in managements judgment tax position does not meet the

more-likely-than-not threshold for recognition For tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not threshold tax liability

may be recorded depending on managements assessment of how the tax position will ultimately be settled In evaluating

issues raised in such audits and other uncertain tax positions we provide reserves for exposures as appropriate

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized but are subject to annual impairment

tests We adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ASC Intangibles-Goodwill and Other

ASC Topic 350 Testing Goodwil/for/mpa/rment which permits but does not require company to qualitatively assess

indicators of reporting units fair value when it is unlikely that reporting unit is impaired If after completing the

qualitative assessment company believes it is likely that reporting unit is impaired discounted cash flow analysis is

prepared to estimate fair value If the recorded values of these assets are not recoverable based on either the assessment

screen or discounted cash flow analysis management performs the next step which compares the fair value of the

reporting unit to the recorded value of the tangible and intangible assets of the reporting units Goodwill is considered

impaired if the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit

For 2012 we reviewed goodwill for impairment utilizing discounted cash flow analysis fair-value-based test is applied

at the reporting unit level which is generally at or one level below the operating segment level The test compares the

fair value of our reporting units to the carrying value of those reporting units This test requires significant assumptions

estimates and judgments by management and is subject to inherent uncertainties and subjectivity The fair value of

goodwill is determined using an estimate of future cash flows of the reporting unit and risk-adjusted discount rate to

compute net present value of future cash flows Projected net sales gross profit selling and administrative expense

capital expenditures depreciation amortization and working capital requirements are based on our internal projections

Discount rates reflect market-based estimates of the risks associated with the projected cash flows of the reporting unit

directly resulting from the use of its assets in its operations We also considered assumptions that market participants may
use Both the estimates of the fair value of our reporting units and the allocation of the estimated fair value of the reporting

units are based on the best information available to us as of the date of the assessment

An adjustment to goodwill will be recorded for any goodwill that is determined to be impaired Impairment of goodwill

is measured as the excess of the carrying amount of goodwill over the fair values of recognized assets and liabilities of

the reporting unit We perform impairment tests during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year unless events indicate an

interim test is required The goodwill impairment test performed as of the first day of our fourth fiscal quarter resulted in

no impairment charges Based on the results of our most recent impairment test the fair value of reporting unit exceeded

its carrying value by less than 20% As of February 2013 the goodwill allocated to this reporting unit was $39.6 million

During 2012 we terminated the Etienne Aigner license agreement due to dispute with the licensor and recognized an

impairment charge of $5.8 million to reduce the remaining unamortized value of the licensed trademark intangible asset to

zero Other intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives and are reviewed for impairment if and when impairment

indicators are present See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information related to the

impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Self-Insurance

We are self-insured and/or retain high deductibles for significant portion of our workers compensation employment

practices health disability cyber risk general liability automobile and property programs among others We purchase

varying levels of insurance for losses in excess of our deductibles or self-insured retentions for these categories of loss

At February 2013 and January 28 2012 self-insurance reserves were $12.3 million and $11.5 million respectively We
utilize estimates from third-party actuaries and claims adjusters ii statistical analyses of historical data for our

industry and our Company and Ui our own estimates to determine required self-insurance reserves Our reserves and

assumptions are reviewed monitored and adjusted when warranted by changing circumstances Actual experience may

vary from estimates and result in adjustments to our self-insurance liabilities

Store Closing and Impairment Charges

We regularly analyze the results of all of our stores and assess the viability of underperforming stores to determine whether

events or circumstances exist that indicate the stores should be closed or whether the carrying amount of their long-lived

assets may not be recoverable After allowing for an appropriate start-up period unusual nonrecurring events or favorable

trends we write down to fair value the fixed assets of stores indicated as impaired

Litigation Contingencies

We are the defendant in several claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business We do not believe any of

these ordinary- course-of-business proceedings will have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position

or results of operations We accrue our best estimate of the cost of resolution of these claims Legal defense costs of such

claims are recognized in the period in which we incur the costs See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for

further description of commitments and contingencies

2012 BROWN SHOE COMPANY NC FORM 10-K 39



Environmental Matters

We are involved in environmental remediation and ongoing compliance activities at several sites We are remediating under

the oversight of Colorado authorities the groundwater and indoor air at our Redfield site and residential neighborhoods

adjacent to and near the property which have been affected by solvents previously used at the facility In addition various

federal and state authorities have identified us as potentially responsible party for remediation at certain landfills While

we currently do not operate manufacturing facilities in the United States prior operations included numerous manufacturing

and other facilities for which we may have responsibility under various environmental laws to address conditions that may be

identified in the future See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for further description of specific properties

Environmental expenditures relating to an existing condition caused by past operations and that do not contribute to current

or future revenue generation are expensed Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessments and/or remedial efforts

are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated and are evaluated independently of any future claims recovery

Generally the timing of these accruals coincides with completion of feasibility study or our commitment to formal plan of

action and our estimates of cost are subject to change as new information becomes available Costs of future expenditures

for environmental remediation obligations are discounted to their present value in those situations requiring only continuing

maintenance and monitoring based upon schedule of fixed payments

Business Combination Accounting

We allocate the purchase price of an acquired entity to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon their estimated fair

values at the business combination date We also identify and estimate the fair values of intangible assets that should be

recognized as assets apart from goodwill single estimate of fair value results from complex series of judgments about

future events and uncertainties and relies heavily on estimates and assumptions We have historically relied in part upon the

use of reports from third-party valuation specialists to assist in the estimation of fair values for intangible assets other than

goodwill The carrying values of acquired receivables and trade accounts payable have historically approximated their fair

values at the business combination date With respect to other acquired assets and liabilities we use all available information

to make our best estimates of their fair values at the business combination date

Our purchase price allocation methodology contains uncertainties because it requires management to make assumptions

and to apply judgment to estimate the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities Management estimates the fair value

of assets and liabilities based upon quoted market prices the carrying value of the acquired assets and widely accepted

valuation techniques including discounted cash flows Unanticipated events or circumstances may occur which could affect

the accuracy of our fair value estimates including assumptions regarding industry economic factors and business strategies

Share-based Compensation

We account for share-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718 Compensation Stock Compensation and ASC 505

Equity which require all share-based payments to employees including grants of employee stock options to be recognized

in the consolidated financial statements basedon their fair values The fair value of stock options is calculated by using

the Black-Scholes option pricing formula that requires estimates for expected volatility expected dividends the risk-free

interest rate and the term of the option Stock options generally vest over four years with 25% vesting annually and expense

is recognized on straight-line basis separately for each vesting portion of the stock option award Expense for stock

performance awards is recognized based upon the fair value of the awards on the date of grant and the anticipated number

of shares or units to be awarded on straight-line basis over the three-year service period If any of the assumptions used in

the Black-Scholes model or the anticipated number of shares to be awarded change significantly share-based compensation

expense may differ materially in the future from that recorded in the current period See additional information related to

share-based compensation in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

Retirement and Other Benefit Plans

We sponsor pension plans in both the United States and Canada Our domestic pension plans cover substantially all United

States employees and our Canadian pension plans cover certain employees based on plan specifications In addition we

maintain an unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP and sponsor unfunded defined benefit postretirement

life insurance plans that cover both salaried and hourly employees who had become eligible for benefits by January 1995

We determine our expense and obligations for retirement and other benefit plans based on assumptions related to discount

rates expected long-term rates of return on invested plan assets expected salary increases and certain employee-related

factors such as turnover retirement age and mortality among others Our assumptions reflect our historical experiences and

our best judgment regarding future expectations Additional information related to our assumptions is as follows

Expected long-term rate of return The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical and

projected rates of return for current and planned asset classes in the plans investment portfolio Assumed projected

rates of return for each asset class were selected after analyzing experience and future expectations of the returns

The overall expected rate of return for the portfolio was developed based on the target allocation for each asset class

The weighted-average expected rate of return on plan assets used to determine our pension expense for 2012 was 8.25%
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decrease of 50 basis points in the weighted-average expected rate of return on plan assets would impact pension

expense by approximately $1.5 million The actual return on plan assets in given year may differ from the expected

long-term rate of return and the resulting gain or loss is deferred and recognized into the plans expense over time

Discount rate Discount rates used to measure the present value of our benefit obligations for our pension and other

pcstretirement benefit plans are based on yield curve constructed from subset of high-quality bonds for which the

timing and amount of cash outflows approximate the estimated payouts of the plans The weighted-average discount

rate selected to measure the present value of our benefit obligations under our pension and other postretirement benefit

plans was 4.5% for each decrease of 50 basis points in the weighted-average discount rate would have increased the

projected benefit obligation of the pension and other postretirement benefit plans by approximately $24.8 million and

$0.1 million respectively

See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information related to our retirement and other benefit plans

Impact of Prospective Accounting Pronouncements

Recent accounting pronouncements and their impact on the Company are described in Note ito the consolidated

financial statements

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

At February 2013 we were contingently liable for remaining lease commitments of approximately $0.2 million in the

aggregate which relate to former retail locations that we exited in prior years These obligations will continue to decline

over the next few years as leases expire In order for us to incur any liability related to these lease commitments the current

lessees would have to default

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The table below sets forth our significant future obligations by time period Further information on certain of these

commitments is provided in the notes to our consolidated financial statements which are cross-referenced in this table

Our obligations outstanding as of February 2013 include the following

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than

millions Total lYear Years Years Years

Borrowings under Credit Agreement111 105.0 $105.0

Long-term debt121 200.0 200.0

Interest on long-term debt121 92.6 14.2 28.5 28.5 21.4

Operating lease commitments131 654.5 150.2 233.8 136.8 133.7

Minimum license commitments 15.5 8.2 7.3

Purchase obligations141 674.5 666.5 7.6 0.4

Obligations related to restructuring initiatives151 2.7 2.7

Other16 11.4 1.5 3.2 3.6 3.1

Total171181 $1756.2 $948.3 $280.4 $169.3 358.2

Interest on borrowings is at variable rates based on LIBOR or the prime rate as defined in the Credit Agreement plus spread The interest

rate and fees for letters of credit varies based upon the level of excess availability under the Credit Agreement There is an unused line fee

payable on the excess availability under the facility and letter of credit fee payable on the outstanding exposure under letters of credit

Interest obligations which are variable in nature are not included in the table above See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements

Interest obligations in future periods have been reflected based on our $200.0 million principal value of Senior Notes and fixed interest rate

of 7.125% as of fiscal year ended February 2013 See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements

majority of our retail operating leases contain provisions that allow us to modify amounts payable under the lease or terminate the lease

in certain circumstances such as experiencing actual sales volume below defined threshold and/or co-tenancy provisions associated with

the facility The contractual obligations presented in the table above reflect the total lease obligation irrespective of our ability to reduce or

terminate rental payments in the future as noted See Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements

Purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that specify all significant terms including quantity and price provisions

See Note to the consolidated financial statements for further information related to these obligations

Includes obligations for our supplemental executive retirement plan and other postretirement benefits See Note to the consolidated

financial statements

Excludes liabilities of $1.1 million established pursuant to the provisions of ASC 740 Income Taxes due to their uncertain nature in timing of

payments See Note to the consolidated financial statements

Excludes liabilities of $1.4 million $1.1 million and $4.7 million for our non-qualified deferred compensation plan deferred compensation

plan for non-employee directors and restricted stock units for non-employee directors respectively due to the uncertain nature in timing of

payments See Note and Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

AND FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking

statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Actual results could differ materially

from those projected as they are subject to various risks and uncertainties These risks and uncertainties include without

limitation the risks detailed in Item 1A Risk Factors and those described in other documents and reports filed from time to

time with the SEC press releases and other communications We do not undertake any obligation or plan to update these

forward-looking statements even though our situation may change

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES

The market risk inherent in our financial instruments and positions represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes

in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates To address these risks we enter into various hedging transactions to

the extent described below All decisions on hedging transactions are authorized and executed pursuant to our policies and

procedures which do not allow the use of financial instruments for trading purposes We also are exposed to credit-related

losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to these financial instruments Counterparties to these agreements

however are major international financial institutions and we believe the risk of loss due to nonperformance is minimal

description of our accounting policies for derivative financial instruments is included in Notes and 12 to the consolidated

financial statements

In addition we are exposed to translation risk because certain of our foreign operations utilize the local currency as their

functional currency and those financial results must be translated into United States dollars As currency exchange rates

fluctuate translation of our financial statements of foreign businesses into United States dollars affects the comparability of

financial results between years

INTEREST RATES

Our financing arrangements include $105.0 million of outstanding variable rate debt under the Credit Agreement at

February 2013 We also have $200.0 million in principal value of Senior Notes which bear interest at fixed rate of

7.125% Changes in interest rates impact fixed and variable rate debt differently For fixed rate debt change in interest

rates will only impact the fair value of the debt whereas change in the interest rates on variable rate debt will impact

interest expense and cash flows

At February 2013 the fair value of our long-term debt is estimated at approximately $208.0 million based upon the pricing

of our Senior Notes at that time Market risk is viewed as the potential change in fair value of our debt resulting from

hypothetical 10% adverse change in interest rates and would be $6.5 million for our long-term debt at February 2013

Information appearing under the caption RiskManagementandDerivatives in Note 12 and Fair Value Measurements in

Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as

such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f Under the supervision and with the participation of

our management including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer we conducted an evaluation of

the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on our evaluation

our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that the Companys internal control over

financial reporting was effective as of February 2013 The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

as of February 2013 has been audited by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as

stated in its report which is included herein
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Brown Shoe Company Inc

We have audited Brown Shoe Company Inc.s the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

February 2013 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria The Companys management

is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included

obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk

and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit

provides reasonable basis for dur opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Brown Shoe Company Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of February 2013 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of Brown Shoe Company Inc as of February 2013 and

January 28 2012 and the related consolidated statements of earnings comprehensive income cash flows and

shareholders equity for each of the three years in the period ended February 2013 and our report dated

April 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

7LLP

St Louis Missouri

April 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Brown Shoe Company Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Brown Shoe Company Inc the Company

as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 and the related consolidated statements of earnings comprehensive

income cash flows and shareholders equity for each of the three years in the period ended February 2013

Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial

statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of Brown Shoe Company Inc at February 2013 and January 28 2012 and the consolidated

results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 2013 in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement

schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all

material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Brown Shoe Company Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of February 2013

based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated April 2013 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon

447LLP

St Louis Missouri

April 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

thousands except number of shares and per share amounts February 2013 January 28 2012

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 68223 47682

Receivables net of allowances of $23397 in 2012 and $25851 in 2011 125683 154022

Inventories net of adjustment to last-in first-out cost of $4395 in 2012 and $5006 in 2011 533275 561797

Deferred income taxes 14432

Income taxes 3069 5145

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 42178 32060

Total current assets 772428 815138

Prepaid pension costs 54532 68054

Property and equipment net 146089 131471

Deferred income taxes 1461

Goodwill 39604 39604

Intangible assets net 93024 100986

Other assets 64121 72223

Total assets 1171259 1227476

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement 105000 201000

Trade accounts payable 222742 190611

Employee compensation and benefits 50552 45514

Deferred income taxes 748

Other accrued expenses 90067 87455

Total current liabilities 469109 524580

Other liabilities

Long-term debt 198823 198633

Deferred rent 33711 32361

Deferred income taxes 13862 31136

Other liabilities 29853 27050

Total other liabilities 276249 289180

Equity

Preferred stock $1.00 par value 1000000 shares authorized no shares outstanding

Common stock $0.01 par value 100000000 shares authorized 42896363 and 41970687 shares

outstanding net of 3190432 and 4116108 treasury shares in 2012 and 2011 respectively 429 420

Additional paid-in capital 121593 115869

Accumulated other comprehensive income 884 9637

Retained earnings 302223 286743

Total Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders equity 425129 412669

Noncontrolling interests 772 1047

Total equity 425901 413716

Total liabilities and equity 1171259 1227476

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings
________________________

thousands except per share amounts 2012 2011 2010

Net sales $2598065 $2582824 $2504091

Cost of goods sold 1587706 1586184 1500537

Gross profit 1010359 996640 1003554

Selling and administrative expenses 918957 937419 922976

Restructuring and other special charges net 24018 23671 7914

Impairment of intangible assets 5777

Operating earnings 61607 35550 72664

Interest expense 23382 26141 19647

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 1003
Interest income 322 644 203

Earnings before income taxes from continuing operations 38547 9050 53220

Income tax provision 11343 326 16160

Netearnings from continuing operations 27204 8724 37060

Discontinued operations

Earnings from operations of subsidiary net of tax of $1312 in 2011 1701

Gain on sale of subsidiary net of tax of $6670 in 2011 13965

Net earnings from discontinued operations 15666

Net earnings 27204 24390 37060

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 287 199 173

Net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc 27491 24589 37233

Basic earnings per common share

From continuing operations 0.64 0.20 0.85

From discontinued operations 0.37

Basic earnings per common share attributable to

Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.64 0.57 0.85

Diluted earnings per common share

From continuing operations 0.64 0.20 0.85

From discontinued operations 0.36

Diluted earnings per common share attributable

to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.64 0.56 0.85

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

thousands 2012 2011 2010

Net earnings 27204 24390 37060

Other comprehensive income loss DCI net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustment 475 207 2150

Pension and other postretirement benefits adjustments

net of tax of $5777 $1555 and $2197 in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively 9061 2941 3433

Unrealized loss gain on derivative financial instruments

net of tax of $154 $139 and $63 in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively 402 343 171

Net loss from derivatives reclassified into esrnings net

of tax of $121 $22 and $124 in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively 247 44 233

Other comprehensive loss income net of tax 8741 3535 5987

Comprehensive income 18463 27925 43047

Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 275 160 150

Comprehensive income attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc 18738 28085 43197

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

thousands 2012 2011 2010

Operating Activities

Net earnings 27204 24390 37060

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by used for operating activities

Depreciation 34179 37331 33149

Amortization of capitalized software 13420 13479 10506

Amortization of intangibles 7184 8301 6667

Amortization of debt issuance costs 2561 2338 2195

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 1003

Share-based compensation expense 6489 5633 6144

Tax benefit deficiency related to share-based plans 944 1000 87

Loss on disposal of facilities and equipment 3103 1560 1089

Impairment charges for facilities and equipment 4132 1871 2762

Impairment of intangible assets 5777

Deferred rent 1350 2317 4191
Deferred income taxes benefit provision 3555 112 27229

Provision for doubtful accounts 360 1284 516

Gain on sale of subsidiary net 13965

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of acquired and discontinued operations

Receivables 27984 26298 30088
Inventories 28623 3502 66568

Prepaid expenses and other current and noncurrent assets 9169 2286 9440
Trade accounts payable 32091 13660 10754

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10436 35117 2668

Income taxes 2076 12512 5993
Other net 4636 2255 5350

Net cash provided by used for operating activities 197937 48086 2312

Investing Activities

Purchases of property and equipment 55801 27857 30781

Capitalized software 7928 10707 24046

Acquisition cost 5000 156636

Cash recognized on initial consolidation 3121

Net proceeds from sale of subsidiary 55350

Net cash used for investing activities 68729 136729 54827

Financing Activities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement 805000 1595500 1051500

Repayments under revolving credit agreement 901000 1592500 948000
Proceeds from issuance of 2019 Senior Notes 198633

Redemption of 2012 Senior Notes 150000
Dividends paid 12011 12076 12254

Debt issuance costs 6428 2636
Acquisition of treasury stock 25484
Issuance of common stock under share-based plans net 1700 918 926

Tax benefit deficiency related to share-based plans 944 1000 87
Contributions by noncontrolling interest 378 527

Acquisition of noncontrolling interest 32692
Net cash used for provided by financing activities 108767 9941 57284

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 100 164 570

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 20541 78866 715

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 47682 126548 125833

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 68223 47682 126548

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

Total

Accumulated Brown Shoe

Additional Other Company nc Non

thousands except number of shares Common Stock Paid-In Comprehensive Retained Shareholders controlling Total

and per share amounts Shares Dollars Capital Income Earnings Equity Interests Equity

BALANCE JANUARY 30 2010 42891905 429 152314 177 249251 402171 9056 411227

Net earnings 37233 37233 173 37060

Foreign currency translation adjustment 2127 2127 23 2150

Unrealized gains on derivative financial

instruments net of tax provision of $187 404 404 404

Pension and other postretirement benefits

adjustments net of tax provision of $2197 3433 3433 3433

Comprehensive income 43197 150 43047

Dividends $0.28 per share 12254 12254 12254

Contributions by noncontrolling interests 527 527

Stock issued in connection with acquisition

of the noncontrolling interest 473081 7304 7309 7309

Distribution to noncontrolling interest 31397 31397 8604 40001
Stock issued under employee and director

benefit and restricted stock plans 546300

Tax deficiency related to share-based plans 87 87 87
Share-based compensation expense 6144 6144 6144

BALANCEJANUARY29 2011 43911286 $439 $134270 6141 274230 $415080 829 $415909

Net earnings 24589 24589 199 24390

Foreign currency translation adjustment 168 168 39 207

Unrealized gains on derivative financial

instruments net of tax provision of $161 387 387 387

Pension and other postretirement benefits

adjustments net of tax provision of $1555 2941 2941 2941

Comprehensive income 28085 160 27925

Dividends $0.28 per share 12076 12076 12076

Contributions by noncontrolling interests 378 378

Stock issued under employee and director

benefit and restricted stock plans 559401 425 431 431

Acquisition of treasury stock 2500000 25 25459 25484 25484
Tax benefit related to share-based plans 1000 1000 1000

Share-based compensation expense 5633 5633 5633

BALANCE JANUARY 28 2012 41970687 420 115869 9637 286743 412669 1047 413716

Net earnings 27491 27491 287 27204

Foreign currency translation adjustment 463 463 12 475

Unrealized loss on derivative financial

instruments net of tax benefit of $33 155 155 155
Pension and other postretirement benefits

adjustments net of tax benefit of $5777 9061 9061 9061

Comprehensive income 18738 275 18463

Dividends $0.28 per share 12011 12011 12011

Contributions by noncontrolling interests

Stock issued under employee and director

benefit and restricted stock plans 925676 1709 1700 1700
Tax benefit related to share-based plans 944 944 944

Share-based compensation expense 6489 6489 6489

BALANCE FEBRUARY 2013 42896363 429 121593 884 302223 425129 772 425901

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Brown Shoe Company Inc the Company founded in 1878 and incorporated in 1913 is global footwear retailer and

wholesaler The Companys shares are traded under the BWS symbol on the New York Stock Exchange

The Company provides broad offering of licensed branded and private-label casual dress and athletic footwear products

to women men and children Footwear is sold at variety of price points through multiple distribution channels both

domestically and internationally The Company currently operates 1277 retail shoe stores in the United States Canada
China and Guam primarily under the Famous Footwear and Naturalizer names In addition through its Wholesale

Operations segment the Company designs sources and markets footwear to retail stores domestically and internationally

including national chains department stores independent retailers mass merchandisers online retailers and catalogs

In 2012 approximately 67% of the Companys net sales were at retail compared to 66% in 2011 and 70% in 2010 See

Note for additional information regarding the Companys business segments

The Companys business is seasonal in nature due to consumer spending patterns with higher back-to-school and Christmas

and Easter holiday season sales Traditionally the third fiscal quarter accounts for substantial portion of the Companys

earnings for the year

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned and majority-owned

subsidiaries after the elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests in the Companys consolidated financial statements result from the accounting for noncontrolling

interests in partially-owned consolidated subsidiaries or affiliates Noncontrolling interests represent partially-owned

subsidianes or consolidated affiliates losses and components of other comprehensive income that are attributable to the

noncontrolling parties equity interests The Company consolidates BH Footwear Company Limited BH Footwear
joint venture into its consolidated financial statements Net losses attributable to noncontrolling interests represent the

share of net losses that are attributable to the equity that is owned by the Companys partners Transactions between the

Company and BH Footwear have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements The Company acquired the

final 50% of the outstanding stock of Edelman Shoe Inc Edelman Shoe on June 2010 Prior to that date the equity

interests held by other parties in Edelman Shoe were accounted for as noncontrolling interest Subsequent to June 2010
Edelman Shoe became wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company See Note to the consolidated financial statements for

further information on Edelman Shoe

Accounting Period

The Companys fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period ending the Saturday nearest to January 31 Fiscal years 2012 2011 and

2010 ended on February 2013 January 28 2012 and January 29 2011 respectively Fiscal year 2012 included 53 weeks and

fiscal years 2011 and 2010 each included 52 weeks The impact of the 53rd week in 2012 was an increase to net sales at our

retail segments of approximately $21.2 million The net earnings impact of the 53rd week was immaterial to 2012

Basis of Presentation

Certain prior-period amounts on the consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to current-period

presentation These reclassifications did not affect net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes Actual results could differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be

cash equivalents

Receivables

The Company evaluates the collectibility of selected accounts receivable on case-by-case basis and makes adjustments to

the bad debt reserve for expected losses The Company considers factors such as ability to pay bankruptcy credit ratings and

payment history For all other accounts the Company estimates reserves for bad debts based on experience and past-due

status of the accounts If circumstances related to customers change estimates of recoverability would be further adjusted

The Company recognized provision for doubtful accounts of $0.4 million in 2012 $1.3 million in 2011 and $0.5 million in 2010

Customer allowances represent reserves against our wholesale customers accounts receivable for margin assistance

product returns customer deductions and co-op advertising allowances We estimate the reserves needed for margin

assistance by reviewing inventory levels on the retail floors sell-through rates historical dilution current gross margin levels

and other performance indicators of our major retail customers Product returns and customer deductions are estimated

using historical experience and anticipated future trends Co-op advertising allowances are estimated based on customer

agreements The Company recognized provision for customer allowances of $52.5 million in 2012 $56.1 million in 2011 and

$43.0 million in 2010
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Customer discounts represent reserves against our accounts receivable for discounts that our wholesale customers may take

based on meeting certain order payment or return guidelines We estimate the reserve needed for customer discounts based

upon customer net sales and respective agreement terms The Company recognized provision for customer discounts of

$4.5 million in 2012 $3.8 million in 2011 and $6.9 million in 2010

Inventories

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market with 86% of consolidated inventories using the last-in first-out

LIFO method An actual valuation of inventory under the LIFO method can be made only at the end of each year based

on the inventory levels and costs at that time Accordingly interim LIFO calculations are based on managements estimates

of expected year-end inventory levels and costs and are subject to the final year-end LIFO inventory valuation If the first-in

first-out FIFO method had been used consolidated inventories would have been $4.4 million and $5.0 million higher at

February 2013 and January 28 2012 respectively Substantially all inventory is finished goods

The costs of inventory inbound freight and duties markdowns shrinkage and royalty expense are classified in cost of

goods sold Costs of warehousing and distribution are classified in selling and administrative expenses and are expensed

as incurred Such warehousing and distribution costs totaled $79.1 million $76.5 million and $65.0 million in 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively Costs of overseas sourcing offices and other inventory procurement costs are reflected in selling and

administrative expenses and are expensed as incurred Such sourcing and procurement costs totaled $24.3 million

$21.7 million and $21.3 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

The Company applies judgment in valuing inventories by assessing the net realizable value of inventories based on current

selling prices At the Famous Footwear segment markdowns are recognized when it becomes evident that inventory items

will be sold at retail prices less than cost plus the cost to sell the product This policy causes gross profit rate at Famous

Footwear to be lower than the initial markup during periods when permanent price reductions are taken to clear product

At the Companys other divisions generally markdown reserves reduce the carrying values of inventories to level where

upon sale of the product the Company will realize its normal gross profit rate The Company believes these policies reflect

the difference in operating models between Famous Footwear and other segments Famous Footwear periodically runs

promotional events to drive sales to clear seasonal inventories The other segments rely on permanent price reductions to

clear slower-moving inventory

Markdowns are recorded to reflect expected adjustments to sales prices In determining markdowns management considers

current and recently recorded sales prices the length of time the product is held in inventory and quantities of various

product styles contained in inventory among other factors The ultimate amount realized from the sale of certain products

could differ from management estimates The Company physically counts all merchandise inventory on hand at least

annually and adjusts the recorded balance to reflect the results of the physical counts The Company records estimated

shrinkage between physical inventory counts based on historical results

Computer Software Costs

The Company capitalizes certain costs in other assets including internal payroll costs incurred in connection with the

development or acquisition of software for internal use Other assets on the consolidated balance sheets include $53.7 million

and $59.4 million of unamortized computer software costs as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 respectively

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation of property and equipment is provided over the estimated useful

lives of the assets or the remaining lease terms where applicable using the straight-line method

Interest

Capitalized Interest

Interest costs applicable to major asset additions are capitalized during the construction or development period and

amortized over the lives of the related assets The Company did not capitalize interest in 2012 In 2011 and 2010 the

Company capitalized interest of less than $0.1 million and $1.3 million respectively

Interest Expense

Interest expense includes interest for borrowings under both the Companys short-term and long-term debt Interest

expense includes fees paid under the short-term revolving credit agreement for the unused portion of its line of credit

Interest expense also includes the amortization of deferred debt issuance costs as well as the accretion of certain discounted

noncurrent liabilities

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized but are subject to annual impairment tests

The Company adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ASC Intangibles-Goodwill and Other

ASC Topic 350 Testing Goodwill for Impairment which permits but does not require company to qualitatively assess

indicators of reporting units fair value when it is unlikely that reporting unit is impaired If after completing the

qualitative assessment company believes it is likely that reporting unit is impaired discounted cash flow analysis is

prepared to estimate fair value If the recorded values of these assets are not recoverable based on either the assessment

screen or discounted cash flow analysis management performs the next step which compares the fair value of the reporting

unit to the recorded value of the tangible and intangible assets of the reporting units Goodwill is considered impaired if the

fair value of the tangible and intangible assets exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit

The Company reviewed goodwill for impairment utilizing discounted cash flow analysis fair-value-based test is applied

at the reporting unit level which is generally at or one level below the operating segment level The test compares the

fair value of the Companys reporting units to the carrying value of those reporting units This test requires significant

assumptions estimates and judgments by management and is subject to inherent uncertainties and subjectivity The fair

value of goodwill is determined using an estimate of future cash flows of the reporting unit and risk-adjusted discount rate

to compute net present value of future cash flows Projected net sales gross profit selling and administrative expense

capital expenditures depreciation amortization and working capital requirements are based on the Companys internal
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projections Discount rates reflect market-based estimates of the risks associated with the projected cash flows of the

reporting unit directly resulting from the use of its assets in its operations The Company also considered assumptions that

market participants may use Both the estimates of the fair value of the Companys reporting units and the allocation of the

estimated fair value of the reporting units are based on the best information available to the Companys management as of

the date of the assessment

An adjustment to goodwill will be recorded for any goodwill that is determined to be impaired Impairment of goodwill is

measured as the excess of the carrying amount of goodwill over the fair values of recognized assets and liabilities of the

reporting unit The Company performs impairment tests during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year unless events indicate

an interim test is required The goodwill impairment test performed as of the first day of the Companys fourth fiscal quarter

resulted in no impairment charges Based on the results of the Companys most recent impairment test the fair value of

reporting unit exceeded its carrying value by less than 20% As of February 2013 the goodwill allocated to the reporting

unit was $39.6 million Other intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives and are reviewed for impairment if and

when impairment indicators are present

Self-Insurance Reserves

The Company is self-insured and/or retains high deductibles for significant portion of its workers compensation

employment practices health disability cyber risk general liability automobile and property programs among others

Liabilities associated with the risks that are retained by the Company are estimated by considering historical claims

experience trends of the Company and the industry and other actuarial assumptions The estimated accruals for these

liabilities could be affected if development of costs on claims differ from these assumptions and historical trends Based

on information known at February 2013 the Company believes it has provided adequate reserves for its self-insurance

exposure As of February 2013 and January 28 2012 self-insurance reserves were $12.3 million and $11.5 million respectively

Revenue Recognition

Retail sales recognized at the point of sale are recorded net of returns and exclude sales tax Wholesale sales and sales

through the Companys internet sites are recorded net of returns allowances and discounts when the merchandise has

been shipped and title and risk of loss have passed to the customer Retail items sold through the Companys internet sites

are made pursuant to sales agreement that provides for transfer of both title and risk of loss upon delivery to the carrier

Reserves for projected merchandise returns discounts and allowances are determined based on historical experience and

current expectations Revenue is recognized on license fees related to Company-owned brand-names where the Company is

the licensor when the related sales of the licensee are made

Gift Cards

The Company sells gift cards to its consumers in its retail stores and through its internet sites The Companys gift cards

do not have expiration dates or inactivity fees The Company recognizes revenue from gift cards when the gift card is

redeemed by the consumer or ii the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by the consumer is remote gift card

breakage and the Company determines that it does not have legal obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift cards

to the relevant jurisdictions The Company determines its gift card breakage rate based upon historical redemption patterns

The Company recognizes gift card breakage during the 24-month period following the sale of the gift card according

to the Companys historical redemption pattern Gift card breakage income is included in net sales in the consolidated

statements of earnings and the liability established upon the sale of gift card is included in other accrued expenses within

the consolidated balance sheets The Company recognized $0.5 million $0.6 million and $0.6 million of gift card breakage in

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Loyalty Program
The Company maintains loyalty program Rewards for Famous Footwear stores in which consumers earn points

toward savings certificates for qualifying purchases Upon reaching specified point values consumers are issued savings

certificate which they may redeem for purchases at Famous Footwear stores In addition to the savings certificates the

Company also offers exclusive member mailings that offer additional incentives to purchase Savings certificates earned

must be redeemed within stated expiration dates The value of points and rewards earned by Famous Footwears Rewards

program members are recorded as reduction of net sales and liability is established within other accrued expenses at

the time the points are earned based on historical conversion and redemption rates Approximately 66% of net sales in the

Companys Famous Footwear segment were made to its Rewards members in 2012 compared to 62% in 2011 and 61% in 2010

Store Closing and Impairment Charges

The costs of closing stores including lease termination costs property and equipment write-offs and severance as applicable

are recorded when the store is closed or when binding agreement is reached with the landlord to close the store

The Company regularly analyzes the results of all of its stores and assesses the viability of underperforming stores to

determine whether events or circumstances exist that indicate the stores should be closed or whether the carrying amount of

their long-lived assets may not be recoverable After allowing for an appropriate start-up period unusual nonrecurring events

or favorable trends property and equipment at1 stores indicated as impaired are written down to fair value using primarily

discounted cash flow method The Company recorded asset impairment charges primarily related to underperforming retail

stores of $4.1 million in 2012 $1.9 million in 2011 and $2.8 million in 2010

Advertising and Marketing Expense
All advertising and marketing costs are expensed at the time the expense is incurred or the promotion first appears in

media or in the store except for direct response advertising that relates primarily to the production and distribution of the

Companys catalogs and coupon mailers Direct response advertising costs are amortized over the expected future revenue

stream which is one to three months from the date materials are mailed

In addition the Company participates in co-op advertising programs with certain of its wholesale customers For those

co-op advertising programs where the Company has validated the fair value of the advertising received co-op advertising

costs are reflected as advertising expense within selling and administrative expenses Otherwise co-op advertising costs are

reflected as reduction of net sales
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Total advertising and marketing expense was $86.2 million $94.8 million and $91.4 million in 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively In 2012 2011 and 2010 these costs were offset by co-op advertising allowances recovered by the Companys
retail divisions of $8.6 million $7.8 million and $9.4 million respectively Total co-op advertising costs reflected as

reduction of net saies were $10.5 million in 2012 $11.5 million in 2011 and $7.7 million in 2010 Total advertising costs

attributable to future periods that are deferred and recognized as component of prepaid expenses and other current

assets were $2.3 million and $2.6 million at February 2013 and January 28 2012 respectively

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of its assets and liabilities

The Company establishes valuation allowances if it believes that it is more-likely-than-not that some or all of its deferred tax

assets will not be realized The Company does not recognize tax benefit unless it concludes that it is more-likely-than-not

that the benefit will be sustained on audit by the taxing authority based solely on the technical merits of the associated tax

position If the recognition threshold is met the Company recognizes tax benefit measured at the largest amount of the tax

benefit that in its judgment is greater than 50% likely to be realized The Company records interest and penalties related to

unrecognized tax positions within the income tax provision on the consolidated statements of earnings

Operating Leases

The Company leases its store premises and certain distribution centers under operating leases Approximately one-half of

the leases entered into by the Company include options under which allows the Company to extend the lease term beyond
the initial commitment period subject to terms agreed to at lease inception Some leases also include early termination

options that can be exercised under specific conditions

Contingent Rentals

Many of the leases covering retail stores require contingent rentals in addition to the minimum monthly rental charge based

on retail sales volume The Company records expense for contingent rentals during the period in which the retail sales

volume exceeds the respective targets

Construction Allowances Received From Landlords

At the time its retail facilities are initially leased the Company often receives consideration from landlords to be applied

against the cost of leasehold improvements necessary to open the store The Company treats these construction allowances

as lease incentive The allowances are recorded as deferred rent obligation upon receipt and amortized to income over

the lease term as reduction of rent expense The allowances are reflected as component of other accrued expenses and

deferred rent on the consolidated balance sheets

Straight-Line Rents and Rent Holidays

The Company records rent expense on straight-line basis over the lease term for all of its leased facilities For leases

that have predetermined fixed escalations of the minimum rentals the Company recognizes the related rental expense on

straight-line basis and records the difference between the recognized rental expense and amounts payable under the

lease as deferred rent At the time its retail facilities are leased the Company is frequently not charged rent for specified

period of time typically 30 to 60 days while the store is being prepared for opening This rent-free period is referred to

as rent holiday The Company recognizes rent expense over the lease term including any rent holiday within selling and

administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of earnings

Preopening Costs

Preopening costs associated with opening retail stores including payroll supplies and facility costs are expensed as incurred

Earnings Per Common Share Attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc Shareholders

The Company uses the two-class method to calculate basic and diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown
Shoe Company Inc shareholders Unvested restricted stock awards are considered participating units because they entitle

holders to non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents during the vesting term Under the two-class method
basic earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders is computed by dividing the net

earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc after allocation of earnings to participating securities by the weighted-

average number of common shares outstanding during the year Diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown
Shoe Company Inc shareholders is computed by dividing the net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc after

allocation of earnings to participating securities by the weighted-average number of common shares and potential dilutive

securities outstanding during the year Potential dilutive securities consist of outstanding stock options See Note to

the consolidated financial statements for additional information related to the calculation of earnings per common share

attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes the effect of foreign currency translation adjustments unrealized gains or losses from

derivatives used for hedging activities and pension and other postretirement benefits adjustments

Foreign Currency Translation

For certain of the Companys international subsidiaries the local currency is the functional currency Assets and liabilities

of these subsidiaries are translated into United States dollars at the fiscal year-end exchange rate or historical rates as

appropriate Consolidated statements of earnings amounts are translated at average exchange rates for the period The

cumulative translation adjustments resulting from changes in exchange rates are included in the consolidated balance sheets

as component of accumulated other comprehensive income in total Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders equity
Transaction gains and losses are included in the consolidated statements of earnings

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes allderivative financial instruments as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets

and measures those instruments at fair value The Company evaluates its exposure to volatility in foreign currency rates

and may enter into derivative transactions as it deems necessary These derivative financial instruments are viewed as risk
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management tools and are not used for trading or speculative purposes See additional information related to derivative

financial instruments in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income consists of foreign currency translation gains unrealized gains losses on derivative

financial instruments and pension and other pO5tretirement benefits adjustments charges which are shown net of tax

Accumulated other comprehensive income after tax as of February 2013 consisted of foreign currency translation gains of

$6.9 million unrealized losses on derivative financial instruments of $0.1 million and pension and other postretirement benefits

charges of $5.9 million As of January 28 2012 accumulated other comprehensive income after tax consisted of foreign

currency translation gains of $6.4 million unrealized gains on derivative financial instruments of $0.1 million and pension and

other postretirement benefits adjustments of $3.1 million As of January 29 2011 accumulated other comprehensive income

after tax consisted of foreign currency translatirn gains of $6.3 million unrealized losses on derivative financial instruments

of $0.3 million and pension and other postretirement benefits adjustments of $0.1 million See additional information related

to derivative financial instruments in Note 12 and Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and additional information

related to pension and other postretirement benefits in Note to the consolidated financial statements

Business Combination Accounting

The Company allocates the purchase price of an acquired entity to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon their

estimated fair values at the business combination date The Company also identifies and estimates the fair values of

intangible assets that should be recognized as assets apart from goodwill single estimate of fair value results from

complex series of judgments about future events and uncertainties and relies heavily on estimates and assumptions

The Company has historically relied in part upon the use of reports from third-party valuation specialists to assist in the

estimation of fair values for intangible assets other than goodwill The carrying values of acquired receivables and trade

accounts payable have historically approximated their fair values at the business combination date With respect to other

acquired assets and liabilities the Company uses all available information to make the best estimates of their fair values at

the business combination date

The Companys purchase price allocation methodology contains uncertainties because it requires management to make

assumptions and to apply judgment to estimate the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities Management estimates the

fair value of assets and liabilities based upon quoted market prices the carrying value of the acquired assets and widely

accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flows Unanticipated events or circumstances may occur which

could affect the accuracy of the Companys fair value estimates including assumptions regarding industry economic factors

and business strategies

Share-based Compensation
The Company has share-based incentive compensation plans under which certain officers employees and members of

the Board of Directors are participants and may be granted stock option restricted stock and stock performance awards

Additionally share-based grants may be made to non-employee members of the Board of Directors in the form of cash-

equivalent restricted stock units RSUs at no cost to the non-employee member of the Board of Directors The Company

accounts for share-based compensation in accOrdance with the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718 Compensation

Stock Compensation and ASC 505 Equity which require all share-based payments to employees and members of the Board of

Directors including grants of employee stock options to be recognized in the consolidated financial statements based on their

fair values The fair value of stock options is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing formula that requires estimates for

expected volatility expected dividends the risk-free interest rate and the expected term of the option Stock options generally

vest over four years with 25% vesting annually and expense is recognized on straight-line basis separately for each vesting

portion of the stock option award Expense for restricted stock is based on the fair value of the restricted stock on the date

of grant and is recognized on straight-line basis generally over four-year vesting period Expense for stock performance

awards is recognized based upon the fair value of the awards on the date of grant and the anticipated number of shares or units

to be awarded on straight-line basis over the three-year service period Expense for the initial grant of RSU5 is recognized

ratably over the one-year vesting period based upon the fair value of the RSUs as remeasured at the end of each period If any

of the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model or the anticipated number of shares to be awarded change significantly

share-based compensation expense may differ materially in the future from that recorded in the current period See additional

information related to share-based compensation in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

Impact of New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2011-04

Fair Value Measurement which amends prior fair value guidance This standard requires additional disclosures related to

fair value measurements The Company adopted the standard on January 29 2012 and it did not have an impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements although changes in related disclosures were required

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income ASC Topic 220 Presentation of Comprehensive

Income which amends prior comprehensive income guidance This standard eliminates the option to present the

components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of shareholders equity Instead the Company must

report comprehensive income in either single continuous statement of comprehensive income that contains two sections

net earnings and other comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements The Company adopted

the standard on January 29 2012 and it did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated balance sheets results of

operations or cash flows as it only requires change in the format of the current presentation and related disclosures

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-08 Intangibles-Goodwill and Other ASC Topic 350 Testing Goodwill for

Impairment which amends prior goodwill impairment testing guidance This standard will allow companies the option to first

assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not likelihood of more than 50% that the fair value

of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If after considering the totality of events and circumstances an entity

determines it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is more than its carrying amount performing the

two-step impairment test is unnecessary The company adopted the standard on January 29 2012 and it did not have an

impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements
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In July 2012 the FASB issued ASU No 2012-02 Intangibles-Goodwill and Other ASC Topic 350 Testing indefinite-Lived

Intangible Assets for Impairment wNich amends prior indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment testing guidance This

standard allows companies the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not

likelihood of more than 50% that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired If after considering the totality of events

and circumstances an entity determines it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is not impaired

then calculating the fair value is unnecessary The Company adopted the standard on July 29 2012 and it did

not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

Impact of Prospective Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013 the FASB issued ASU No 2013-02 Comprehensive Income ASC Topic 220 Reporting of Amounts

Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income which amends prior comprehensive income guidance

This standard requires an entity to present the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by

component and respective line items of net earnings on either the face of the statement of earnings or in the notes to

the financial statements The Company plans on adopting the standard in 2013 The adoption is not expected to have an

impact on the Companys consolidated balance sheets results of operations or cash flows as it only requires change in

the format of the current presentation and related disclosures

ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

American Sporting Goods Corporation

On February 17 2011 the Company entered into Stock Purchase Agreement with American Sporting Goods Corporation

ASG and A5Gs stockholders pursuant to which subsidiary of the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital

stock of ASG from the ASG stockholders on that date The aggregate purchase price for the ASG Stock was $156.6 million

in cash including debt assumed by the Company of $11.6 million The cost to acquire ASG was allocated to the assets

acquired and liabilities assumed according to estimated fair values The allocation resulted in acquired goodwill of

$61.2 million and intangible assets related to trade names licensing agreements and customer relationships of $46.7 million

The goodwill and intangible assets were allocated to the Wholesale Operations segment The operating results of ASG
have been included in the Companys financial statements since February 17 2011 and are consolidated within the

Wholesale Operations segment

ASG is designer manufacturer and marketer of broad range of athletic footwear with strong presence in walking fitness

and basketball It was founded in 1983 and is now headquartered in Irvine California The acquisition added performance and

lifestyle athletic and outdoor footwear brands to the Companys portfolio including Avia Ryka AND and Nevados

During 2012 the Company incurred integration related costs totaling $0.7 million $0.4 million after-tax or $0.01 per

diluted share all of which were reflected within the Wholesale Operations segment During 2011 the Company incurred

acquisition and integration related costs totaling $6.5 million $4.5 million after-tax or $0.11 per diluted share Of the

$6.5 million costs recorded during 2011 $4.0 million was recorded in the Other segment and $2.5 million was reflected

within the Wholesale Operations segment During 2010 the Company incurred acquisition-related costs totaling

$1.1 million $0.7 million after-tax or $0.02 per diluted share All of the costs incurred in 2010 were reflected within the

Other segment All of the expenses incurred in 2012 2011 and 2010 were recorded as component of restructuring and

other special charges net In addition during 2011 the Wholesale Operations segment recognized an increase in cost

of goods sold related to the impact of the inventory fair value adjustment in connection with the acquisition of ASG of

$4.2 million $2.5 million after-tax or $0.05 per diluted share See additional information related to acquisition and

integration costs in Note to the consolidated financial statements

The Company allocated the purchase price of ASG according to its estimate of the fair value of the assets and liabilities as

of the acquisition date February 17 2011 as follows

millions As of February 17 2011

Cash and cash equivalents 3.1

Receivables 21.1

Inventories 46.5

Deferred income taxes 3.4

Prepaid expense and other current assets 12.2

Total current assets 86.3

Other assets 1.2

Goodwill 61.2

Intangible assets 46.7

Property and equipment 8.4

Total assets $203.8

Trade accounts payable 13.2

Other accrued expenses 18.0

Total current liabilities 31.2

Deferred income taxes 16.0

Total liabilities 47.2

Net assets $156.6
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The Companys purchase price allocation contained uncertainties because it required management to make assumptions

and to apply judgment to estimate the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities single estimate of fair value results

from complex series of judgments about future events and uncertainties and relies heavily on estimates and assumptions

The judgments the Company used in estimating the fair values assigned to each class of acquired assets and assumed

liabilities could materially affect the results of its operations Management estimated the fair value of assets and liabilities

based upon quoted market prices the carrying value of the acquired assets and widely accepted valuation techniques

including discounted cash flows Unanticipated events or circumstances may occur which could affect the accuracy of the

Companys fair value estimates including assUmptions regarding industry economic factors and business strategies

The Company estimated the fair value of acquired receivables to be $21.1 million with gross contractual amount of

$22.1 million The Company does not expect to collect $1.0 million of the acquired receivables The Company also estimated

the fair value of inventories based on the estimated selling price of the work-in-process and finished goods acquired at

the closing date less the sum of the costs to complete the work-in-process the costs of disposal and reasonable profit

allowance for our post acquisition selling efforts and current replacement cost for raw materials acquired at the closing

date In estimating the fair values for intangible assets other than goodwill the Company relied in part upon the work

of third-party valuation specialist With respect to other acquired assets and liabilities the Company used all available

information to make its best estimate of fair values at the business combination date The Companys allocation of purchase

price was considered complete as of July 30 2011

Goodwill and intangible assets reflected above were determined to meet the criteria for recognition apart from tangible

assets acquired and liabilities assumed The goodwill recognized is primarily attributable to synergies and an assembled

workforce and is not deductible for tax purposes

The following table illustrates the unaudited pro forma effect on operating results as if the acquisition had been completed

as of the beginning of 2010

in thousands except per share amounts 2011 2010

Net sales $2589581 $2686503
Net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc 28178 46201

Basic earnings per common share attributable to

Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.66 1.06

Diluted earnings per common share attributable to

Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.65 1.05

The pro forma net sales for 2011 and 2010 exclude the discontinued operations of The Basketball Marketing Company Inc

TBMC which was sold during 2011 The primary adjustments to the pro forma disclosures above for 2010 include

non-cash cost of goods sold impact reflecting the sell-through of higher cost product due to fair value adjustment

to acquired inventory of $4.2 million ii amortization of acquired intangibles of $1.9 million and iii additional interest

expense of $5.5 million assuming borrowings the beginning of 2010 of $156.6 million at 3.5% interest under our Credit

Agreement to fund the acquisition The primary adjustments for 2011 include the elimination of non-cash cost of goods

sold impact related to the inventory fair value adjustment of $4.2 million and ii the elimination of $1.6 million of expenses

related to the acquisition

The above unaudited pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes only and does not purport to

represent what the Companys results of operations would have been had the Company completed the acquisition on the date

assumed nor is it necessarily indicative of the results of operations that may be expected in future periods

During the period from the acquisition date through January 28 2012 the Companys consolidated statement of earnings

included net sales from ASG of $135.5 million net of intercompany eliminations and net sales from the discontinued

operations of TBMC and net earnings of $14.5 million which included net gain on the sale of TBMC of $14.0 million

and an increase in cost of goods sold related to the impact of the inventory fair value adjustment in connection with the

acquisition of ASG of $4.2 million $2.5 million after-tax or $0.05 per diluted share

The Basketball Marketing Company Inc

On October 25 2011 the Company sold TBMC for $55.4 million in cash TBMC markets and sells footwear bearing the

AND brand-name and was acquired in the Companys February 17 2011 acquisition of ASG TBMC was included in

the Wholesale Operations segment of the Company In conjunction with the sale the Company recorded gain of

$20.6 million $14.0 million after-tax or $0.32 per diluted share which is reflected in the consolidated statements of

earnings as component of discontinued operations The Company also reduced goodwill by $21.6 million intangible

assets by $8.0 million and other net assets by $5.2 million

Accordingly the results of TBMC are reflected in the consolidated statement of earnings as discontinued operations

Earnings from the discontinued operations of TBMC for 2011 included $19.7 million of net sales and $3.0 million of earnings

before income taxes
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Edelman Shoe Inc

Edelman Shoe is leading designer and marketer of fashion footwear In 2007 the Company invested cash of $7.1 million

in Edelman Shoe acquiring 42.5% of the outstanding stock On November 2008 the Company invested an additional

$4.1 million of cash in Edelman Shoe acquiring 7.5% of the outstanding stock bringing the Companys total equity

interest to 50%

Beginning November 2008 the Companys consolidated financial statements included the accounts of Edelman Shoe as

result of the Companys determination that Edelman Shoe was variable interest entity VIE for which the Company

was the primary beneficiary At the beginning of fiscal 2010 the Company adopted amended consolidation guidance

applicable to VIEs evaluated the impact on the existing variable interests in Edelman Shoe and determined that Edelman

Shoe continued to be VIE that was appropriately consolidated by the Company

On June 2010 the Company acquired the remaining 50% of the outstanding stock of Edelman Shoe for $40.0 million

consisting of combination of $32.7 million of cash including transaction fees and $7.3 million in shares of the Companys

common stock The stock consideration consisted of 473081 shares of the Companys common stock The acquisition of

the remaining interest in Edelman Shoe was accounted for in accordance with the consolidation guidance applicable to

noncontrolling interests which requires changes in parents ownership interest in subsidiary without loss of control to

be reflected as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest with excess consideration recognized

directly to equity attributable to the controlling interest As result the Companys acquisition of the remaining interest in

Edelman Shoe resulted in reduction to total equity of $32.7 million consisting of net reduction of $24.1 million to total

Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders equity and the elimination of $8.6 million of the noncontrolling interest in Edelman

Shoe As of June 2010 Edelman Shoe became wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe

Company Inc shareholders

in thousands except per share amounts 2012 2011 2010

NUMERATOR

Net earnings from continuing operations 27204 8724 37060

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 287 199 173

Net earnings allocated to participating securities 1365 529 1283
Net earnings from continuing operations 26126 8394 35950

Net earnings from discontinued operations 15666

Net earnings allocated to participating securities 668
Net earnings from discontinued operations 14998

Net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe company Inc

after allocation of earnings to participating securities 26126 23392 35950

DENOMINATOR

Denominator for basic continuing and discontinued earnings

per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 40659 41126 42156

Dilutive effect of share-based awards 135 542 331

Denominator for diluted continuing and discontinued earnings

per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 40794 41668 42487

Basic earnings per common share

From continuing operations 0.64 0.20 0.85

From discontinued operations 0.37

Basic earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.64 0.57 0.85

Diluted earnings per common share

From continuing operations 0.64 0.20 0.85

From discontinued operations 0.36

Diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.64 0.56 0.85

Options to purchase 998701 1415696 and 1186570 shares of common stock in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively were not

included in the denominator for diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders

because the effect would be antidilutive

2012 3RC\N CE CYIPAN JC FORM 10-K 57



RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER SPECIAL CHARGES NET

Portfolio Realignment

The Companys portfolio realignment initiatives include selling the AND division TBMC which was acquired with ASG
exiting certain womens specialty and private label brands exiting the childrens wholesale business closing two U.S

distribution centers closing or relocating numerous underperforming or poorly aligned retail stores closing facilities in China

and other infrastructure changes These portfolio realignment initiatives began in 2011 and continued throughout 2012

The termination of the Etienne Aigner license agreement is also considered part of the Companys portfolio realignment

initiatives During 2012 the Company terminated the Etienne Aigner license agreement former license agreement

due to dispute with the licensor In conjunction with the termination the Company recognized an impairment charge of

$5.8 million to reduce the remaining unamortized value of the licensed trademark intangible asset to zero

During 2012 the Company incurred costs related to its portfolio realignment activities of $29.9 million $19.3 million

after-tax or $0.45 per diluted share These costs are reflected on the condensed consolidated statement of earnings as

$21.0 million in restructuring and other special charges net $5.8 million in impairment of intangible assets and $3.1 million

in cost of goods sold Of the $21.0 million in restructuring and other special charges net $8.6 million is included in the

Wholesale Operations segment $7.8 million is included in the Famous Footwear segment $3.7 million is included in the

Specialty Retail segment and $0.9 million is included in the Other segment Of the $3.1 million in cost of goods sold

$2.7 million is included in the Wholesale Operations segment and $0.4 million is included in the Specialty Retail segment

In conjunction with the sale of TBMC in 2011 the Company recorded gain of $20.6 million $14.0 million on an after-

tax basis or $0.32 per diluted share which is reflected in the consolidated statements of earnings as component of

discontinued operations Also during 2011 the Company incurred costs related to its portfolio realignment activities

of $19.2 million $12.0 million on an after-tax basis or $0.28 per diluted share These costs are reflected on the

consolidated statements of earnings as $17.2 million in restructuring and other special charges net and $2.0 million in

costs of goods sold Of the $17.2 million $10.5 million was recorded in the Wholesale Operations segment $3.3 million

was recorded in the Other segment $2.8 million was recorded in the Famous Footwear segment and $0.6 million was

recorded in the Specialty Retail segment Of the $2.0 million $1.6 million was recorded in the Wholesale Operations

segment and $0.4 million was recorded in the Specialty Retail segment

The following is summary of the charges and settlements by category of costs

Markdowns

and Royalty

Employee Shortfallsmi/lions Facility Other Total

Original charges and reserve balance 8.9 6.1 1.4 2.8 19.2

Amounts settled in 2011 3.1 4.5 0.1 1.5 9.2

Reserve balance at January 28 2012 5.8 1.6 1.3 1.3 10.0

Additional charges in 2012 6.0 3.1 11.4 9.4 29.9

Amounts settled in 2012 10.1 4.5 9.4 10.4 34.4

Reserve balance at February 2013 1.7 0.2 3.3 0.3 5.5

Acquisition and Integration Related Costs

On February 17 2011 the Company entered into Stock Purchase Agreement with ASGs stockholders pursuant to which

the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of ASG During 2012 the Company incurred integration related

costs totaling $0.7 million $0.4 million on an after-tax basis or $0.01 per diluted share all of which were reflected within

the Wholesale Operations segment During 2011 the Company incurred acquisition and integration related costs totaling

$6.5 million $4.5 million on an after-tax basis or $0.11 per diluted share Of the $6.5 million costs recorded during 2011

$4.0 million was recorded in the Other segment and $2.5 million was reflected within the Wholesale Operations segment

In 2011 $2.9 million of the ASG acquisition and integration costs related to severance During 2010 the Company incurred

acquisition-related costs totaling $1.1 million $0.7 million on an after-tax basis or $0.02 per diluted share All of the

costs incurred in 2010 were reflected within the Other segment All of the expenses incurred in 2012 2011 and 2010

were recorded as component of restructuring and other special charges net See Note to the consolidated financial

statements for further information

Organizational Changes

During 2012 the Company incurred costs of $2.3 million $1.4 million on an after-tax basis or $0.03 per diluted share

related to an organizational change at its corporate headquarters All of these costs were recorded in the Other segment and

as component of restructuring and other special charges net No organizational change costs were incurred 2011 or 2010

Information Technology Initiatives

During 2008 the Company began implementation of an integrated enterprise resource planning ERP system provided

by third-party vendors to replace certain existing internally developed and certain other third-party applications The

Company went live on the wholesale portion of its new ERP system in the fourth quarter of 2010 During 2010 the

Company incurred expenses of $6.8 million $4.6 million on an after-tax basis or $0.10 per diluted share related to these

initiatives Of the $6.8 million in expenses recorded during 2010 $6.1 million was recorded in the Other segment and

the remaining expense was recorded in the Wholesale Operations segment All expenses incurred were recorded as

component of restructuring and other special charges net
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RETIREMENT AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

The Company sponsors pension plans in both the United States and Canada The Companys domestic pension plans cover

substantially all United States employees Under the domestic plans salaried management and certain hourly employees

pension benefits are based on the employees highest consecutive five years of compensation during the 10 years before

retirement The Companys Canadian pension plans cover certain employees based on plan specifications Under the

Canadian plans employees pension benefits are based on the employees highest consecutive five years of compensation

during the 10 years before retirement The Companys funding policy for all plans is to make the minimum annual

contributions required by applicable regulations

The Company also maintains an unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP As of February 2013 the

projected benefit obligation of this plan was $8.4 million and the accumulated benefit obligation was $6.9 million

In addition to providing pension benefits the Company sponsors unfunded defined benefit postretirement life insurance

plans that cover both salaried and hourly employees who became eligible for benefits by January 1995 The life insurance

plans provide coverage of up to twenty-thousand dollars for qualifying retired employees

Benefit Obligations

The following table sets forth changes in benefit obligations including all domestic and Canadian plans

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

thousands 2012 2011 2012 2011

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 261459 215373 $3485 $3230

Service cost 11523 9.256

Interest cost 12727 12533 148 176

Plan participants contribution 12 11 13 17

Plan amendments 153

Actuarial loss gain 16259 42746 236 315

Benefits paid 11464 18590 203 253
Foreign exchange rate changes 18 23
Benefit obligation at end of year $290534 $261459 $3207 $3485

The accumulated benefit obligation for the United States pension plans was $263.8 million and $236.7 million as of

February 2013 and January 28 2012 respectively The accumulated benefit obligation for the Canadian pension plans

was $4.9 million and $4.6 million as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 respectively

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations

end of year 2012 2011 2012 2011

Discount rate 4.50% 4.75% 4.50% 4.75%

Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 4.00% N/A N/A

Plan Assets

Pension assets are managed in accordance with the prudent investor standards of the Employee Retirement Income

Security Act ERISA The plans investment objective is to earn competitive total return on assets while also ensuring

plan assets are adequately managed to provide for future pension obligations This results in the protection of plan

surplus and is accomplished by matching the duration of the projected benefit obligation using leveraged fixed income

instruments and while maintaining 70% overall United States and international equity commitment managing an equity

overlay strategy The overlay strategy is intended to protect the managed equity portfolios against adverse stock market

environments The Company delegates investment management to specialists in each asset class and regularly monitors

manager performance and compliance with investment guidelines The Companys overall investment strategy is to achieve

mix of approximately 95% of investments for long-term growth and 5% for near-term benefit payments with wide

diversification of asset types fund strategies and fund managers The target allocations for plan assets for 2013 are 55%

domestic equities 30% debt securities and 15% foreign equities Allocations may change periodically based upon changing

market conditions Domestic equities did not include any Company stock at February 2013 or January 28 2012

Assets of the Canadian pension plans which total approximately $5.0 million at February 2013 were invested 56% in

equity funds 40% in bond funds and 4% in money market funds The Canadian pension plans did not include any Company

stock as of February 2013 or January 28 2012

financial instruments level within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to

the fair value measurement See further discussion on the fair value hierarchy in Note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements Following is description of the pension plan investments measured at fair value including the general

classification of such investments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy
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Investments in corporate stocks common U.S government securities mutual fund money market funds real estate

investment trusts and SP 500 Index put and call options traded on security exchanges are classified within Level

of the fair value hierarchy because the fair values are based on unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets with

sufficient volume and frequency

Corporate debt instruments and interest rate swap agreements are valued at fair value based on vendor-quoted pricing for

which inputs are observable and can be corroborated therefore these are classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy

The limited partnership investment represents the pension plans undivided interest in limited partnership The

limited partnership invests primarily in diversified portfolio of equity securities of U.S and non-U.S issuers whose fair

values are based on unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets with sufficient volume and frequency Limited

partnership assets are allocated to the pension plan by assigning the pension plan transactions that can be specifically

identified and allocating non-specific transactions in proportion to the pension plans beneficial interest in the limited

partnership This contract is classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy There are currently no redemption

restrictions on the limited partnership investment

The group trust investment is unitized fund classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy because the fair

value is estimated using the NAV per unit based on vendor-quoted pricing for which inputs are observable There are

currently no redemption restrictions on the group trust investment

The unallocated insurance contract is valued at contract value which approximates fair value therefore this contract is

classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy The unallocated insurance contract fair value was $0.1 million as of

both February 2013 and January 28 2012

The fair values of the Companys pension plan assets at February 2013 by asset category are as follows

Fair Value Measurements at February 2013

thousands Total Level Level Level

Asset

Money market funds 4729 4729
U.S government securities 59342 59342
Mutual fund 75168 75168

Limited partnership 35982 35982

Real estate investment trusts 3239 3239

Corporate debt instruments 28357 28357

corporate stocks common 136275 136275

SP 500 Index options 2495 2495
Interest rate swap agreements 4258 4258
Unallocated insurance contract 106 106

Total $336445 $276258 $60081 $106

The fair values of the Companys pension plan assets at January 28 2012 by asset category are as follows

Fair value Measurements at January 28 2012

thousands Total Level Level Level

Asset

Money market funds 4723 4723

U.S government securities 68667 68667

Mutual fund 11078 11078

Limited partnership 31461 31461

Group trust 7306 7306

Real estate investment trusts 2047 2047

Corporate debt instruments 68240 68240

Corporate stocks cpmmon 112795 112795

SP 500 Index options 1472 1472

Interest rate swap agreements 13406 13406

Unallocated insurance contract 104 104

Total $321299 $200782 120413 $104

The following table sets forth changes in the fair value of plan assets including all domestic and Canadian plans

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

thousands 2012 2011 2012 2011

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 321299 $265848

Actual return on plan assets 26167 66527

Employer contributions 413 7523 190 236

Plan participants contributions 12 11 13 17

Benefits paid 11464 18590 203 253
Foreign exchange rate changes 18 20
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 336445 321299

The majority of employer contributions for 2011 related to payments due under our SERP Employer contributions and

benefits paid in the above table include both those amounts contributed directly to and paid directly from plan assets and

those amounts paid directly to plan participants
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Funded Status

The over-funded status as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 for pension benefits was $45.9 million and $59.8 million

respectively The under-funded status as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 for other postretirement benefits was

$3.2 million and $3.5 million respectively

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

thousands 2012 2011 2012 2011

Prepaid pension costs noncurrent asset $54532 $68054

Accrued benefit liabilities current liability 1191 226 311 322
Accrued benefit liabilities noncurrent liability 7430 7988 2896 3163

Net amount recognized at end of year 45911 $59840 $3207 $3485

The projected benefit obligation the accumulated benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets for pension plans

with projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets and for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation

in excess of plan assets which includes only the Companys SERP were as follows

thousands

End of Year

Projected benefit obligation $8393 $7997 $8393 $7997

Accumulated benefit obligation 6872 6208 6872 6208

Fair value of plan assets

The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation exceeds assets for all of the Companys other postretirement benefit plans

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss income that have not yet been recognized as components of net

periodic benefit income cost at February 2013 and January 28 2012 and the expected amortization of the February 2013

amounts as components of net periodic benefit income cost for the year ended February 2014 are as follows

Other Postretirement_Benefits

2012 2011thousands 2012 2011

Components of accumulated other comprehensive

comprehensive loss income net of tax

Net actuarial loss gain 6475 2658 587 492
Net prior service cost 59 67

Net transition asset 31
6534 2622 587 492

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

thousands 2013 2013

Expected amortization net of tax

Amortization of net actuarial losses $539 $49

Amortization of net prior service cost

Amortization of net transition asset

$547 $49

Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Net periodic benefit income cost for 2012 2011 and 2010 for all domestic and Canadian plans included the

following components

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

thousands 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Service cost 11523 9256 7826

Interest cost 12727 12533 12102 148 176 186

Expected return on assets 25073 20741 20183

Amortization of

Actuarial loss gain 204 400 172 82 99 112

Prior service cost 13

Net transition asset 43 47 46
Settlement cost 2100 878

Total net periodic benefit income cost 649 3493 741 66 77 74

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net income cost

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Discount rate 4.75% 5.75% 6.00% 4.75% 5.75% 6.00%

Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 4.00% 4.25% N/A N/A N/A

Expected return on plan assets 8.25% 8.50% 8.50% N/A N/A N/A

Projected Benefit

Obligation Exceeds

the Fair Value of Plan Assets

2012 2011

Accumulated Benefit

Obligation Exceeds

the Fair Value of Plan Assets

2012 2011

Pension Benefits
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The prior service cost is amortized on straight-line basis over the average future service of active plan participants

benefiting under the plan at the time of each plan amendment The net actuarial loss gain subject to amortization is

amortized on straight-line basis over the average future service of active plan participants as of the measurement date

The net transition asset is amortized over the estimated service life

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical and projected rates of return for current and

planned asset classes in the plans investment portfolio Assumed projected rates of return for each asset class were

selected after analyzing experience and future expectations of the returns The overall expected rate of return for the

portfolio was developed based on the target allocation for each asset class

Expected Cash Flows

Information about expected cash flows for all pension and postretirement benefit plans follows

Pension Benefits

Other

Postretirement

Benefitsthousands Funded Plans SERP Total

Employer Contributions

2013 expected contributions to plan trusts 1819 1819

2013 expected contributions to plan participants 1191 1191 311

Expected Benefit Payments

2013 $10076 1191 11267 311

2014 10610 112 10722 295

2015 11124 2489 13613 278

2016 11711 88 11799 260

2017 12294 2998 15292 242

2018 2022 71688 2167 73855 915

Defined-Contribution Plans

The Companys domestic defined-contribution 401k plan covers salaried and certain hourly employees Company contributions

represent partial matching of employee contributions generally up to maximum of 3.5% of the employees salary and bonus

The Companys expense for this plan was $3.4 million $4.1 million and $3.0 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

The Companys Canadian defined contribution plan covers certain salaried and hourly employees The Company makes

contributions for all eligible employees ranging from 3% to 5% of the employees salary In addition eligible employees may

voluntarily contribute to the plan The Companys expense for this plan was $0.3 million in 2012 2011 and 2010

Deferred Compensation Plan

In 2007 the Company established non-qualified deferred compensation plan the Deferred Compensation Plan for

the benefit of certain management employees The investment funds offered to the participants generally correspond

to the funds offered in the Companys 401k plan and the account balance fluctuates with the investment returns on

those funds The Deferred Compensation Plan permits the deferral of up to 50% of base salary and 100% of compensation

received under the Companys annual incentive plan The deferrals are held in separate trust which has been established

by the Company to administer the Deferred Compensation Plan The assets of the trust are subject to the claims of the

Companys creditors in the event that the Company becomes insolvent Consequently the trust qualifies as grantor

trust for income tax purposes i.e Rabbi Trust The liabilities of the Deferred Compensation Plan of $1.4 million and

$1.1 million as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 respectively are presented in employee compensation and benefits

in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets The assets held by the trust of $1.4 million as of February 2013 and

$1.1 million as of January 28 2012 are classified as trading securities within prepaid expenses and other current assets

in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets with changes in the deferred compensation charged to selling and

administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of earnings

Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors

Non-employee directors are eligible to participate in deferred compensation plan whereby deferred compensation

amounts are valued as if invested in the Companys common stock through the use of phantom stock units PSUs
Under the plan each participating directors account is credited with the number of PSUs equal to the number of

shares of the Companys common stock that the participant could purchase or receive with the amount of the deferred

compensation based upon the fair value as determined based on the average of the high and low prices of the

Companys common stock on the last trading day of the fiscal quarter when the cash compensation was earned Dividend

equivalents are paid on PSUs at the same rate as dividends on the Companys common stock and are re-invested in

additional PSUs at the next fiscal quarter-end The PSUs are payable in cash based on the number of PSUs credited to the

parhcipating directors account valued on the basis of the fair value at fiscal quarter-end on or following termination of

the directors service The liabilities of the plan of $1.1 million as of February 2013 and $0.6 million as of January 28 2012

are based on 66394 and 63936 outstanding PSUs respectively and are presented in other liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets Gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of the PSUs are charged to selling

and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of earnings
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INCOME TAXES

The components of earnings before income taxes from continuing operations consisted of domestic earnings loss before

income taxes from continuing operations of $10.5 million $01.1 million and $23.8 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

and foreign earnings before income taxes from continuing operations of $28.0 million $20.2 million and $29.4 million in 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively In addition to the income tax expense associated with continuing operations we also recorded

income tax expense associated with net earnings from discontinued operations of $8.0 million in 2011 The Company did not

record net earnings from discontinued operations in 2012 or 2010

The components of income tax provision on earnings from continuing operations were as follows

thousands 2012 2011 2010

Federal

Current 1275 2528 3001
Deferred 5578 319 13209

4303 2209 10208

State

Current 591 588 885

Deferred 1858 137 2285

2449 451 3170

Foreign 4591 2986 2782

Total income tax provision $11343 326 16160

The Company made federal state and foreign tax payments net of refunds of $5.7 million in 2012 The Company received

federal state and foreign tax refunds net of payments of $5.7 million and $4.6 million in 2011 and 2010 respectively

The differences between the tax provision reflected in the consolidated financial statements and the amounts calculated at

the federal statutory income tax rate of 35% were as follows

thousands 2012 2011 2010

Income taxes at statutory rate 13491 3168 18627

State income taxes net of federal tax benefit 1592 293 2061

Tax impact of nondeductible stock option expense 16 76 285

Foreign earnings taxed at lower rates 5206 4090 6504
Other 1450 1465 1691

Total income tax provision 11343 326 16160

The other category of income tax provision principally represents the impact of expenses that are not deductible for federal

income tax purposes

Significant Components of the Companys deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows

thousands February 2013 January 28 2012

Deferred Tax Assets

Employee benefits compensation and insurance 12913 18096

Accrued expenses 17788 10207

Postretirement and postemployment benefit plans 1753 2088

Deferred rent 381 2411

Accounts receivable reserves 8136 5584

Net operating loss NOL carryforward/carryback 29355 30113

Inventory capitalization and inventory reserves 3692 4033

Other 12956 7394

Total deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 86974 79926

Valuation allowance 8476 6946
Total deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance 78498 72980

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Retirement plans 16496 22550
LIFO inventory valuation 42914 36139

Capitalized software 18433 13469
Other 1949 1288
Depreciation 892 1874

Intangible assets 10963 14364
Total deferred tax liabilities 91647 89684
Net deferred tax liability 13149 16704
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At the end of 2012 the Company had net operating loss carryforward with tax value of $1.8 million related to Shoes

com which expires in 2019 and various state net operating loss carryforwards with tax values totaling $11.6 million

valuation allowance of $6.7 million has been established related to these operating loss carryforwards The Company

also has valuation allowances of $0.5 million related to share-based compensation and $1.3 million related to foreign tax

credits The remaining net operating loss will be carried forward to future tax years

As of February 2013 no deferred taxes have been provided on the accumulated unremitted earnings of the Companys

foreign subsidiaries that are not subject to United States income tax The Company periodically evaluates its foreign

investment opportunities and plans as well as its foreign working capital needs to determine the level of investment

required and accordingly determine the level of foreign earnings that is considered indefinitely reinvested Based upon

that evaluation earnings of the Companys foeign subsidiaries that are not otherwise subject to United States taxation

except for the Companys Canadian subsidiary are considered to be indefinitely reinvested and accordingly deferred taxes

have not been provided If changes occur in future investment opportunities and plans those changes will be reflected

when known and may result in providing residual United States deferred taxes on unremitted foreign earnings If the

Companys unremitted foreign earnings were not considered indefinitely reinvested as of February 2013 additional

deferred taxes of approximately $29.5 million would have been provided

Uncertain Tax Positions

ASC 740 Income Taxes establishes single model to address accounting for uncertain tax positions The standard clarifies

the accounting for income taxes by prescribing minimum recognition threshold tax position is required to meet

before being recognized in the financial statements The standard also provides guidance on derecognition measurement

classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosure and transition

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

thousands

Balance at January 30 2010 1373

Additions for tax positions of prior years
624

Settlements 887

Reductions for tax positions of prior years due to lapse in the statute of limitations 358

Balance at January 29 2011
752

Settlements 206

Reductions for tax positions of prior years due to lapse in the statute of limitations 337

Balance at January 28 2012 209

Additions for tax positions of prior years 1015

Reductions for tax positions of prior years due to lapse in the statue of limitations 75
Balance at February 2013 $1149

If the unrecognized tax benefits were to be recognized in full the net amount that would be reflected in the income

tax provision thereby impacting the effective tax rate would be $0.8 million at February 2013 $0.2 million at

January 28 2012 and $0.7 million at January 29 2011

Estimated interest related to the underpayment of income taxes was classified as component of the income tax provision

in the consolidated statements of earnings and was insignificant in 2012 2011 and 2010 Accrued interest was $0.1 million

February 2013 and $0.1 million at January 28 2012

For federal purposes the Companys tax years 2009 to 2011 fiscal years ending January 30 2010 January 29 2011 and

Jahuary 28 2012 remain open to examination The Company also files tax returns in various foreign jurisdictions and

numerous states for which various tax years are subject to examination The Company does not expect any significant

changes to its liability for unrecognized tax benefits during the next 12 months

BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Companys reportable segments include Famous Footwear Wholesale Operations Specialty Retail and Other

Famous Footwear which represents the Companys largest division operated 1055 stores at the end of 2012 primarily

selling branded footwear for the entire family

The Wholesale Operations segment sources and markets licensed branded and private-label footwear primarily to national

chains department stores independent retailers mass merchandisers online retailers and catalogs as well as Company

owned Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail segments

The Specialty Retail segment included 106 stores in the United States 90 stores in Canada and 26 stores in China at the end of

2012 selling primarily Naturalizer brand footwear in regional malls and outlet centers as well as other e-commerce businesses

The Other segment includes corporate assets and administrative expenses and other costs and recoveries that are not

allocated to the operating units
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The Companys retail and wholesale reportable segments are operating units that market to different customers and

are each managed separately An operating segments performance is evaluated and resources are allocated based on

operating earnings loss Operatihg earnings loss represent gross profit less selling and administrative expenses

restructuring and other special charges net and impairment of intangible assets The accounting policies of the reportable

segments are the same as those described in Note Intersegment sales are generally recorded at profit to the selling

segment All intersegment earnings related to inventory on hand at the purchasing segment are eliminated against the

earnings of the selling segment

thousands Other Total

Fiscal 2012

External sales $1514349 845176 $238540 $2598065

Intersegment sales 2311 229206 231517

Depreciation and amortization 22819 13688 2991 17846 57344

Operating earnings loss 94096 17581 8850 41220 61607

Operating segment assets 472180 506523 59475 133081 1171259

Purchases of property and equipment 34931 8969 6716 5185 55801

capitalized software 7925 7928

Fiscal 2011

External sales 1456314 870873 255637 2582824

Intersegment sales 2156 211631 213787

Depreciation and amortization 26116 15521 3517 16295 61449

Operating earnings loss 62515 16739 7627 36077 35550

Operating segment assets 435344 595355 56151 140626 1227476

Purchases of property and equipment 16272 5991 3901 1693 27857

capitalized software 273 15 10419 10707

Fiscal 2010

External sales $1486538 754389 263164 2504091

Intersegment sales 1939 192157 194096

Depreciation and amortization 26017 9410 3852 13238 52517

Operating earnings loss 90419 32227 5970 44012 72664

Operating segment assets 473098 401700 56941 216304 1148043

Purchases of property and equipment 22066 2619 2730 3366 30781

capitalized software 253 23793 24046

Following is reconciliation of operating earnings to earnings before income taxes from continuing operations

thousands 2012 2011 2010

Operating earnings 61607 $35550 72664

Interest expense 23382 26141 19647

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 1003

Interest income 322 644 203

Earnings before income taxes from continuing operations 38547 9050 53220

In 2012 the impact of restructuring and other special charges net included in operating earnings was as follows

Wholesale $8.6 million of charges related to the Companys portfolio realignment and $0.7 million related to

integration costs of ASG
Famous Footwear $7.8 million of charges related to the Companys portfolio realignment initiatives

Specialty Retail $3.7 million of charges related to the Companys portfolio realignment initiatives

Other $2.3 million of charges related to the organizational change at the Companys corporate headquarters

and $0.9 million of charges related to the Companys portfolio realignment initiatives

In 2011 the impact of restructuring and other special charges net included in operating earnings was as follows

Wholesale $10.5 million of charges related to the Companys portfolio realignment and $2.5 million related to

integration costs of ASG
Other $4.0 million of charges related to the Companys acquisition and integration costs of ASG and $3.3 million

of charges related to portfolio realignment initiatives

Famous Footwear $2.8 million of charges related to the Companys portfolio realignment initiatives

Specialty Retail $0.6 million of charges related to the Companys portfolio realignment initiatives

In 2010 the impact of restructuring and other special charges net included in operating earnings was as follows

Other $6.1 million of charges related to the Companys information technology initiatives and $1.1 million of

charges related to the acquisition of ASG
Wholesale Operations $0.7 million of charges related to the Companys information technology initiatives

For geographic purposes the domestic operations include the wholesale distribution of licensed branded and private-

label footwear to variety of retail customers including the Companys Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail stores

and e-commerce business

Famous Wholesale

Footwear Operations

Specialty

Retail
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The Companys foreign operations primarily consist of wholesale operations in the Far East and retail operations in Canada

China and Guam The Far East operations include the manufacture of footwear at facilities owned by the Company and

first-cost transactions where footwear is sold at foreign ports to customers who then import the footwear into the United

States and other countries

summary of the Companys net sales and long-lived assets by geographic area were as follows

thousands 2012 2011 2010

Net Sales

United States 2295739 $2259907 2179658

Far East 233843 215263 217346

Canada 68483 107654 107087

Total net sales $2598065 $2582824 $2504091

Long-Lived Assets

United States 381459 396412 331092

Far East 9478 10632 3749

Canada 7824 5223 4888

Latin America Europe and other 70 71 33

Total long-lived assets 398831 412338 339762

Long-lived assets consisted primarily of property and equipment intangible assets prepaid pension costs goodwill and

other noncurrent assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following

thousands February 2013 January 28 2012

Land and buildings 40774 42049

Leasehold improvements 172635 170824

Technology equipment 48448 47371

Machinery and equipment 54871 64085

Furniture and fixtures 108622 107320

Construction in progress 16542 5034

Property and equipment 441892 436683

Allowances for depreciation 295803 305212

Property and equipment net 146089 131471

Useful lives of property and equipment are as follows

Buildings 15-30 years

Leasehold improvements 5-20 years

Technology equipment 3-10 years

Machinery and equipment 8-20 years

Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years

The Company recorded charges for impairment primarily for leasehold improvements and furniture and fixtures in the

Companys retail stores of $4.1 million $1.9 million and $2.8 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Of the $4.1 million

impairment charges in 2012 $3.6 million is included in restructuring and other special charges net and $0.5 million is included

in selling and administrative expenses All of the charges in 2011 and 2010 are included in selling and administrative expenses

Fair value was based on estimated future cash flows to be generated by retail stores discounted at market rate of interest

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and intangible assets were as follows

thousands February 2013 January 28 2012

Intangible Assets

Famous Footwear 2800 2800
Wholesale Operations 147003 155003

Specialty Retail 200 200

Total intangible assets 150003 158003

Accumulated amortization 56979 57017
Total intangible assets net 93024 100986

Goodwill

Wholesale Operations 39604 39604

Total Goodwill 39604 39604

Goodwill and intangible assets net $132628 $140590
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Intangible assets of $42.5 million as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 are not subject to amortization All remaining

intangible assets are subject to amortization and have useful lives ranging from four to 20 years Amortization expense

related to intangible assets was $7.2 million $8.3 million and $6.7 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The Company

estimates the following amortization expense related to intangible assets $6.9 million in 2013 and 2014 and $6.0 million in

2015 2016 and 2017

During 2012 the Company terminated the Etienne Aigner license agreement due to dispute with the licensor and

recognized an impairment charge of $5.8 million to reduce the remaining unamortized value of the licensed trademark

intahgible asset to zero Also during 2012 the Company acquired trademark for $5.0 million The trademark is being

amortized over 15 year useful life

The decrease in intangible assets of the Wholesale Operations segment from January 28 2012 to February 2013 is

primarily related to the impairment of the Etienne Aigner licensed trademark and amortization partially offset by the

acquisition of trademark

As result of its annual impairment testing the Company did not record any other impairment charges during 2012 and

2011 related to intangible assets

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate it might be

impaired fair-value-based test is applied at the reporting unit level and compares the fair value of the reporting unit

with attributable goodwill to the carrying value of such reporting unit This test requires various judgments and estimates

The fair value of goodwill is determined using an estimate of future cash flows of the reporting unit and risk-adjusted

discount rate to compute net present value of future cash flows An adjustment wilIbe recorded for any goodwill that is

determined to be impaired Impairment of goodwill is measured as the excess of the carrying amount of goodwill over the

fair values of recognized and unrecognized assets and liabilities of the reporting unit The Company performed goodwill

impairment test as of the first day of the Companys fourth fiscal quarter resulting in no impairment charges

10 LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Credit Agreement

On January 2011 the Company and certain of its subsidiaries the Loan Parties entered into Third Amended and

Restated Credit Agreement Former Credit Agreement which was further amended on February 17 2011 as so amended

the Credit Agreement The Credit Agreement matures on January 2016 and provides for revolving credit facility in an

aggregate amount of up to $530.0 million effective February 17 2011 subject to the calculated borrowing base restrictions

and provides for an increase at the Companys option by up to $150.0 million from time to time during the term of the Credit

Agreement the general purpose accordion feature subject to satisfaction of certain conditions and the willingness of

existing or new lenders to assume the increase

On February 17 2011 ASG and TBMC the sole domestic subsidiary of ASG became borrowers under the Credit Agreement In

conjunction with the sale of TBMC on October 25 2011 TBMC ceased to be borrower under the Credit Agreement See Note

to the consolidated financial statements for further information on the acquisition of ASG and the subsequent sale of TBMC

Borrowing availability under the Credit Agreement is limited to the lesser of the total commitments and the borrowing

base which is based on stated percentages of the sum of eligible accounts receivable and inventory as defined less

applicable reserves Under the Credit Agreement the Loan Parties obligations are secured by first-priority security

interest in all accounts receivable inventory and certain other collateral

Interest on borrowings is at variable rates based on the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate LIBOR or the prime rate as

defined in the Credit Agreement plus spread The interest rate and fees for letters of credit vary based upon the level of

excess availability under the Credit Agreement There is an unused line fee payable on the unused portion under the facility

and letter of credit fee payable on the outstanding face amount under letters of credit

The Credit Agreement limits the Companys ability to incur additional indebtedness create liens make investments or

specified payments give guarantees pay dividends make capital expenditures and merge or acquire or sell assets In

addition certain additional covenants would be triggered if excess availability were to fall below specified levels including

fixed charge coverage ratio requirements Furthermore if excess availability falls below the greater of 15.0% of the lesser

of the borrowing base or the total commitments and ii $35.0 million for three consecutive business days or an

event of default occurs the lenders may assume dominion and control over the Companys cash cash dominion event
until such event of default is cured or waived or the excess availability exceeds such amount for 30 consecutive days

The Credit Agreement contains customary events of default including without limitation payment defaults breaches

of representations and warranties covenant defaults cross-defaults to other material indebtedness certain events of

bankruptcy and insolvency judgment defaults in excess of certain threshold the failure of any guaranty or security

document supporting the agreement to be in full force and effect and change of control event In addition if the excess
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availability falls below the greater of 12.5% of the lesser of the borrowing base or the total commitments and

ii $35.0 million and the fixed charge coverage ratio is less than 1.0 to 1.0 the Company would be in default under the

Credit Agreement The Credit Agreement also contains certain other covenants and restrictions The Company was in

compliance with all covenants and restrictions under the Credit Agreement as of February 2013

The maximum amount of borrowings under either the Credit Agreement or Former Credit Agreement at the end of any

month was $230.0 million in 2012 and $373.0 million in 2011 The average daily borrowings during the year were $141.2 million

in 2012 and $257.2 million in 2011 The weighted-average interest rates approximated 2.8% in 2012 and 2.9% in 2011

At February 2013 the Company had $105.0 million in borrowings outstanding and $9.0 million in letters of credit

outstanding under the Credit Agreement Total additional borrowing availability was $380.6 million at February 2013

$200 Million Senior Notes Due 2019

On May 11 2011 the Company closed on an offering the Offering of $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125%

Senior Notes due 2019 the 2019 Senior Notes The Company used portion of the net proceeds to call and redeem the

outstanding 8.75% senior notes due in 2012 the 2012 Senior Notes The Company used the remaining net proceeds for

general corporate purposes including repaying amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement

The 2019 Senior Notes are guaranteed on senior unsecured basis by each of the subsidiaries of the Company that is an

obligor under the Credit Agreement Interest on the 2019 Senior Notes is payable on May 15 and November15 of each

year beginning on November 15 2011 The 2019 Senior Notes mature on May 15 2019 Prior to May 15 2014 the Company

may redeem some or all of the 2019 Senior Notes at redemption price equal to the sum of the principal amount of the

2019 Senior Notes to be redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest plus make whole premium After May 15 2014

the Company may redeem all or part of the 2019 Senior Notes at the redemption prices expressed as percentage of

principal set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest if redeemed during the 12-month period beginning on May 15 of

the years indicated below

Year Percentage

2014 105.344%

2015 103.563%

2016 101.781%

2017 and thereafter 100.000%

In addition prior to May 15 2014 the Company may redeem up to 35% of the 2019 Senior Notes with the proceeds from

certain equity offerings at redemption price of 107.125% of the principal amount of the 2019 Senior Notes to be redeemed

plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon if any to the redemption date

The 2019 Senior Notes also contain certain other covenants and restrictions that limit certain activities including among

other things levels of indebtedness payments of dividends the guarantee or pledge of assets certain investments

common stock repurchases mergers and acquisitions and sales of assets Proceeds from the sale of TBMC were reinvested

into our business as allowed by the 2019 Senior Notes As of February 2013 the Company was in compliance with all

covenants and restrictions relating to the 2019 Senior Notes

Cash payments of interest for these financing arrangements during 2012 2011 and 2010 were $20.3 million $23.2 million

and $18.0 million respectively

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During 2011 the Company completed cash tender offer for the 2012 Senior Notes and called for redemption and repaid

the remaining notes that were not tendered The Company incurred loss on the early extinguishment of the 2012 Senior

Notes prior to maturity totaling $1.0 million of which approximately $0.6 million was non-cash

11 LEASES

The Company leases all of its retail locations and certain office locations distribution centers and equipment The minimum

lease terms for the Companys retail stores generally range from five to 10 years Approximately one-half of the retail store

leases are subject to renewal options for varying periods The term of the leases for office facilities and distribution centers

averages approximately 15 years with renewal options of five to 20 years

At the time its retail facilities are initially leased the Company often receives consideration from landlords for portion

of the cost of leasehold improvements necessary to open the store which are recorded as deferred rent obligation

upon receipt and amortized to income over the lease term as reduction of rent expense In addition to minimum rental

payments certain of the retail store leases require contingent payments based on sales levels majority of the Companys

retail operating leases contain provisions that allow it to modify amounts payable under the lease or terminate the lease in

certain circumstances such as experiencing actual sales volume below defined threshold and/or co-tenancy provisions

associated with the facility
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Rent expense for operating leases was

thousands 2012 2011 2010

Minimum rent $148225 $153417 $150282

Contingent rent 567 408 314

Sublease income 1145 1121 299

Total $147647 $152704 $150297

Future minimum payments under noncancelable operating leases with an initial term of one year or more were as follows

at February 2013

thousands

2013 150207

2014 129224

2015 104634

2016 80857

2017 55912

Thereafter 133701

Total minimum operating lease payments 654535

12 RISK MANAGEMENT AND DERIVATIVES

General Risk Management

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents and certain other financial instruments with various financial

institutions The financial institutions are located throughout the world and the Companys policy is designed to limit

exposure to any one institution or geographic region The Companys periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing

of these financial institutions are considered in the Companys investment strategy

The Companys Wholesale Operations segment sells to national chains department stores independent retailers mass

merchandisers online retailers and catalogs primarily in the United States Canada and China Receivables arising from

these sales are not collateralized however portion is covered by documentary letters of credit Credit risk is affected by

conditions or occurrences within the economy and the retail industry The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful

accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers and historical trends

Derivatives

In the normal course of business the Companys financial results are impacted by currency rate movements in foreign-currency-

denominated assets liabilities and cash flows as it makes portion of its purchases and sales in local currencies The Company

has established policies and business practices that are intended to mitigate portion of the effect of these exposures The

Company uses derivative financial instruments primarily forward contracts to manage its currency exposures These derivative

financial instruments are viewed as risk management tools and are not used for trading or speculative purposes Derivatives

entered into by the Company are designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted foreign currency transactions

Derivative financial instruments expose the Company to credit and market risk The market risk associated with these

instruments resulting from currency exchange movements is expected to offset the market risk of the underlying transactions

being hedged The Company does not believe there is significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance by the

counterparties associated with these instruments because these transactions are executed with major international financial

institutions and have varying maturities through January 2014 Credit risk is managed through the continuous monitoring of

exposures to such counterparties

The Company principally uses foreign currency forward contracts as cash flow hedges to offset portion of the effects of

exchange rate fluctuations The Companys cash flow exposures include anticipated foreign currency transactions such as

foreign currency denominated sales costs expenses intercompany charges as well as collections and payments The Company

performs quarterly assessment of the effectiveness of the hedge relationship and measures and recognizes any hedge

ineffectiveness in the consolidated statement of earnings Hedge ineffectiveness is evaluated using the hypothetical derivative

method The amount of hedge ineffectiveness for 2012 2011 and 2010 was not material

The Companys hedging strategy uses forward contracts as cash flow hedging instruments which are recorded in the

Companys consolidated balance sheets at fair value The effective portion of gains and losses resulting from changes in the

fair value of these hedge instruments are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income and reclassified to earnings in

the period that the hedged transaction is recognized in earnings
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As of February 2013 the Company had forward contracts maturing at various dates through January 2014 The contract

amount represents the net amount of all purchase and sale contracts of foreign currency

contract Amount

February 2013 January 28 2012US equivalent in thousands

Financial Instruments

U.S dollars purchased by the companys canadian division with canadian dollars 18442 19002

Chinese yuan 15544 43407

Euro 3459 7293

Japanese yen 1665 1365

New Taiwanese dollars 734 830

Great Britain pounds sterling 63 2947

Other currencies 729 1107

$40636 75951

The classification and fair values of derivative instruments designated as hedging instruments included within the

consolidated balance sheet as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 are as follows

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

in thousands Balance Sheet Location Fair Value Balance Sheet Location Fair Value

Foreign exchange forwards contracts

February 2013 Prepaid expenses and other current assets $380 Other accrued expenses $373

January 28 2012 Prepaid expenses and other current assets $839 Other accrued expenses $633

During 2012 and 2011 the effect of derivative ibstruments in cash flow hedging relationships on the consolidated statement

of earnings was as follows

in thousands Fiscal Year Ended 2012 Fiscal Year Ended 2011

Gain Loss Gain Loss Gain Loss Gain Loss

Foreign exchange forward contracts Recognized in Reclassified from Recognized in Reclassified

Income Statement Classification OCI on Accumulated OCt OCI on from Accumulated

Gains Losses Realized Derivatives into Earnings Derivatives oci into Earnings

Net sales 27 99 145

Cost of goods sold 546 325 335 90
Selling and administrative expenses 16 232 169

Interest expense 14

All of the gains and losses currently included within accumulated other comprehensive income associated with the

Companys foreign exchange forward contracts are expected to be reclassified into net earnings within the next 12 months

Additional information related to the Companys derivative financial instruments are disclosed within Note and Note 13 to

the consolidated financial statements

13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value measurement disclosures specify hierarchy of valuation techniques based upon whether the inputs to those

valuation techniques reflect assumptions other market participants would use based upon market data obtained from

independent sources observable inputs or reflect the Companys own assumptions of market participant valuation

unobservable inputs In accordance with the fair value guidance the hierarchy is broken down into three levels based

on the reliability of the inputs as follows

Level Quoted prices in active markets that are unadjusted and accessible at the measurement date for identical

unrestricted assets or liabilities

Level Quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in markets that are not active quoted prices for similar assets

and liabilities in active markets or financial instruments for which significant inputs are observable either directly or

indirectly and

Level Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable

In determining fair value the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and

minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible as well as considers counterparty credit risk in its

assessment of fair value Classification of the financial or non-financial asset or liability within the hierarchy is determined

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

Measurement of Fair Value

The Company measures fair value as an exit price the price to sell an asset or transfer liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date using the procedures described below for all financial and

non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
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Money Market Funds

The Company has cash equivalents consisting of short-term money market funds backed by U.S Treasury securities The

primary objective of these investing activities is to preserve its capital for the purpose of funding operations and it does not

enter into money market funds for trading or speculative purposes The fair value is based on unadjusted quoted market

prices for the funds in active markets with sufficient volume and frequency Level

Deferred Compensation Plan Assets and Liabilities

The Company maintains Deferred Compensation Plan for the benefit of certain management employees The investment

funds offered to the participant generally correspond to the funds offered in the Companys 401k plan and the account

balance fluctuates with the investment returns on those funds The fair value of the assets and corresponding liabilities are

based on unadjusted quoted market prices for the funds in active markets with sufficient volume and frequency Level

Additional information related to the Companys Deferred Compensation Plan is disclosed in Note to the consolidated

financial statements

Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors

Non-employee directors are eligible to participate in deferred compensation plan whereby deferred compensation

amounts are valued as if invested in the Companys common stock through the use of PSU5 Under the plan each

participating directors account is credited with the number of PSUs equal to the number of shares of the Companys

common stock that the participant could purchase or receive with the amount of the deferred compensation based

upon the fair value as determined based on the average of the high and low prices of the Companys common stock

on the last trading day of the fiscal quarter when the cash compensation was earned Dividend equivalents are paid on

PSUs at the same rate as dividends on the Companys common stock and are re-invested in additional PSU5 at the next

fiscal quarter-end The PSUs are payable in cash based on the number of PSU5 credited to the participating directors

account valued on the basis of the fair value at fiscal quarter-end on or following termination of the directors service

The fair value of the liabilities is based on an unadjusted quoted market price for the Companys common stock in an

active market with sufficient volume and frequency Level Additional information related to the Companys Deferred

Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors is disclosed in Note to the consolidated financial statements

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments primarily foreign exchange contracts to reduce its exposure to market risks

from changes in foreign exchange rates These foreign exchange contracts are measured at fair value using quoted forward

foreign exchange prices from counterparties corroborated by market-based pricing Level Additional information related to

the Companys derivative financial instruments is disclosed in Note and Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

The following table presents the Companys assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on recurring basis at

February 2013 and January 28 2012 The Company did not have any transfers between Level and Level during

2012 or 2011

Fair Value Measurements

Levelthousands Total Level Level

Asset Liability

As of February 2013

Cash equivalents money market funds $27223 $27223

Non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets 1411 1411

Non-qualified deferred compensation plan liabilities 1411 1411

Deferred compensation plan liabilities for non-employee directors 1139 1139
Derivative financial Instruments net

As of January 28 2012

Cash equivalents money market funds 5063 5063

Non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets 1081 1081

Non-qualified deferred compensation plan liabilities 1081 1081

Deferred compensation plan liabilities for non-employee directors 620 620
Derivative financial instruments net 206 206

Impairment Charges

The Company assesses the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying value may not be recoverable Factors the Company considers important that could trigger an impairment review

include underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results significant change in the

manner of the use of the asset or negative industry or economic trend When the Company determines that the carrying

value of long-lived assets may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more of the aforementioned factors

impairment is measured based on projected discounted cash flow method Certain factors such as estimated store

sales and expenses used for this nonrecurring fair value measurement are considered Level inputs Long-lived assets

held and used with carrying amount of $61.5 million were written down to their fair value resulting in impairment
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charges of $4.1 million in 2012 Of the $4.1 million impairment charges $1.6 million related to the Famous Footwear

segment $1.4 million related to the Wholesale Operations segment and $1.1 million related to the Specialty Retail segment

Of the $1.6 million related to the Famous Footwear segment $1.3 million is included in restructuring and other special

charges net and $0.3 million is included in seling and administrative expenses The $1.4 million related to the Wholesale

Operations segment is included in restructuring and other special charges net Of the $1.1 million related to the Specialty

Retail segment $0.9 million is included in restructuring gnd other special charges net and $0.2 million is included in

selling and administrative expenses

The Company recognized impairment charges in selling and administrative expenses primarily related to underperforming

retail stores of $1.9 million and $2.8 million during 2011 and 2010 respectively Of the $1.9 million in 2011 $1.4 million related

to the Famous Footwear segment and $0.5 million related to the Specialty Retail segment Of the $2.8 million in 2010

$1.9 million related to the Famous Footwear segment and $0.9 million related to the Specialty Retail segment

The Company performed its annual impairment tests of indefinite lived intangible assets which involves estimating the fair

value using significant unobservable inputs Level As result of its annual impairment testing the Company did not

record any impairment charges during 2012 and 2011 related to intangible assets

The Company performed its annual impairment test of goodwill which involves estimating the fair value of its reporting

units using significant unobservable inputs Level The 2012 impairment test performed as of the first day of the

Companys fourth fiscal quarter resulted in no impairment charges See Note and Note for additional information related

to the impairment test of goodwill

Fair Value of the Companys Other Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents excluding money market funds discussed above receivables trade accounts

payable and borrowing under the revolving credit agreement approximate their carrying values due to the short-term nature of

these instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Companys other financial instruments subject to fair value disclosures are as follows

February 2013 January 28 2012

Carrying Carrying

thousands Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Senior Notes $198823 $208000 $198633 $190000

The fair value of the Companys Senior Notes was based upon quoted prices in an inactive market as of the end of the

respective periods Level

14 COMMON STOCK REPURCHASES

Stock Repurchase Program

In January 2008 the Board of Directors approved stock repurchase program 2008 Program authorizing the repurchase

of up to 2.5 million shares of the Companys outstanding common stock During 2011 the Company repurchased 2.5 million

shares of its outstanding common stock for $25.5 million

On August 25 2011 the Board of Directors approved stock repurchase program 2011 Program authorizing the repurchase

of up to 2.5 million additional shares of the Companys outstanding common stock The Company can utilize the repurchase

program to repurchase shares on the open market or in private transactions from time to time depending on market

conditions The repurchase program does not have an expiration date Repurchases of common stock are limited under the

Companys debt agreements There have been no shares repurchased under the 2011 Program

Repurchases Related to Employee Share-based Awards

During 2012 and 2011 298636 shares and 37695 shares respectively were tendered by employees related to certain share-

based awards These shares were tendered in satisfaction of the exercise price of stock options and/or to satisfy minimum

tax withholding amounts for non-qualified stock options restricted stock and stock performance awards Accordingly

these share repurchases are not considered part of the Companys publicly announced stock repurchase programs

15 SHARE-BASED PLANS

The Company has share-based incentive compensation plans under which certain officers employees and members of the

Board of Directors are participants and may be granted stock options restricted stock and stock performance awards

72 2012 3CvN -C-E CNPNi NC FORM 10-K



ASC 718 Compensation Stock Compensation and ASC 505 Equity require companies to recognize compensation

expense in an amount equal to the fair value of all share-based payments granted to employees over the requisite

service period for each award In certain limited circumstances the Companys incentive compensation plan provides

for accelerated vesting of the awards such as in the event of change in control qualified retirement death or

disability The Company has policy of issuing treasury shares in satisfaction of share-based awards

Share-based compensation expense of $6.5 million $5.6 million and $6.1 million was recognized in 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively as component of selling and administrative expenses The following table details the share-based

compensation expense by plan and the total related income tax benefit for 2012 2011 and 2010

thousands 2012 2011 2010

Expense for share-based compensation plans

Stock options 215 513 824

Stock performance awards 328 471 1243

Restricted stock grants 5946 4649 4077

Total share-based compensation expense 6489 5633 6144

Less Income tax benefit 2507 2107 2082

Total share-based compensation expense net of income tax benefit $3982 $3526 $4062

The Company issued 925676 559401 and 546300 shares of common stock in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively for restricted

stock grants stock options exercised and stock performance awards issued to employees and common and restricted stock

grants issued to directors There were no significant modifications to any share-based awards in 2012 2011 or 2010

Stock Options

Stock options are granted to employees at exercise prices equal to the quoted market price of the Companys stock at the

date of grant Stock options generally vest over four years and have term of 10 years Compensation cost for all stock

options is recognized over the requisite service period for each award No dividends are paid on unexercised options

Expense for stock options is recognized on straight-line basis separately for each vesting portion of the stock option award

The Company granted 26000 111500 and 143000 stock options during 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Fair values

of options granted in 2012 2011 and 2010 were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model based on the

following assumptions

2012 2011 201

Dividend yield
3.1% 2.2% 2.0%

Expected volatility
66.5% 62.9% 59.8%

Risk-free interest rate 1.4% 2.5% 2.9%

Expected term in years

Dividend yields are based on historical dividend yields Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities of the

Companys common stock The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant

for periods corresponding with the expected term of the options The expected term of options represents the weighted-

average period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding giving consideration to vesting schedules and

the Companys historical exercise patterns

Summarized information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at February 2013 is as follows

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Number of Remaining Exercise Number of Exercise

Exercise Price Range Options LifeYears Price Options Price

$3.33 $8.65 127700 4.07 60625 3.83

$8.66 $13.97 163406 10.75 109281 11.19

$13.98 $19.29 774548 15.75 706.548 15.87

$19.30 -$24.61 140906 21.38 140906 21.38

$24.62 $29.93 3000 24.97 3000 24.97

$29.94 $35.25 80247 35.25 80247 35.25

1289807 15.81 1100607 16.88

The weighted-average remaining contractual term of stock options outstanding and currently exercisable at February 2013

was 3.4 years and 2.7 years respectively The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and currently

exercisable at February 2013 was $3.9 million and $2.4 million respectively Intrinsic value for stock options is calculated

based on the exercise price of the underlying awards as compared to the quoted price of the Companys common stock as

of the reporting date
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The following table summarizes stock option activity for 2012 under the current and prior plans

Number of Weighted-Average

_____________________________________________________________________________
Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 28 2012 1662610 $15.79

Granted 26000 9.18

Exercised 139243 10.10

Forfeited 253935 18.43

Canceled or expired 5625 8.04

Outstanding at February 22013 1289807 $15.81

Exercisable at February 2013 1100607 $16.88

The intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $0.5 million $0.4 million and $1.1 million for 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively The amount of cash received from the exercise of stock options was $0.9 million in each of 2012 2011 and

2010 In addition 33033 349 and 7124 shares were tendered by employees in satisfaction of the exercise price of stock

options during 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The tax impact associated with stock options exercised was less than

$0.1 million for 2012 less than $0.1 million for 2011 and $0.2 million for 2010

The following table summarizes nonvested stock option activity for 2012 under the current and prior plans

Number of Weighted-Average

Nonvested Grant Date

Options Fair Value

Nonvested at January 28 2012 278275 $5.26

Granted 26000 5.46

Vested 95350 5.18

Forfeited 19725 6.50

Nonvested at February 2013 189200 $5.07

The weighted-average grant date fair value of stock options granted for 2012 2011 and 2010 was $5.46 $6.83 and

$7.48 respectively The total grant date fair value of stock options vested during 2012 2011 and 2010 was $0.5 million

$0.9 million and $1.3 million respectively As of February 2013 the total remaining unrecognized compensation

cost related to nonvested stock options amounted to $0.3 million which will be amortized over the weighted-average

remaining requisite service period of 2.4 years

RestrIcted Stock

Under the Companys incentive compensation plans restricted stock of the Company may be granted at no cost to certain

officers key employees and directors Plan participants are entitled to cash dividends and voting rights for their respective

shares Restrictions limit the sale or transfer of these shares during the requisite service period which generally ranges from

one to eight years Expense for restricted stock grants is recognized on straight-line basis separately for each vesting

portion of the stock award based upon fair value of the award on the date of grant The fair value of the restricted stock

grants is the quoted market price for the Companys common stock on the date of grant

The following table summarizes restricted stock activity for the year ended February 2013

Number of Weighted-Average

Nonvested Grant Date

Restricted Shares Fair Value

Nonvested at January 28 2012 1850297 $11.09

Granted 759400 9.71

Vested 330072 14.43

Forfeited 169300 11.39

Nonvested at February 2013 2110325 $10.14

For the years ended February 2013 January 28 2012 and January 29 2011 restricted shares granted were 759400
656350 and 565864 respectively Restricted shares forfeited during 2012 2011 and 2010 were 169300 186350 and 100719

respectively The weighted-average fair value of restricted stock awards granted for the years ended February 2013

January 28 2012 and January 29 2011 was $9.71 $13.78 and $13.97 respectively The total grant date fair value of restricted

stock awards vested during the years ended February 2013 January 28 2012 and January 29 2011 was $4.8 million

$3.4 million and $4.4 million respectively As of February 2013 the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related

to nonvested restricted stock grants amounted to $10.2 million which will be amortized over the weighted-average remaining

requisite service period of 1.7 years

The Company recognized $0.9 million and $1.0 million in 2012 and 2011 respectively of excess tax benefits related to restricted

stock vesting and dividends which was reflected as an increase to additional paid-in capital During 2010 the Company

recognized $0.3 million of excess tax deficiencies related to restricted stock vesting and dividends which was reflected as

decrease to additional paid-in capital
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Restricted Stock Units for Non-Employee Directors

Equity-based grants may be made to non-employee directors in the form of cash-equivalent restricted stock units RSUs
at no cost to the non-employee director The RSUs are subject to vesting requirement usually one-year earn dividend

equivalent units and are payable in cash on the date the director terminates service or such earlier date as director may

elect subject to restrictions based on the then-current fair value of the Companys common stock Dividend equivalents

are paid on outstanding RSU5 at the same rate as dividends on the Companys common stock are automatically re-invested

in additional RSU5 and vest immediately as of the payment date for the dividend Expense related to the initial grant of

RSU5 is recognized ratably over the vesting period based upon the fair value of the RSU5 as remeasured at the end of

each period Expense for the dividend equivalents is recognized at fair value immediately Gains and losses resulting from

changes in the fair value of the RSU5 subsequent to the vesting period and through the settlement date are reported in the

Companys consolidated statements of earnings

The following table summarizes restricted stock unit activity for the year ended February 2013

Outstanding

Number of Number of Total Number

Vested RSus Nonvested RSUs of RSUs

January 28 2012 165338 65975 231313

Granted 4377 68215 72592

Vested 67390 67390
Settled

Accrued2 Nonvested RSU5

Weighted-Average

Total Number Grant Date

of RSU5 Fair Value

209321 $10.41

50325 11.94

21992 10.47

6432 6432 6432 16.31

February 2013 230673 66800 297473 275206 11.91

Accrued RSU5 include all fully vested awards and pro-rata portion of nonvested awards based on the elapsed portion of the vesting period

Granted RSus include 5792 RSU5 resulting from dividend equivalents paid on outstanding RSus of which 4377 related to outstanding

vested RSU5 and 1415 related to outstanding nonvested RSus

Information about RSU5 granted vested and settled during 2012 2011 and 2010 is as follows

thousands except per unit amounts 2012 2011 2010

Weighted-average grant date fair value of RSUs granted212 $12.04 10.31 $16.46

Fair value of RSUs vested 1156 601 534

RSUs settled 6432 47796

thousands 2012 2011 2010

Compensation expense 2769 $159 798

Income tax benefit 1077 62 310
Compensation expense net of income tax benefit 1692 97 488

The aggregate intrinsic value of PSUs outstanding and currently vested at February 2013 is $5.1 million and $4.0 million

respectively Aggregate intrinsic value for RSUs is calculated based on the average of the high and low prices of the

Companys common stock as of the reporting date As of February 2013 and January 28 2012 the liabilities associated

with the accrued RSUs totaled $4.7 million and $2.0 million respectively

Stock Performance Awards

Under the Companys incentive compensation plans common stock or cash may be awarded at the end of the performance

period at no cost to certain officers and key employees if certain financial goals are met Under the plan employees are

granted stock performance awards at target number of shares which cliff-vest generally over three-year service period

At the end of the three-year period the employee will be given an amount of shares between 0% and 200% of the targeted

award depending on the achievement of specified financial goals for the three-year period Beginning in 2012 stock

performance awards will only settle in cash

Expense for stock performance awards is recognized based upon the fair value of the awards on the date of grant and

the anticipated number of shares or cash to be awarded on straight-line basis over the three-year service period The

fair value of the stock performance awards is the quoted market price for the Companys common stock on the date of

grant The Company had nonvested outstanding stock performance awards for 222325 shares at 60% target level as of

February 2013 which may result in the issuance of up to 382525 shares at the end of the service periods

Includes dividend equivalents granted on outstanding RSU5 which vest immediately

The following table details the RSU compensation expense and the total related income tax benefit for 2012 2011 and 2010
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The following table summarizes stock performance activity for the year ended February 2013

Number of Number of

Nonvested Stock Nonvested Stock Weighted-Average

Performance Awards Performance Awards Grant Date

at Target Level at Maximum Level Fair Value

Nonvested at January 28 2012 285750 428625 $14.56

Granted 104325 208650 9.46

Vested 140000 210000 13.99

Expired

Forfeited 27750 44750 13.34

Nonvested at February 2013 222325 382525 $12.67

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stock performance awards granted for 2012 2011 and 2010 was $9.46

$15.20 and $13.99 respectively Stock performance awards of 140000 and 323500 vested in 2012 and 2011 respectively

and no awards vested in 2010 As of February 2013 the remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested

stock performance awards was $1.6 million

16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

banner International Holdings Limited

The Company entered into joint venture agreement with subsidiary of banner International Holdings Limited CBI
formerly known as Hongguo International Holdings Limited to market Naturalizer footwear in China in 2007 The Company

is 51% owner of BH Footwear the joint venture with CBI owning the other 49% BH Footwear began operations in 2007

and distributes the Naturalizer brand in department stores and free-standing stores in several of Chinas largest cities In

addition BH Footwear sells Naturalizer footwear to CR1 on wholesale basis CR1 then sells Naturalizer products through

retail stores in China During 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company through its consolidated subsidiary BH Footwear sold

$6.9 million $5.9 million and $3.9 million respectively of Naturalizer footwear on wholesale basis to CBI

17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Environmental Remediation

Prior operations included numerous manufacturing and other facilities for which the Company may have responsibility

under various environmental laws for the remediation of conditions that may be identified in the future The Company is

involved in environmental remediation and ongoing compliance activities at several sites and has been notified that it is or

may be potentially responsible party at several other sites

Redfield

The Company is remediating under the oversight of Colorado authorities the groundwater and indoor air at its owned

facility in Colorado the Redfield site or when referring to remediation activities at or under the facility the on-site

remediation and residential neighborhoods adjacent to and near the property the off-site remediation that have been

affected by solvents previously used at the facility The on-site remediation calls for the operation of pump and treat

system which prevents migration of contaminated groundwater off the property as the final remedy for the site subject

to monitoring and periodic review of the on-site conditions and other remedial technologies that may be developed in the

future Off-site groundwater concentrations have been reducing over time since installation of the pump and treat system

in 2000 and injection of clean water beginning in 2003 However localized areas of contaminated bedrock just beyond

the property line continue to impact off-site groundwater The modified workplan for addressing this condition includes

converting the off-site bioremediation system into monitoring well network and employing different remediation methods

in these recalcitrant areas In accordance with the workplan pilot test was conducted of certain groundwater remediation

methods and the results of that test were used to develop more detailed plans for remedial activities in the off-site areas

which were approved by the authorities and are being implemented in phased manner The results of groundwater

monitoring are being used to evaluate the effectiveness of these activities The Company submitted proposed expanded

remedy workplan and is awaiting public comment and feedback from the oversight authorities The liability for the on-site

remediation was discounted at 4.8% On an undiscounted basis the on-site remediation liability would be $15.9 million as of

February 2013 The Company expects to spend approximately $0.2 million in each of the next five years and $14.9 million

in the aggregate thereafter related to the on-site remediation

The cumulative expenditures for both on-site and off-site remediation through February 2013 were $25.8 million

The Company has recovered portion of these expenditures from insurers and other third parties The reserve for the

anticipated future remediation activities at February 2013 is $7.8 million of which $7.0 million is recorded within other

liabilities and $0.8 million is recorded within other accrued expenses Of the total $7.8 million reserve $4.8 million is for

on-site remediation and $3.0 million is for off-site remediation
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Other

The Company has completed its remediation efforts at its closed New York tannery and two associated landfills In 1995

state environmental authorities reclassified the status of these sites as being properly closed and requiring only continued

maintenance and monitoring through 2024 The Company has an accrued liability of $1.6 million at February 2013

related to these sites which has been discounted at 6.4% On an undiscounted basis this liability would be $2.0 million

The Company expects to spend approximately $0.2 million in each of the next five years and $1.0 million in the aggregate

thereafter related to these sites In addition various federal and state authorities have identified the Company as

potentially responsible party for remediation at certain other sites However the Company does not currently believe that

its liability for such sites if any would be material

Based on information currently available the Company has an accrued liability of $9.4 million as of February 2013 to

complete the cleanup maintenance and monitoring at all sites Of the $9.4 million liability $8.4 million is recorded in other

liabilities and $1.0 million is recorded in other accrued expenses The Company continues to evaluate its estimated costs in

conjunction with its environmental consultants and records its best estimate of such liabilities However future actions and

the associated costs are subject to oversight and approval of various governmental authorities Accordingly the ultimate

costs may vary and it is possible costs may exceed the recorded amounts

Litigation

Etienne Aigner License Termination

During the second quarter of 2012 the Company terminated the Etienne Aigner license agreement due to dispute with

the licensor The term of the former license agreement extended through 2018 The former license agreement would have

required guaranteed minimum royalty payments to the licensor of an additional $20.9 million between July 12 2012 and

contract expiration in 2018 The licensor has disputed the basis on which the Company terminated the former license

agreement which has resulted in the parties seeking binding arbitration of their dispute On October 2012 the Company

instituted the arbitration proceedings alleging that the licensor breached the license agreement and is seeking damages

On October 19 2012 the licensor responded by denying the Companys allegations asserting its own claims for breach of

the license agreement and is seeking damages The arbitration is currently scheduled for May 2013 Due to the early stage of

the proceedings the ultimate outcome is uncertain and the Company has not recorded liability or receivable for this matter

The Company is involved in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business In the opinion

of management the outcome of such ordinary course of business proceedings and litigation currently pending is not

expected to have material adverse effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position Legal costs

associated with litigation are generally expensed as incurred

Other

In 2004 the Company was notified of the insolvency of an insurance company that insured the Company for workers

compensation and casualty losses from 1973 to 1989 That company is now in liquidation Certain claims from that time

period are still outstanding for which the Company has an accrued liability of $1.4 million as of February 2013 While

management believes it has an appropriate reserve for this matter the ultimate outcome and cost to the Company may vary

At February 2013 the Company was contingently liable for remaining lease commitments of approximately $0.2 million

in the aggregate which relate to former retail locations that it exited in prior years These obligations will continue to

decline over the next several years as leases expire In order for the Company to incur any liability related to these lease

commitments the current lessees would have to default
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18 FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Brown Shoe Company Inc issued senior notes which are fully and unconditionally and jointly and severally guaranteed by

all of its existing and future subsidiaries that are guarantors under its existing agreement The following table presents the

consolidating financial information for each of Brown Shoe Company Inc Parent the Guarantors and subsidiaries of the

Parent that are not Guarantors the Non-Guarantors together with consolidating eliminations as of and for the periods

indicated The Guarantors are 100% owned by the Parent

The consolidating financial statements have been prepared using the equity method of accounting in accordance with

the requirements for presentation of such information Management believes that the information presented in lieu of

complete financial statements for each of the Guarantors provides meaningful information to allow investors to determine

the nature of the assets held by and operations and cash flows of each of the consolidated groups

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

AS OF FEBRUARY 2013

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 32060 36163 68223

Receivables 70308 18088 37287 125683

Inventories 94817 421914 16544 533275

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 15099 29136 1012 45247

Total current assets 180224 501198 91006 772428

Other assets 99527 19739 848 120114

Goodwill and intangible assets net 37270 19901 75457 132628

Property and equipment net 27931 109457 8701 146089

Investment in subsidiaries 765729 91136 11 3033 969898
Total assets $1110681 741431 $289045 $969898 1171259

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement 105000 105000

Trade accounts payable 54126 126293 42323 222742

Other accrued expenses 54729 79492 7146 141367

Total current liabilities 213.855 205785 49469 469109

Other liabilities

Long-term debt 198823 198823

Other liabilities 15897 46658 14871 77426

Intercompany payable receivable 256977 389774 132797

Total other liabilities 471.697 343116 147668 276249

Equity

Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders equity 425129 878762 91136 969898 425129

Noncontrolling interests 772 772

Total equity 425129 878762 91908 969898 425901

Total liabilities and equity 1110681 741431 $289045 $969898 1171259

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 2013

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net sales 732.350 $1882809 $191994 $209088 $2598065

Cost of qoods sold 566045 1076068 154681 209088 1587706

Gross profit 166305 806741 37313 1010359

Selling and administrative expenses 193763 714434 10760 918957

Restructuring and other special charges net 12533 11485 24018

Impairment of intangible assets 5777 5777

Equity in earnings loss of subsidiary 65160 23079 88239

Operating earnings loss 19392 103901 26553 88239 61607

Interest expense 23378 23382
Interest income 10 258 54 322

Intercompany interest income expense 13073 13525 452

Earnings loss before income taxes from continuing operations 9097 90630 27059 88239 38547

Income tax benefit provision 18394 25470 4267 11343

Net earnings loss from continuing operations 27491 65160 22792 88239 27204

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 287 287
Net earnings loss attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc 27491 65160 23079 88239 27491
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 2013

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net earnings loss 27491 $65160 22792 $88239 $27204

Other comprehensive loss income net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustment 475 475

Pension and other postretirement benefits adjustments 8871 190 9061
Unrealized loss on derivative financial instruments net of tax 49 353 402
Net loss from derivatives reclassified into earnings net of tax 183 64 247

Other comprehensive loss net of tax 8737 8741
Comprehensive income loss 18754 65156 22792 88239 18463

Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 275 275
Comprehensive income loss attributable

to Brown Shoe Company Inc $18754 65156 $23067 $88239 18738

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 2013

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net cash provided by used for operating activities 53628 110422 33887 197937

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment 10132 43711 1958 55801
Capitalized software 7925 7928
Acquisition cost 5000 5000
Net cash used for investing activities 18057 48711 1961 68729

Financing activities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement 805000 805000

Repayments under revolving credit agreement 901000 901000
Intercompany financing 77582 64083 13499
Dividends paid 12011 12011
Issuance of common stock under share-based plans net 1700 1700
Tax benefit related to share-based plans 944 944

Net cash used for financing activities 31185 64083 13499 108767
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 100 100

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4386 2272 18427 20541

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 4386 34332 17736 47682

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 32060 36163 68223

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

AS OF JANUARY 28 2012

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4386 34332 17736 47682

Receivables 78129 24082 51811 154022
Inventories 129776 418264 13757 561797

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 35625 14685 1327 51637
Total current assets 239144 491363 84631 815138

Other assets 115515 23844 918 140277
Goodwill and intangible assets net 47765 16160 76665 140590

Property and equipment net 23621 97887 9963 131471

Investment in subsidiaries 813602 68057 881659
Total assets $1239647 697311 172177 $881659 $1227476

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement 201000 201000

Trade accounts payable 49238 92431 48942 190611

Other accrued expenses 60079 65676 7214 132969

Total current liabilities 310317 158107 56156 524580

Other liabilities

Long-term debt 198633 198633

Other liabilities 29702 46717 14128 90547

Intercompany payable receivable 288326 321115 32789

Total other liabilities 516661 274398 46917 289180

Equity

Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders equity 412669 813602 68057 881659 412669

Noncontrolling interests 1047 1047
Total equity 412669 813602 69104 881659 413716

Total liabilities and equity $1239647 697311 172177 $881659 $1227476
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 282012

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net sales 691008 $1857192 219939 185315 $2582824

Cost of goods sold 529087 1061312 181100 185315 1586184

Gross profit
161921 795880 38839 996640

Selling and administrative expenses 168414 715987 53018 937419

Restructuring and other special charges net 20308 3363 23671

Equity in earnings loss of subsidiaries 49662 14613 35049

Operating earnings loss 22861 61917 14179 35049 35550

Interest expense 26113 633 605 26141

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 1003 1003

Interest income 247 396 644

Intercompany interest income expense 15714 15098 616

Earnings loss before income taxes from continuing operations 11460 46433 13794 35049 9050

Income tax benefit provision 13129 12437 1018 326

Net earnings loss from continuing operations 24589 33996 14812 35049 8724

Discontinued operations

Earnings from operations of subsidiary net of tax 1701 1701

Gain on sale of subsidiary net of tax 13965 13965

Net earnings from discontinued operations 15666 15666

Net earnings loss 24589 49662 14812 35049 24390

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 199 199

Net earnings loss attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc 24589 49662 14613 35049 24589

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 28 2012

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net earnings loss $24589 $49662 14812 $35049 $24390

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustment 1320 1113 207

Pension and other postretirement benefits adjustments 3358 417 2941

Unrealized loss gain on derivative financial instruments

net of tax 36 379 343

Net loss from derivatives reclassified into earnings net of tax 22 22 44

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax 3344 1304 1113 3535

Comprehensive income loss 27933 50966 15925 35049 27925

Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 160 160

Comprehensive income loss attributable

to Brown Shoe Company Inc 27933 $50966 15765 35049 28085

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 28 2012

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net cash used for provided by operating activities 205188 234780 18439 55 48086

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment 2739 21917 3201 27857

Capitalized software 10419 288 10707

Acquisition cost 156636 156636

Cash recognized on initial consolidation 3121 3121

Net proceeds from sale of subsidiary 61922 6572 55350

Net cash used for provided by investing activities 13158 42838 166409 136729

Financing activities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement 1595500 1595500

Repayments under revolving credit agreement 1592500 1592500

Intercompany financing 205.689 271509 65875 55
Proceeds from issuance of 2019 Senior Notes 198633 198633

Redemption of 2012 Senior Notes 150000 150000

Dividends paid 12076 12076

Debt issuance costs 6.428 6428

Acquisition of treasury stock 25.484 25484
Issuance of common stock under share-based plans net 918 918

Tax deficiency benefit related to share-based plans 292 1292 1000

Contributions by noncontrolling interests 378 378

Net cash provided by used for financing activities 213960 270217 66253 55 9941

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 164 164
Decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 4386 7237 81717 78866
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 27095 99453 126548

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 4386 34332 17736 47682
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 29 2011

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net sales 714388 $1768767 $216604 195668 $2504091

Cost of goods sold 545219 967712 183274 195668 1500537

Gross profit 169169 801055 33330 1003554

Selling and administrative expenses 190586 717775 14615 922976

Restructuring and other special charges net 7209 705 7914

Equity in earnings loss of subsidiaries 58275 11860 70135

Operating earnings loss 29649 95140 18010 70135 72664

Interest expense 19643 19647
Interest income 76 126 203

Intercompany interest income expense 14961 11212 3749
Earnings loss before income taxes 24968 84000 14387 70135 53220

Income tax benefit provision 12265 25415 3010 16160

Net earnings loss 37233 58585 11377 70135 37060

Net earnings loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 310 483 173
Net earnings loss attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc 37233 58275 11860 70135 37233

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 29 2011

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net earnings loss 37233 58585 11377 $70135 37060

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustment 2150 2150

Pension and other postretirement benefits adjustments 3450 17 3433

Unrealized loss gan on derivative financial instruments

net of tax 80 251 171

Net loss from derivatives reclassified into earnings net of tax 208 25 233

Other comprehensive income net of tax 3578 2409 5987

Comprehensive income loss 40811 60994 11377 70135 43047

Comprehensive income loss attributable to

noncontrolling interest 310 460 150
Comprehensive income loss attributable

to Brown Shoe Company Inc 40811 60684 11837 $70135 43197

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 29 2011

thousands Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net cash provided by used for operating activities 64824 129040 61904 2312

Investing activities

Purchases of.property and equipment 4863 25126 792 30781

Capitalized software 23793 253 24046
Net cash used for investing activities 28656 25379 792 54827

Financing activities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement 1051500 1051500

Repayments under revolving credit agreement 948000 948000
Intercompany financing 132926 206664 73738

Acquisition of noncontrolling interests Edelman Shoe Inc 7309 40001 32692
Dividends paid 12254 5010 5010 12254

Debt issuance costs 2636 2636
Issuance of common stock under share-based plans net 926 926

Contributions by noncontrolling interests 527 527

Tax deficiency related to share-based plans 87 87
Net cash used for provided by financing activities 36168 171673 78221 57284

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 570 570

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 17824 17109 715

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 9271 116562 125833

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 27095 99453 126548
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19 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA Unaudited

Quarterly financial results unaudited for the years 2012 and 2011 are as follows

Quarters

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

thousands except per share amounts 13 weeks 13 weeks 13 weeks 14 weeks

2012

Net sales $626441 $599279 $732169 $640176

Gross profit 239064 233814 285782 251699

Net earnings loss 1628 2714 24287 4003

Net earnings loss attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc 1695 2535 24292 4039

Per share of common stock

Basic earnings loss per common share attributable

to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.04 0.06 0.57 0.09

Diluted earnings loss per common share attributable

to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.04 0.06 0.56 0.09

Dividends paid 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07

Market value

High 11.30 14.24 16.88 19.64

Low 8.49 8.28 13.22 14.76

EPS for the quarters may not sum to the amounts for the year as each period is computed on discrete period basis

Quarters

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

thousands except per share amounts 13 weeks 13 weeks 13 weeks 13 weeks

2011

Net sales $619555 $620590 $713788 $628891

Gross profit 247964 233605 276498 238573

Net earnings loss 3641 4768 33693 8176

Net earnings loss attributable to Brown Shoe Company Inc 3688 4609 33732 8222
Per share of common stock

Basic earnings loss per common share attributable

to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.08 0.11 0.80 0.21

Diluted earnings loss per common share attributable

to Brown Shoe Company Inc shareholders 0.08 0.11 0.79 0.21

Dividends paid 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07

Market value

High 15.77 12.79 10.31 9.72

Low 10.39 8.85 5.85 7.51

Adjusted from amounts previously reported in the Companys Form 10-Q for the financial results related to TBMC TBMC was acquired in

the first quarter of 2011 and sold in the subsequent third quarter of 2011 The historical financial results of TBMC have been reclassified and

presented as discontinued operations

EPS for the quarters may not sum to the amounts for the year as each period is computed on discrete period basis

The fourth quarter of 2012 included $2.9 million $1.8 million after-tax or $0.05 per diluted share of charges related to the

Companys portfolio realignment initiatives

The fourth quarter of 2011 included

$14.7 million $9.3 million after-tax or $0.23 per diluted share of charges related to the Companys portfolio

realignment initiatives

$2.9 million $1.6 million after-tax or $0.04 per diluted share of costs related to the integration of ASG and

$0.9 million $1.4 million after-tax or $0.04 per diluted share as reduction to the gain on sale of subsidiary
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SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Col Col Col Col CoP

Additions

Balance at Charged Charged Balance

Beginning Costs and Other Accounts- Deductions- at End

Description of Period Expenses Describe Describe of Period

thousands

YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 2013

Deducted from assets or accounts

Doubtful accounts and allowances 1705 360 1055 1010

Customer allowances 23528 52495 54333 21690

Customer discounts 618 4513 4434B 697

Inventory valuation allowances 22259 63675 66043m 19891

Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 6946 1815 28S 8476

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 28 2012

Deducted from assets or accounts

Doubtful accounts and allowances 1056 12B4 635 1705

Customer allowances 17023 56076 49571 23528

Customer discounts 319 3830 3531w 618

Inventory valuation allowances 15305 54083 47129 22259

Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 6751 495 481D 781E 6946

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 29 2011

Deducted from assets or accounts

Doubtful accounts and allowances 1021 516 481A 1056

Customer allowances 13033 43007 39017 17023

Customer discounts 257 6898 6836 319

Inventory valuation allowances 15414 53506 53615C 15305

Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 8859 296 2404w 6751

Accounts written off net of recoveries

Discounts and allowances granted to customers of the Wholesale Operations segment

Adjustment upon disposal of related inventories

Established through purchase accounting related to the ASG acquisition

Reflects reductions to valuation allowance for the net operating loss carryforwards for certain states based on the Companys expectations

for utilization of net operating loss carryforwards

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

It is the Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officers ultimate responsibility to ensure we maintain disclosure

controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports

that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded processed summarized and reported within

the time periods specified in the Commissions rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to our management

including our principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions as appropriate

to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure Our disclosure controls and procedures include mandatory

communication of material events automated accounting processing and reporting management review of monthly

quarterly and annual results an established system of internal controls and internal control reviews by our internal auditors

control system no matter how well-conceived or operated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that

the objectives of the control system are met Furthermore the design of control system must reflect the fact there

are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs Because of the inherent

limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and

instances of fraud if any have been detected These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-

making can be faulty and breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake Additionally controls can be

circumvented by the individual acts of some persons by collusion of two or more people or by management override of

the controls The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future

events and there can be no assurance any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future

conditions over time controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate Because of the inherent limitations in cost-effective control system

misstatements due to errors or fraud may occur and not be detected Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed

to provide reasonable level of assurance that their objectives are achieved As of February 2013 management of the
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Company including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness

of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Based

upon and as of the date of that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded our

disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Based on the evaluation of internal control over financial reporting the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

have concluded that there have been no changes in the Companys internal controls over financial reporting or in other

factors during the quarter ended February 2013 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially

affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information regarding Directors of the Company is set forth under the caption Proposal Election of Directors in the

Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 30 2013 which information is incorporated herein

by reference

Information regarding Executive Officers of the Registrant is set forth under the caption Executive Officers of the Registrant

that can be found in Item of this report which information is incorporated herein by reference

Information regarding Section 16 Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance is set forth under the caption Section 16a

Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held

May 30 2013 which information is incorporated herein by reference

Information regarding the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee financial expert is set forth under the captions

Board Meetings and Committees and Audit Committee respectively in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders to be held May 30 2013 which information is incorporated herein by reference

Information regarding the Corporate Governance Guidelines Code of Business Conduct and Code of Ethics is set forth under

the caption Corporate Governance in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 30 2013

which information is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding Executive Compensation is set forth under the captions Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Executive Compensation and Compensation of Non-Employee Directors in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders to be held May 30 2013 which information is incorporated herein by reference

Information regarding the Compensation Committee Report is set forth under the caption Compensation Committee Report

in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 30 2013 which information is incorporated

herein by reference

Information regarding Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation is set forth under the caption

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders to be held May 30 2013 which information is incorporated herein by reference
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information regarding Company Stock Ownership by Directors Officers and Principal Holders of Our Stock is set forth

under the caption Stock Ownership by Directors Executive Officers and 5% Shareholders in the Proxy Statement for the

Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 30 2013 which information is incorporated herein by reference

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth aggregate information regarding the Companys equity compensation plans as of

February 2013

Number of securities

remaining available

Number of securities Weighted-average for future issuance under

to be issued upon exercise exercise price of equity compensation plans

of outstanding options outstanding options excluding securities

warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column

CcPlan category

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 16861821 15.81 2373734 121

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

Total 1686182 15.81 2373734

Column includes the following

1289807 outstanding stock options includes vested and nonvested options

ii 186375 rights to receive common shares subject to nonvested performance share awards at the maximum award level The target

amount of shares to be awarded under these performance share awards is 124250 depending on the achievement of certain objectives

at the end of fiscal 2013 These awards may be payable at anywhere from zero to maximum of 186375 shares at the end of 2013

Our current expectation is that no shares will be issued upon satisfaction of these awards

iii 210000 rights to receive common shares subject to performance share awards that have vested at the end of 2012 but had not been

approved for issuance by the Compensation Committee as of the end of fiscal 2012 The target amount of shares for these awards was

140000 and the awards will be paid out at 60% of target in March 2013

Performance share rights described in ii and iii above were disregarded for purposes of computing the weighted-average exercise price

in column This table excludes restricted stock units granted to independent directors and independent directors deferred compensation

units which are payable only in cash and are described further in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

Represents our remaining shares available for award grants based upon the plan provisions which reflects our practice to reserve shares

for outstanding awards Per our current practice the number of securities available for grant has been reduced for stock option grants and

performance share awards payable in stock Performance share awards are reserved based on the maximum payout level

Information regarding share-based plans is set forth in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and is hereby

incorporated by reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information regarding Certain Relationships and Related Transactions is set forth under the caption Related Party Transactions

in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 30 2013 which information is incorporated

herein by reference

Information regarding Director Independence is set forth under the caption Director Independence in the Proxy Statement

for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 30 2013 which information is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information regarding our Principal Accounting Fees and Services is set forth under the caption Fees Paid to Independent

Registered Public Accountants in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 30 2013

which information is incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

and The list of financial statements and Financial Statement Schedules required by this item is included in the Index on page under

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data All other schedules specified under Regulation S-X have been omitted because they are not

applicable because they are not required or because the information required is included in the financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits

Certain instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt securities of the Company are omitted pursuant to Item 601b4iii of

Regulation S-K and the Company hereby undertakes to furnish to the SEC upon request copies of any such instruments

Exhibit No Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Brown Shoe Company Inc the Company incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 1OQ for the quarter ended May 2007 and filed June 2007

3.2 Bylaws of the Company as amended through October 2011 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys

Form 8-K dated and filed October 11 2011

4.2a Indenture for the 7.125% Senior Notes due 2019 dated May 11 2011 among Brown Shoe Company Inc the subsidiary guarantors

set forth therein and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as trustee as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to

the Companys Form 8-K dated and filed May 13 2011

4.2b Form of 7.125% Senior Notes due 2019 as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Form 8-K dated and

filed May 13 2011

lOla Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of January 2011 the Credit Agreement among the Company

as lead borrower for itself and on behalf of certain of its subsidiaries and Bank of America N.A as lead issuing bank

administrative agent and collateral agent Wells Fargo Bank National Association as an issuing bank Wells Fargo Capital

Finance LLC as syndication agent Bank of America N.A and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as co-documentation agents and

the other financial institutions party thereto as lenders as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys

Form 8-K dated and filed January 72011

10.lb First Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Confidential Side Letter dated February 17 2011

by and among Brown Shoe Company Inc as lead borrower for itself and on behalf of certain of its subsidiaries and Bank of

America N.A as lead issuing bank administrative agent and collateral agent Wells Fargo Bank National Association as an

issuing bank Wells Fargo Capital Finance LLC as syndication agent Bank of America NA and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A

as co-documentation agents and the other financial institutions party thereto as lenders as incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K dated and filed February 17 2011

10.2a Brown Shoe Company Inc Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002 as Amended and Restated as of May 22 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit to the Companys definitive proxy statement dated and filed April 11 2008

10.2b1 Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement for grants commencing May 2008 under the Brown Shoe Company Inc

Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5b1 to the Companys Form

10-K for the year ended January 31 2009 and filed March 31 2009

1O.2b2 Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement for grants prior to May 2008 under the Brown Shoe Company Inc

Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended July 31 2004 and filed September 2004

1O.2cl Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement for grants commencing May 2008 under the Brown Shoe Company Inc

Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1O.5c1 to the Companys Form

10-K for the year ended January 31 2009 and filed March 31 2009

10.2c2 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement for awards issued prior to May 2008 under the Brown Shoe Company Inc

Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 10-0

for the quarter ended July 31 2004 and filed September 2004

1O.2d Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for employee grants commencing 2008 under the Brown Shoe Company Inc Incentive

and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1O.5d1 to the Companys Form 10-K for the

year ended January 31 2009 and filed March 31 2009

10.2e Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for non-employee director awards for grants commencing May 2008 under the

Brown Shoe Company Inc Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1O.5e to

the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended January 31 2009 and filed March 31 2009

10.2f Form of Performance Award Agreement for 2010-2012 performance period under the Brown Shoe Company Inc Incentive

and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 10-0/A for the

quarter ended October 30 2010 and filed January 21 2011

10.3a Brown Shoe Company Inc Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2011 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit to the

Companys definitive proxy materials filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Schedule 14A on April 15 2011

1O.3b1 Form of Performance Award Agreement for 2011-2013 performance period under the Brown Shoe Company Inc Incentive

and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002 as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 10-0 for the

quarter ended April 30 2011 and filed June 2011

10.3b2 Form of Performance Award Agreement for 2012-2014 performance period under the Brown Shoe Company Inc Incentive

and Stock Compensation Plan of 2011 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 10-0 for the

quarter ended July 28 2012 and filed September 2012

1O.3b3 Form of Performance Award Agreement for 2013-2015 performance period under the Brown Shoe Company Inc Incentive

and Stock Compensation Plan of 2011 filed herewith
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Exhibit No Description

10.4a Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between the Company and each of its Non-Employee

Directors for grants commencing in 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 10-0 for

the quarter ended August 2008 and filed September 10 2008

10.4b Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between the Company and each of its Non-Emploiee

Directors for grants prior to 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10u to the Companys Form 10-K for the year

ended January 29 2005 and filed April 2005

10.5 Brown Shoe Company Inc Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors as amended and restated as of

January 2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2a to the Companys Form 10-0 for the quarter ended

November 2008 and filed December 2008

10.6 Brown Shoe Company Inc Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP conformed and restated as of December 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 10-0 for the quarter ended November 2008 and filed

December 2008

10.7 Brown Shoe Company Inc Deferred Compensation Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed December 11 2007

10.8 Brown Shoe Company Inc Non-Employee Director Share Plan 2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 10-0 for the quarter ended November 2008 and filed December 2008

10.9 Severance Agreement effective April 2006 between the Company and Richard Ausick incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 10-a for the quarter ended July 31 2010 and filed September 2010

10.10 Severance Agreement effective April 2006 between the Company and Diane Sullivan incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 8-K dated and filed April 2006

10.11 Severance Agreement effective October 30 2006 between the Company and Mark Hood incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Form 8-K dated and filed October 30 2006

10.12 Severance Agreement effective April 2006 between the Company and Douglas Koch filed herewith

10.13 Form of Amendment letter dated December 18 2009 to the Severance Agreements between the Company and each of

Richard fri Ausick Mark Hood Douglas Koch and Diane Sullivan as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to

the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31 2010 and filed September 2010

10.14 Severance Agreement effective June 11 2012 between the Company and Russell Hammer incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K dated and filed May 29 2012

10.15 Severance Agreement dated December 20 2012 and effective as of December 2012 between the Company and John

Schmidt incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K dated and filed December 21 2012

10.16 Employment Agreement dated January 2011 between Ronald Fromm and the Company as incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K dated and filed January 10 2011

10.17 Stock Purchase Agreement dated February 17 2011 by and among Brown Shoe Company Inc Brown Shoe Netherlands By
American Sporting Goods Corporation the sellers named therein and Jerome Turner in his capacity as representative as

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K dated and filed February 17 2011

21 Subsidiaries of the registrant

23 Consent of Registered Public Accounting Firm

24 Power of attorney contained on signature page

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document

Exhibits

See Item 15a3 above On request copies of any exhibit will be furnished to shareholders upon payment of the Companys reasonable

expenses incurred in furnishing such exhibits

Financial Statement Schedules

See Item above

Denotes management contract or compensatory plan arrangements

Denotes exhibit is filed with this Form 10-K

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of registration statement or

prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

BROWN SHOE COMPANY INC

By Is Russell Hammer

Russell Hammer

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date April 2013

Know all men by these presents that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Diane Sullivan

Russell Hammer and Michael Oberlander his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent with full power of

substitution and resubstitution for him or her and in his or her name place and stead in any and all capacities to sign any

and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other documents

in connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange Commission granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent full

power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done as fully to all intents

and purposes as he or she might or could do in person hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent

or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant on the dates and in the capacities indicated

Signatures Date Title

/5/ Diane Sullivan

Diane Sullivan April 2013 Director President and Chief Executive Officer

on behalf of the Company and as Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Russell Hammer

Russell Hammer April 2013 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

on behalf of the Company and as Principal Financial Officer

and Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ Ronald Fromm

Ronald Eromm March 25 2013 Chairman of the Board of Directors

/s/ Mario Baeza
__________

Mario Baeza March 25 2013 Director

/s/Mahendra Gupta

Mahendra Gupta March 25 2013 Director

/5/ Carla Hendra

Carla Hendra March 25 2013 Director

Is Ward Klein
_______

Ward Klein March 25 2013 Director

/s/ Steven Korn

Steven Korn March 25 2013 Director

Is Patricia McGinnis

Patricia McGinnis March 25 2013 Director

/5/ Patrick McGinnis

Patrick McGinnis March 25 2013 Director

/s/ Michael Neidorff

Michael Neidorff March 25 2013 Director

Is Hal Upbin

Hal Upbin March 25 2013 Director

/s/ Harold Wright

Harold Wright March 25 2013 Director
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

Diane Sullivan certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Brown Shoe Company Inc the registrant

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud wh.ether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role

in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

/5/ Diane Sullivan

Diane Sullivan

President and Chief Executive Officer

Brown Shoe Company Inc

April 2013
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

Russell Hammer certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Brown Shoe Company Inc the registrant

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role

in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Is Russell Hammer

Russell Hammer

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Brown Shoe Company Inc

April 2013
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to

118 U.S.C 1350
As Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Brown Shoe Company Inc the Registrant on Form 10-K for the year

ended February 2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report we
Diane Sullivan President and Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant and Russell Hammer Senior Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant certify to the best of our knowledge pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350

as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the Registrant

Is Diane Sullivan

Diane Sullivan

President and Chief Executive Officer

Brown Shoe Company Inc

April 2013

Is Russell Hammer

Russell Hammer
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Brown Shoe Company Inc

April 2013
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

In this annual report the companys financial results are provided both in accordance vith generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP and using certain non-GAAP financial measures In particular the company provides historic operating

earnings net earnings loss and earnings loss per diluted share adjusted to exclude certain gains charges and

recoveries which are non-GAAP financial measures These results are included as complement to results provided

in accordance with GAAP because management believes these non-GAAP financial measures help identify underlying

trends in the companys business and provide useful information to both management and investors by excluding certain

items that may not be indicative of the companys core operating results These measures should not be considered

substitute for or superior to GAAP results

SELECTED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

GAAP earnings 0.64 0.56 0.85 0.22 $3.21

charges other items

ASG acquisition and integration-related costs 0.01 0.11 0.02

ASG cost of goods sold adjustment 0.05

Insurance recoveries net 0.15

Expense and capital containment initiatives 0.46

Headquarters consolidation 0.03 0.44

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 2.87

IT initiatives 0.10 0.14 0.06

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 0.02

Organizational changes 0.03 0.07

Portfolio realignment

Gain on sale of subsidiary 0.32

Brand exits and cost reductions 0.45 0.28

Total charges other items 0.49 0.14 0.12 0.18 3.68

Adiusted earnings 1.13 0.70 0.97 0.40 0.47

In accordance with GAAP purchase accounting rules require the company to record inventory at fair value i.e expected selling price less

costs to sell on the acquisition date This results in lower than typical gross margins when the acquired inventory is sold This adjustment

reflects the elimination of the unfavorable impact of lower gross margins for ASG product sold in the first half of 2011

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS

This document contains certain forward-looking statements and expectations regarding the companys future performance

and the future performance of its brands Such statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties that could

cause actual results to differ materially These risks include changing consumer demands which may be influenced by

consumers disposable income which in turn can be influenced by general economic conditions ii intense competition

within the footwear industry iU rapidly changing fashion trends and purchasing patterns iv customer concentration

and increased consolidation in the retail industry political and economic conditions or other threats to the continued

and uninterrupted flow of inventory from China where ASG has manufacturing facilities and both ASG and Brown Shoe

Company rely heavily on third-party manufacturing facilities for significant amount of their inventory vi the ability

to recruit and retain senior management and other key associates vii the ability to attract retain and maintain good

relationships with licensors and protect intellectual property rights viU the ability to secure/exit leases on favorable

terms ix the ability to maintain relationships with current suppliers compliance with applicable laws and standards

with respect to lead content in paint and other product safety issues xi the ability to source product at pace consistent

with increased demand for footwear and xii the impact of rising prices in potentially inflationary global environment

The companys reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission contain detailed information relating to such factors

including without limitation the information under the caption Risk Factors in Item 1A of the companys Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the year ended February 2013 which information is incorporated by reference herein and updated by

the companys Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q The company does not undertake any obligation or plan to update these

forward-looking statements even though its situation may change
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